CITY OF NORMAN, OK

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

Municipal Building, Council Chambers, 201 West Gray, Norman, OK 73069
Tuesday, December 14, 2021 at 6:30 PM

AGENDA -AS AMENDED

It is the policy of the City of Norman that no person or groups of persons shall on the grounds of
race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin, age, place of birth, sex, sexual orientation, gender
identity or expression, familial status, marital status, including marriage to a person of the same
sex, disability, retaliation, or genetic information, be excluded from participation in, be denied the
benefits of, or otherwise subjected to discrimination in employment activities or in all programs,
services, or activities administered by the City, its recipients, sub-recipients, and contractors. In
the event of any comments, complaints, modifications, accommodations, alternative formats,
and auxiliary aids and services regarding accessibility or inclusion, please contact the ADA
Technician at 405-366-5424, Relay Service: 711. To better serve you, five (5) business days'
advance notice is preferred.

CITY COUNCIL, NORMAN UTILITIES AUTHORITY, NORMAN MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY,
AND NORMAN TAX INCREMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY

You are required to sign up in advance of the meeting on the City’s webpage, by calling the City
Clerk's Office (405-366-5406), or at the Council Chambers prior to the start of the meeting with
your name, ward, and item you wish to speak to including whether you are a proponent or
opponent. When the time comes for public comments, the Clerk will call your name and you can
make your way to the podium. Comments may be limited on items of higher interest, if so, the
Mayor will announce that at the beginning of the meeting. Participants may speak one time only
up to 3 minutes per person per item. There will be no yielding of time to another person. Sign
up does not guarantee you will get to speak if the allotted time for that item has already been
exhausted. If there is time remaining after those registered to speak have spoken, persons not
previously signed up may have the opportunity to speak. Comments received must be limited to
the motion on the floor only.

CALL TO ORDER
ROLL CALL

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
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APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1.

CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL, REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR
POSTPONEMENT OF THE MINUTES AS FOLLOWS:

CITY COUNCIL CONFERENCE MINUTES OF AUGUST 10, 2021

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNITY PLANNING AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE
MINUTES OF AUGUST 26, 2021

CITY COUNCIL STUDY SESSION MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 21, 2021

CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL SESSION MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 28, 2021

CITY COUNCIL CONFERENCE MINUTES OF OCTOBER 12, 2021

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 30, 2021

NORMAN UTILITIES AUTHORITY MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 30, 2021

NORMAN MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 30, 2021

NORMAN TAX INCREMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 30,
2021

PROCLAMATIONS

2.

|0

CONSIDERATION OF ACKNOWLEDGEMENT, APPROVAL, REJECTION,
AMENDMENT, AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF PROCLAMATION P-2122-16: A
PROCLAMATION OF THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA,
PROCLAIMING THE MONTH OF DECEMBER, 2021, AS NATIONAL IMPAIRED
DRIVING PREVENTION MONTH IN THE CITY OF NORMAN.

CONSIDERATION OF ACKNOWLEDGEMENT, APPROVAL, REJECTION,
AMENDMENT, AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF PROCLAMATION P-2122-17: A
PROCLAMATION OF THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA,
PROCLAIMING THE WEEK OF DECEMBER 26, 2021, THROUGH JANUARY 1, 2022,
AS KWANZAA WEEK IN THE CITY OF NORMAN.

COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS

CONSENT DOCKET

This item is placed on the agenda so that the City Council, by unanimous consent, can designate
those routine agenda items that they wish to be approved or acknowledged by one motion. If
any item proposed does not meet with approval of all Councilmembers, that item will be heard
in regular order. Staff recommends that Iltem 4 through Item 33 be placed on the consent docket.

First Reading Ordinance

4.

CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION, REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR
POSTPONEMENT OF ORDINANCE 0O-2122-21 UPON FIRST READING BY TITLE:
AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA,
AMENDING THE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT ESTABLISHED IN ORDINANCE
0-1415-45 TO AMEND THE ALLOWABLE USES FOR LOT 4A, IN BLOCK ONE (1),
OF UNIVERSITY NORTH PARK PROFESSIONAL CENTER, TO THE CITY OF
NORMAN, CLEVELAND COUNTY, OKLAHOMA; AND PROVIDING FOR THE
SEVERABILITY THEREOF.
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5. CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION, REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR
POSTPONEMENT OF ORDINANCE 0O-2122-24 UPON FIRST READING BY TITLE:
AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA,
AMENDING SECTION 460 OF CHAPTER 22 OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF
NORMAN SO AS TO GRANT SPECIAL USE FOR A BAR, LOUNGE OR TAVERN IN
THE C-2, GENERAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT, FOR LOT THREE (3), OF
BLOCK ONE (1), OF JENNINGS ESTATES NO. 1 ADDITION, A REPLAT OF PART
OF BLOCK 1, OF JENNINGS ESTATES NO. 1 ADDITION, TO THE CITY OF
NORMAN, CLEVELAND COUNTY, OKLAHOMA; AND PROVIDING FOR THE
SEVERABILITY THEREOF. (2224 WEST MAIN STREET, SUITE 2262)

|©

CONSIDERATION _OF ADOPTION, REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR
POSTPONEMENT OF ORDINANCE 0-2122-25 UPON FIRST READING BY TITLE:
AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA, FOR
THE REVISED FLOODPLAIN ORDINANCE ALLOWING FOR A REDUCTION IN
FLOOD  INSURANCE PREMIUMS  THROUGH  AMENDMENT  OF
SECTION 22:429.1 4 (C) 1 AND 4(C)3.

Appointments

7. CONSIDERATION OF ACKNOWLEDGEMENT, APPROVAL, REJECTION,
AMENDMENT, AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF THE MAYOR’'S APPOINTMENT AS
FOLLOWS:

NORMAN FORWARD GRIFFIN PARK AD HOC ADVISORY GROUP
BRANDON HOPPER, WARD 3

Reports/Communications

8. CONSIDERATION OF ACKNOWLEDGEMENT, APPROVAL, ACCEPTANCE,
REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF RECEIPT OF THE
FINANCE DIRECTOR'S INVESTMENT REPORT AS OF NOVEMBER 30, 2021, AND
DIRECTING THE FILING THEREOF.

CONSIDERATION OF SUBMISSION AND ACKNOWLEDGING RECEIPT OF
REPORTS ENTITLED “ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021,” AS PREPARED BY THE CITY OF NORMAN
FINANCE DEPARTMENT AND AUDITED BY THE FIRM OF BKD, LLP, FOR THE CITY
OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA, NORMAN UTILITIES AUTHORITY, NORMAN
MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY, NORMAN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY AND
NORMAN TAX INCREMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY.

|©©
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Authorization for Purchase

10. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL, REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR
POSTPONEMENT OF AN ADDITIONAL PAYMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $29,758
($14,759 EACH) TO GILLIG FOR THE PURCHASE OF TWO (2) 35-FOOT ELECTRIC
TRANSIT BUSES, FOR A REVISED PURCHASE AMOUNT OF $1,858,242 ($929,121
PER BUS).

Bids

11. CONSIDERATION OF AWARD, ACCEPTANCE, REJECTION, AMENDMENT,
AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF BID-2122-30 FOR THE PURCHASE OF LOCAL
REGISTER WATER METERS TO CORE AND MAIN, L.P., FOR SECTIONS 1, 2, 3,
5,6, 8, 10, 11, 12, AND 13 AND UTILITY TECHNOLOGY SERVICES FOR SECTION
4,7, AND 9 FOR THE LINE MAINTENANCE DIVISION.

Donation

12. CONSIDERATION OF THE ACCEPTANCE, REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR
POSTPONEMENT OF A DONATION OF A SCULPTURE ENTITLED “FIRST LOVE”
VALUED AT $15,250 FROM GREG HEIPLE TO BE PLACED IN ANDREW’S PARK IN
HONOR OF HIS MOTHER, KATHY HEIPLE.

13. CONSIDERATION OF ACCEPTANCE OR REJECTION OF A DONATION OF LOT 7,
BLOCK 1 OF THE SPRING BROOK ADDITION FROM THE CORE NORMAN LAND
TRUST TO THE CITY OF NORMAN.

Final Plat

14. CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL, ACCEPTANCE, REJECTION, AMENDMENT,
AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF A FINAL SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND FINAL
PLAT FOR TRAILWOODS ADDITION, SECTION 12, A REPLAT OF TRAILWOODS
WEST ADDITION AND RECEIPT OF A CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSIT IN THE AMOUNT
OF $163,227.20 FOR DEFERRAL OF PAVING, DRAINAGE AND SIDEWALKS IN
CONNECTION WITH 12TH AVENUE N.W. (GENERALLY LOCATED ONE HALF MILE
NORTH OF WEST ROCK CREEK ROAD ON THE EAST SIDE OF 12TH AVENUE
N.W.)

Contracts

15. CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL, GRANTING, REJECTION, AMENDMENT,
AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF AMENDMENT FIVE TO CONTRACT K-1920-32: BY
AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA, AND THE BOARD OF
REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY OF OKLAHOMA, EXTENDING THE TERM OF THE
LEASE AGREEMENT FOR OFFICE SPACE, SERVICE BAYS, FLEET STORAGE,
AND WAREHOUSE/GARAGE SPACE TO BE USED FOR PROVIDING
TRANSPORTATION SERVICES UNTIL JANUARY 31, 2022, OR UPON
SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION AND OCCUPATION OF THE NORTH BASE COMPLEX
PROJECT, PHASE 1, BY THE CITY OF NORMAN.
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16. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL, ACCEPTANCE, ADOPTION, REJECTION,
AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF AMENDMENT NO. THREE TO CONTRACT K-1920-
40: BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA, AND FRANKFURT-
SHORT-BRUZA ASSOCIATES, P.C. (FSB) INCREASING THE CONTRACT AMOUNT
BY $105,000 FOR A REVISED CONTRACT AMOUNT OF $3,330,975 TO PROVIDE
ADDITIONAL PROFESSIONAL DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE SENIOR WELLNESS
CENTER AND BUDGET TRANSFER AS OUTLINED IN THE STAFF REPORT.

17. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL, REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR
POSTPONEMENT OF AMENDMENT NO. ONE TO CONTRACT K-2021-115 BY AND
BETWEEN THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA, AND CROSSLAND
CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC., INCREASING THE CONTRACT AMOUNT BY
$2,022,408 FOR A REVISED CONTRACT AMOUNT OF $2,048,728 FOR
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT AT-RISK SERVICES TO PROVIDE STEEL
FABRICATION AND ERECTION FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE SENIOR
WELLNESS CENTER AND RESOLUTION R-2122-74 GRANTING TAX-EXEMPT
STATUS.

18. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL, ACCEPTANCE, REJECTION, AMENDMENT,
AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF CHANGE ORDER NO. ONE TO CONTRACT K-2122-
4: BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA, AND SILVER STAR
CONSTRUCTION COMPANY DECREASING THE CONTRACT AMOUNT BY
$88,181.50 FOR A REVISED AMOUNT OF $1,040,318.50 FOR THE ASPHALT
PAVEMENT PROJECT, FYE 2022 LOCATIONS, FINAL ACCEPTANCE OF THE
PROJECT, AND FINAL PAYMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $52,015.93.

19. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL, ACCEPTANCE, REJECTION, AMENDMENT,
AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF CHANGE ORDER NO. ONE TO CONTRACT K-2122-
26: BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA, AND PARATHON
CONSTRUCTION, L.L.C., INCREASING THE CONTRACT AMOUNT BY $120,066
FOR A REVISED CONTRACT AMOUNT OF $312,486.50 FOR THE FYE 2022
24TH AVENUE N.W. SIDEWALK ACCESSIBILITY CONSTRUCTION PROJECT.

20. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL, REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR
POSTPONEMENT OF CONTRACT K-2122-71: A CONTRACT BY AND BETWEEN
THE NORMAN UTILITIES AUTHORITY AND CLEAN EARTH, L.L.C., TO PROVIDE
HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL SERVICES FOR
THE CITY OF NORMAN'S PERMANENT HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE
FACILITY

21. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL, ACCEPTANCE, REJECTION, AMENDMENT,
AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF CONTRACT K-2122-72: BY AND BETWEEN THE
NORMAN UTILITIES AUTHORITY AND PARKHILL, SMITH, & COOPER, INC. D/B/A
PARKHILL IN THE AMOUNT OF $124,500 TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL
SURVEYING AND DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING (FYE) 2019
SEWER MAINTENANCE PROJECT.
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22. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL, REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR
POSTPONEMENT OF CONTRACT K-2122-73: A CONTRACT BY AND BETWEEN
THE NORMAN UTILITIES AUTHORITY AND CAROLLO ENGINEERS IN THE
AMOUNT OF $73,661 TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES
ASSOCIATED WITH THE CLARIFIER ONE AND TWO REHABILITATION PROJECT
AND BUDGET TRANSFER AS OUTLINED IN THE STAFF REPORT.

23. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL, ACCEPTANCE, REJECTION, AMENDMENT
AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF CONTRACT K-2122-76: A CONTRACT BY AND
BETWEEN THE NORMAN UTILITIES AUTHORITY AND ALAN PLUMMER
ASSOCIATES, INC., IN THE AMOUNT OF $49,820 TO PROVIDE A RECLAIMED
WATER MODELING EVALUATION FOR THE LINDSEY STREET WATER TOWER.

24. CONSIDERATION OF ACCEPTANCE, APPROVAL, REJECTION, AMENDMENT
AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF THE 5% PLANNING AND ADMINISTRATION
FUNDING FROM THE HOME INVESTMENT PARTNERSHIPS PROGRAM
AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN AWARD (HOME-ARP) IN THE AMOUNT OF $78,045.40.
APPROVAL OF CONTRACT K-2122-77; AND BUDGET APPROPRIATION FROM THE
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND BALANCE AS OUTLINED IN THE STAFF
REPORT.

25. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL, ACCEPTANCE, REJECTION, AMENDMENT,
AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF CONTRACT K-2122-79: BY AND BETWEEN THE
NORMAN MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY, AND CEC CORPORATION IN THE AMOUNT OF
$139,447.25 TO PROVIDE CONSTRUCTION TESTING AND SPECIAL INSPECTION
SERVICES FOR THE NORMAN FORWARD MULTI-SPORT AND AQUATICS
CENTER PROJECT.

26. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL, ACCEPTANCE, ADOPTION, REJECTION,
AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF AWARDING CONTRACT K-2122-81: BY AND
BETWEEN THE NORMAN MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY AND CROSSLANDS
CONSTRUCTION COMPANY INC, IN THE AMOUNT OF $14,450 TO PROVIDE
CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT-RISK SERVICES FOR THE NORMAN FORWARD
GRIFFIN COMMUNITY PARK RENOVATION PROJECT.

27. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL, REJECTION, AMENDMENT AND/OR
POSTPONEMENT OF CONTRACT K-2122-82: A CONTRACT BY AND BETWEEN
THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA AND NORMAN REGIONAL HOSPITAL
AUTHORITY FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE PORTER HEALTH VILLAGE AND
CONVEYANCE OF PROPERTY.

Resolutions

28. CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION, REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR
POSTPONEMENT OF RESOLUTION R-2122-63: ARESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA, APPROPRIATING $26,278.18 FROM THE
RISK MANAGEMENT MISCELLANEOUS REIMBURSEMENTS REFUNDS ACCOUNT
TO REPAIR AND REPLACE TRAFFIC SIGNAL EQUIPMENT OR TRAFFIC SIGNS
DAMAGED IN TRAFFIC COLLISIONS.
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29. CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION, REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR
POSTPONEMENT OF RESOLUTION R-2122-67: APPROPRIATING $17,865.49
FROM THE RISK MANAGEMENT MISCELLANEOUS
REIMBURSEMENTS/REFUNDS ACCOUNTS TO REPAIR AND REPLACE TRAFFIC
SIGNAL EQUIPMENT OR TRAFFIC SIGNS DAMAGED IN TRAFFIC COLLISIONS.

30. CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION, REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR
POSTPONEMENT OF RESOLUTION R-2122-68: A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA APPROPRIATING $180,000 FROM 2021
STREET MAINTENANCE BOND PROGRAM TO BE USED TO COMPLETE ASPHALT
MAINTENANCE ON 72ND AVENUE N.W. IN COORDINATION WITH CLEVELAND
COUNTY DISTRICT 3.

31. CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION, REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR
POSTPONEMENT OF RESOLUTION R-2122-70: A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA, ADOPTING THE CITY OF NORMAN
WATER CONSERVATION PLAN 2021.

32. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL, REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR
POSTPONEMENT OF RESOLUTION R-2122-72: A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA APPROPRIATING $346,703 FROM THE
CAPITAL FUND BALANCE TO BE USED TO PURCHASE FIVE (5) 3500 DODGE
PROMASTER VANS FOR THE PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION FLEET.

33. CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION, REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR
POSTPONEMENT OF RESOLUTION R-2122-76: ARESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA, DECLARING A TEMPORARY
ADMINISTRATIVE DELAY FOR A PERIOD OF SIX (6) MONTHS ON THE
ACCEPTANCE OF ALL APPLICATIONS FOR CERTIFICATES OF COMPLIANCE
(“COC”), DEMOLITION PERMITS, OR CENTER CITY PLANNED UNIT
DEVELOPMENTS (“CCPUD”) IN THE CENTER CITY STUDY AREA OF NORMAN;
DECLARING POSSIBLE EXCEPTIONS; DECLARING A PROCEDURE FOR
ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW AND APPEALS PROCESS; AND PROVIDING FOR THE
SEVERABILITY THEREOF.

NON-CONSENT ITEMS

Second Reading Ordinance

34. CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION, REJECTION, AMENDMENT AND/OR
POSTPONEMENT OF ORDINANCE 0-2122-32 UPON SECOND AND FINAL
READING: AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORMAN,
OKLAHOMA, FIXING THE COMPENSATION OF THE CITY MANAGER AS
PROVIDED BY ARTICLE XVII, SECTION 1, OF THE CHARTER OF THE CITY OF
NORMAN; AND PROVIDING FOR THE SEVERABILITY THEREOF.
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35. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL, ACCEPTANCE, REJECTION, POSTPONEMENT
AND/OR AMENDMENT OF AMENDMENT 2 TO CONTRACT K-1819-146: BY AND
BETWEEN THE CITY OF NORMAN AND DARREL PYLE AMENDING HIS
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT TO REMOVE PROVISIONS FOR A CELL PHONE
ALLOWANCE IN EXCHANGE FOR THE PROVISION OF A CITY OWNED CELL
PHONE.

MISCELLANEOUS COMMENTS

This is an opportunity for citizens to address City Council. Due to Open Meeting Act regulations,
Council is not able to participate in discussion during miscellaneous comments. Remarks should
be directed to the Council as a whole and limited to three minutes or less.

ADJOURNMENT

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING - Tuesday, December 14, 2021 Page |8




File Attachments for ltem:

1. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL, REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR
POSTPONEMENT OF THE MINUTES AS FOLLOWS:

CITY COUNCIL CONFERENCE MINUTES OF AUGUST 10, 2021

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNITY PLANNING AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE
MINUTES OF AUGUST 26, 2021

CITY COUNCIL STUDY SESSION MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 21, 2021
CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL SESSION MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 28, 2021
CITY COUNCIL CONFERENCE MINUTES OF OCTOBER 12, 2021

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 30, 2021

NORMAN UTILITIES AUTHORITY MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 30, 2021
NORMAN MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 30, 2021

NORMAN TAX INCREMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 30,
2021

Iltem 1.




Iltem 1.

CITY OF NORMAN, OK

STAFF REPORT

MEETING DATE: 12/14/2021

REQUESTER: Brenda Hall, City Clerk
PRESENTER: Brenda Hall, City Clerk

CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL, REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR
ITEM TITLE: POSTPONEMENT OF THE MINUTES AS FOLLOWS:

CITY COUNCIL CONFERENCE MINUTES OF AUGUST 10, 2021

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNITY PLANNING AND TRANSPORTATION
COMMITTEE MINUTES OF AUGUST 26, 2021

CITY COUNCIL STUDY SESSION MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 21, 2021
CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL SESSION MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 28, 2021
CITY COUNCIL CONFERENCE MINUTES OF OCTOBER 12, 2021

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 30, 2021

NORMAN UTILITIES AUTHORITY MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 30, 2021
NORMAN MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 30, 2021
NORMAN TAX INCREMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY MINUTES OF
NOVEMBER 30, 2021

Page 1 of 1
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CITY COUNCIL CONFERENCE MINUTES
August 10, 2021

The City Council of the City of Norman, Cleveland County, State of Oklahoma, met in a
conference at 5:00 p.m. in the Municipal Building Council Chambers on the 10th day of August,
2021, and notice and agenda of the meeting were posted at the Municipal Building at 201 West
Gray 24 hours prior to the beginning of the meeting.

PRESENT: Councilmembers  Foreman, Hall,
Holman, Lynn, Peacock, Schueler,
Studley, Tortorello, Mayor Clark

ABSENT: None
Item 1, being:

DISCUSSING REGARDING THE 2019 GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND PROJECTS AND
FUNDING.

Mr. Shawn O’Leary, Director of Public Works, said the United States Senate just passed a
$1.2 trillion infrastructure bill and Oklahoma should be receiving some of that money. He believes
cities and towns will have to apply for the money through the Association of Central Oklahoma
Governments (ACOG).

Mr. Scott Sturtz, City Engineer, introduced Mr. Ron Weltzheimer, Program Manager for Olsson;
Mr. Liesel Polwort, Assistant Program Director of Olsson; Mr. Kevin Bloss, Client Relationship
Manager for Olsson; Mr. David Riesland, City of Norman Transportation Engineer; Mr. Tim
Miles, City of Norman Capital Projects Manager; and Mr. Paul D’ Andrea, City of Norman Capital
Projects Engineer.

Mr. Sturtz said the City of Norman now has a public engagement website,
www.normanstreets.com. He said there is an area for comments and the City is always happy to
hear public feedback. He said this website will list upcoming City of Norman Transportation
Projects that will increase safety and efficiency for all modes of transportation.

Mr. Sturtz said the 2019 Transportation General Obligation (G.0.) Bond Program was approved
by voters on April 2, 2019, which is a ten-year program expiring in 2030. This is the largest bond
package the City has ever put forth to a vote that includes 19 projects for a total program amount
of $139 million with $72 million from bond money and $67 million from anticipated federal funds
(80/20 split). He said the bond program included a Traffic Management Center, widening and
reconstruction of roads, installation of new traffic signals, improvements to stormwater drainage
systems, and addition of sidewalks, bike lanes, and multi-modal paths. He said this program did
not increase property taxes because the City was able to leverage an existing property tax bond
that was ending.

Iltem 1.
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City Council Conference Minutes
August 10, 2021
Page 2

Item 1, continued:

Mr. Sturtz highlighted the bond program improvement projects as 36th Avenue West from Indian
Hills Road to the City of Moore city limits; 48th Avenue West, Phase | - Robinson Street to Rock
Creek Road; 48th Avenue West Phase Il - Rock Creek Road to Tecumseh Road; Indian Hills Road
and Interstate 35 Interchange; Indian Hills Road from 48th Avenue West to Interstate 1-35; East
Tecumseh Road from 12th Avenue N.E. to 24th Avenue N.E.; Rock Creek Road from Queenston
Avenue/Bruckner Drive to 24th Avenue N.E.; Gray Street Two-Way Project: University
Boulevard to Porter Avenue; James Garner Avenue from Acres Street to Duffy Street; Lindsey
Street Special Corridor, Phase I, from Pickard Avenue to EIm Avenue; Lindsey Street Special
Corridor, Phase I, from EIm Avenue to Jenkins Avenue; Jenkins Avenue from Imhoff Road to
Lindsey Street; Constitution Street from Jenkins Avenue to Classen Boulevard/12th Avenue S.E.;
Cedar Lane Road East from 24th Avenue S.E. to 36th Avenue S.E.; 36th Avenue S.E. from Cedar
Lane Road to Highway 9; Porter Avenue Streetscape; Porter Avenue and Acres Street Intersection
Improvements; Traffic Management Center; and 24th Avenue N.E. from Rock Creek Road to
Tecumseh Road.

Mr. Sturtz said funding is part of the Fixing America’s Surface Transportation Act (FAST) and
over the last 28 years, the City has averaged $6 million in funding for over 140 transportation
projects totaling $160 million. He said FFY 2020 through FFY 2023 funding is guaranteed while
FFY 2024 through FFY 2025 are projected funding request amounts, but are not guaranteed.

To obtain this federal funding, the City has to be part of the Regional Transportation Improvement
Plan (TIP). He said approximately $20 million is available each year from ACOG, but there is a
lot of competition for this funding. Federal funding from ACOG is guaranteed for the first two
years, then Staff must reapply for project funding and although Norman has been highly successful
in obtaining funding, competition for the funds has become fierce over the past few years. He said
ACOG member agencies within the Encompass Planning area are eligible to apply and no single
government can receive more than 56% of the total funding.

Mr. Sturtz said transportation project selection criteria includes widening, including
railroad/highway grade separations; new construction; intersection improvements; resurfacing,
reconstruction, rehabilitation, restoration; bridges; independent bicycle and pedestrian facilities;
transit, park/ride, High Occupancy Vehicle (HOV) Lanes; carpool/vanpool; and safety projects
(safety projects are 100% federally funded).

Significant changes were made to project selection criteria in FFY 2019 and the City was not
scoring as well so the City began aligning projects with the Regional Multi-Modal Transportation
Plan goals and objectives; added transportation system performance management; developed a
process/methodology to ensure that the region’s transportation funding is being used effectively;
adjusted the scoring between types of projects to reflect the region’s needs; improved the
competitiveness of projects that utilize cost-effective strategies from the Congestion Management
Plan toolbox; and simplified the project application process and criteria; and removed project
readiness criteria, which is no longer considered in project criteria by ACOG. Mr. Sturtz said the
new criteria was finalized and accepted by both the Intermodal Transportation Technical
Committee and Intermodal Transportation Policy Committee and was used for the first time in the
formulation of the FFY 2020-2023 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP).

Iltem 1.
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City Council Conference Minutes
August 10, 2021
Page 3

Item 1, continued:

Mr. Sturtz said projects scheduled within the next five years that do not have federal funding shares
include Porter Avenue and Acres Street; Jenkins Avenue from Imhoff Road to Lindsey Street;
Porter Avenue Streetscape; James Garner from Acres Street to Duffy Street; and Gray Street Two-
Way Conversion. He said these projects are being done with bond proceeds only.

Projects where federal funding has not been guaranteed, but will be pursued include Cedar Lane
Road from east of 24th Avenue S.E. to 36th Avenue S.E.; Constitution Street from Jenkins Avenue
to Classen Boulevard; 36th Avenue N.W. from North of Indian Hills Road to Moore city limits;
Traffic Management Center; 36th Avenue S.E. from Cedar Lane Road to State Highway 9;
24th Avenue N.E. from Rock Creek Road to Tecumseh Road; 48th Avenue N.W., Phase I:
Robinson Street to Rock Creek Road; Lindsey Street Special Corridor: EIm Avenue to Jenkins
Avenue; Indian Hills Road: 48th Avenue N.W. to Interstate 35 (I-35); Indian Hills Road and 1-35
Interchange; 48th Avenue N.W., Phase Il from Rock Creek Road to Tecumseh Road; Lindsey
Street Special Corridor: Pickard Avenue to EIm Avenue; Tecumseh Road from 12th Avenue N.E.
to 24th Avenue N.E.; and Rock Creek Road from Queenston Avenue to 24th Avenue N.E.. He
said Porter Avenue and Acres Street Project is currently under construction and under budget by
$360,000 at this time.

In the fall of 2020, Council authorized federal funds for Jenkins Avenue: Imhoff Road to Lindsey
Street; Porter Avenue Streetscape; Constitution Street from Jenkins Avenue to Classen Boulevard;
and the Traffic Management Center. Mr. Sturtz said ACOG is agreeable, with Council’s consent,
to transferring FFY 2023 funds from the Jenkins Avenue and Constitution Street Projects to the
Gray Street Two-Way Conversion Project, which means the City will keep $1.7 million in federal
funding guaranteed for those projects. Pros for this transfer of funds means Gray Street Two-Way
Conversion can begin in 2023; the City will have more time to coordinate with the University of
Oklahoma (OU) on the Jenkins Avenue Project; the ability to obtain funding for Constitution
Street; and Jenkins Avenue and Constitution Street rank well and can compete for future federal
funding. The only cons are delaying Jenkins Avenue until 2024 and having to reapply for federal
funding for Jenkins Avenue and Constitution Street.

Mr. Sturtz asked Council if Staff should request the $1.7 million in federal funds be transferred to
the Gray Street Two-Way Conversion Project and Councilmembers concurred, but expressed
interest in saving as many trees as possible on the Jenkins Avenue Project by possibly burying
electric lines.

Next steps include switching Jenkins Avenue funding to Gray Street Two-Way Conversion;
submitting applications for federal funding for Jenkins Avenue - $5.1 million, James Garner
Avenue, Phase Ill: Acres Street to Duffy Street - $2.5 million, and Constitution Street -
$3.9 million for FFY 2024; constructing Cedar Lane Road or other 2019 Bond Projects in
FFY 2023 with leveraged federal funding of $9.3 million (if the above referenced projects gain
funding); continuing to pursue other grant applications on *“good fit” projects; and promoting
public engagement.
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Item 1, continued:

Items submitted for the record
1. PowerPoint presentation entitled, “2019 Transportation Bond Projects - Funding
Strategies,” dated August 10, 2021

* Kk Kk k%

Item 2, being:
DISCUSSION REGARDING INCENTIVES FOR COVID VACCINATIONS.

Mayor Clark said at the Oklahoma Municipal League meeting last week, members discussed the
Delta variant, the rising cases of COVID, and what cities will be doing. The general consensus is
that vaccine opportunities would be better than mask mandates and there was an appetite to focus
on vaccine incentive programs. She has created a proposal for a vaccine incentive program that
would be funded with ARPA funds. She is proposing launching the program on August 24, 2021,
with the first shot being available August 30 through November 3, 2021. With the first shot, the
person will be entered to win a set of tickets (five sets of two tickets) to OU’s first season opener
on September 11th, will be entered to win a $25,000 cash prize, and will be given a $10 gift coupon
to a participating local business. The gift card would expire December 31, 2021, and participating
businesses would turn the gift coupons into the City for reimbursement. For the second shot, she
is proposing the person be entered a second time to win the cash prize and she is working on
another incentive item for the second shot. She said OU students will be allowed to enter the
drawing for the cash prize because they are Norman residents. For residents already vaccinated,
they would bring proof of vaccination to City Hall to be entered for the cash prize.

Mayor Clark said she would like to have drive-thru options as well as fixed location options, but
those details have not been determined yet. The City will partner with Norman Regional Health
System and Cleveland County Health Department for the vaccine pods.

Councilmembers supported the proposal and felt the City needed to have total control over the
money used for the program by possibly having a cap on the amount of gift coupons distributed.
They also felt the gift coupon amount should be higher than $10, e.g., $25 or $50, to really garner
more interest in obtaining the vaccinations.

Mayor Clark proposed passing a resolution at the next Council meeting setting an expectation for
mask wearing as well as getting vaccinated.

The meeting was adjourned at 6:20 p.m.

ATTEST:
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CITY COUNCIL
COMMUNITY PLANNING AND TRANSPORTATION
COMMITTEE MINUTES

August 26, 2021

The City Council Community Planning and Transportation Committee of the City of Norman,
Cleveland County, State of Oklahoma, met at 4:02 p.m. in the Executive Conference Room on the
26th day of August, 2021, and notice and agenda of the meeting were posted in the Municipal
Building at 201 West Gray 48 hours prior to the beginning of the meeting.

PRESENT: Councilmembers Hall, Schueler, Studley, and
Chairman Holman

ABSENT: Councilmember Peacock

OTHERS PRESENT: Mayor Breea Clark

Mr. Paul D’Andrea, Capital Projects Engineer

Ms. Carrie Evenson, Stormwater Program Manager
Mr. Joseph Hill, Streets Program Manager

Ms. Jane Hudson, Director of Planning and
Community Development

Mr. Taylor Johnson, Public Transit Coordinator

Mr. Tim Miles, Capital Projects Engineer

Mr. Shawn O’Leary, Director of Public Works

Ms. Heather Poole, Assistant City Attorney

Mr. Darrel Pyle, City Manager

Mr. David Riesland, Transportation Engineer

Ms. Jeanne Snider, Assistant City Attorney

Mr. Scott Sturtz, City Engineer

Mr. Chris Tatham, Chief Executive Officer for ETC
Institute

Ms. Kathryn Walker, City Attorney

Ms. Syndi Runyon, Administrative Technician IV

Item 1, being:

DISCUSSION REGARDING POTENTIAL STORMWATER PROJECTS TO BE FUNDED BY
AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT (ARPA) FUNDS.

Ms. Carrie Evenson, Stormwater Program Manager, said Stormwater Capital Improvement
Projects (CIP) generally consist of improvements to the stormwater conveyance system through
infrastructure repairs (replacing culverts, pipes, channel liners), stream stabilization (repairing
damage to streambanks caused by stormwater flows), and property acquisition/buyouts (acquiring
properties within the floodway or floodplain).
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Item 1, continued:

Ms. Evenson said projects are determined through the Stormwater Master Plan (SWMP) and in
October 2009, Post, Buckley, Schuh, and Jernigan (PBS&J) Company completed a study that was
a culmination of years of effort and numerous meetings and included a comprehensive study of
Norman’s watersheds as well as a list of projects. She said approximately 50 projects were
identified and the City has been able to complete a few of the projects, but funding is always a
challenge. She said projects generally are done when included in a transportation project and the
Lindsey Street Project is a great example of combining transportation improvements with
stormwater improvements. She said Lindsey Street was one of the highest ranked projects in the
SWMP. She said projects can be placed on the list through citizen, organization, or Council
requests based on complaints from residents experiencing flooding of their property. She said
there are also special studies as a result of public or Staff identified problem areas, such as the
lower Imhoff Creek Study. She said Staff identifies problems through routine
maintenance/inspections or in response to flooding events.

There is a method detailed in the SWMP that helps determine project prioritization that includes
factors such as public safety, sustainability, funding advantages, positive impacts on
neighborhoods and the environment, relationship to other infrastructure issues, and costs versus
benefits. Ms. Evenson said factors are weighted based on importance and each factor is then rated
from most relevant to no relevance to obtain a factor score and each project’s score is ranked
accordingly. There are approximately 60 projects on the list with 58 of them being identified as
SWMP projects and new projects are ranked and added as necessary. The City has completed six
projects to date and the total estimated cost of all remaining projects is $106 million.

In 2019, a Stormwater Citizen Committee met for two years to discuss a Stormwater Utility (SWU)
and they recommended a SWU rate and Stormwater General Obligation (G.O.) Bond.
Ms. Evenson said the proposed G.O. Bond was $60 million, which would be a $5.25 per month
property tax increase based on property’s market value of $150,000. At that time, 33 projects were
selected within the eight wards that included streambank stabilization, infrastructure replacement,
capacity improvements, and detention pond expansion. The proposition for the G.O. Bond and
SWU went to a vote of the people and failed. The 33 projects selected included various locations
along Bishop Creek; Canadian River; Merkle Creek; Brookhaven Creek; Ten Mile Flat Creek;
Imhoff Creek; Dave Blue Creek; Little River; Woodcrest Creek; and Rock Creek.

Ms. Evenson said a potential project using ARPA funds is improvements to Lower Imhoff Creek
that has significant bank erosion for an overall cost of $7,500,000. She said the project would be
phased to make it easier to fund and Phase I will be south of Imhoff Road Bridge for an estimated
cost of $3,500,000. This project is currently under design (funds encumbered) and is the highest
ranking SWMP project that is “shovel ready.” Phase 11 will be north of Imhoff Road Bridge at an
estimated cost of $4,500,000 to be completed at a later date. She said a property owner is losing
his backyard to Imhoff Creek and his sewer infrastructure will be put into jeopardy if this project
is not completed.

Ms. Evenson said Staff will continue to seek grant funds from the Federal Emergency Management
Agency (FEMA), but that is never a guarantee and she would be remiss if she stated otherwise.
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Item 1, continued:

Mr. Shawn O’Leary, Director of Public Works, said natural materials (reverse gabion, typical
gabion, rock toe, etc.) will be used for the projects, which is part of the criteria for the use of ARPA
funds so no concrete retaining walls will be constructed.

Another potential project for ARPA funds is Norman Nature Park, which is located at South Carter
Avenue and Alameda Street at an estimated cost of $1,500,000. The goal is to provide additional
floodplain storage capacity (retention basin), serve as an outdoor classroom with access to Bishop
Creek, and provide a location for green infrastructure installation and demonstration projects.

Another potential project for ARPA funds is Imhoff Bridge repairs, which was given the highest
priority for maintenance in the FYE 2022 Bridge Maintenance Program. On July 29, 2021,
stormwater maintenance Staff notified the City of failure of the southeast wing wall with enough
significant damage to require closure of Imhoff Road at the bridge. On August 11, 2021, the
contractor identified spalling on the northwest wing wall that had dangerously separated from the
bridge structure. The bridge needs emergency repairs at an estimated cost of $1 million or be
replaced at a cost of $4 to $5 million.

Mr. O’Leary said Staff would like to have the Imhoff Bridge repair item on Council’s agenda of
November 9th in order to proceed with the project as soon as possible.

Councilmembers liked all the project proposals sand supported Staff’s proposal for Imhoff Bridge
repairs, but wanted to see other options for funding these projects other than ARPA funds. The
Committee suggested moving the proposals forward to full Council prior to November 9th.

Items submitted for the record
1. PowerPoint presentation entitled, “Stormwater Capital Projects and ARPA Funding,”
dated August 26, 2021

Item 2, being:

PRESENTATION FROM CHRIS TATHAM, CEO, ETC INSTITUTE, OF THE EMBARK
NORMAN 2020 CUSTOMER AND MARKET STUDY.

Mr. O’Leary said as part of the Transit Master Plan, a customer satisfaction survey was performed
regarding the EMBARK Transit System. He introduced Mr. Jessie Rush, Operation Manager for
EMBARK, and Mr. Chris Tatham, Chief Executive Officer of ETC Institute.

Mr. Tatham said ETC Institute is a national leader in market research for local government
organization and gather and use survey data to enhance organizational performance for more than
35 years. He said clients include 25 of the 35 largest public transit systems in the United States
with more than 2.2 million persons surveyed since 2006 for more than 1,000 communities in 29
States.
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Item 2, continued:

Mr. Tatham said the purpose of the non-rider survey is to assess the perceived importance of transit
in the community among those who do not use transit; measure awareness of transit and familiarity
with services provided; and determine if non-riders would consider using transit and, if so, what
service characteristics are most important to them.

Surveys were conducted during the winter of 2020 and were administered by email and mail to
1,275 residents in EMBARK’s service area (973 in Oklahoma City and 302 in Norman). Overall
results have a precision of at least +/-2.7% at the 95% level of confidence and Norman residents
have a precision of at least +/- 5.9% at the 95% level of confidence.

Mr. Tatham said 80% of Norman citizens think EMBARK’s public transit services are valuable to
the community versus 77% in Oklahoma City (OKC). When asked if public transportation is
important to a thriving community, 61% strongly agreed, 21% agreed, 12% were not sure, and
4% strongly disagreed. When asked if the person preferred to drive rather than use public
transportation, 41% strongly agreed, 34% agreed, 17% were unsure, 5% disagreed, and
3% strongly disagreed. When asked if a person had too many places to go during the day to use
public transportation, 23% strongly agreed, 33% agreed, 27% were unsure, 13% disagreed, and
4% strongly disagreed. When asked if public transportation takes too long compared to other
mode of transportation, 13% strongly agreed, 38% agreed, 36% were unsure, 12% disagreed, and
1% strongly disagreed. When asked if transit service does not take the person to the place they
need to go, 16% agreed, 23% strongly agreed, 52% were unsure, 7% disagreed, and 2% strongly
disagreed. When asked if transit service is offered near their home, 16% strongly agreed,
17% agreed, 36% were unsure, 19% disagreed, and 13% strongly disagreed. When asked if
information service about transit service is difficult to understand, 9% strongly agreed,
18% agreed, 49% were unsure, 18% disagreed, and 6% strongly disagreed. When asked if transit
service is offered when needed, 11% strongly agreed, 13% agreed, 61% were unsure,
12% disagreed, and 2% strongly disagreed. When asked if they feel safe waiting at bus stops,
5% strongly agreed, 12% agreed, 49% were unsure, 25% disagreed, and 10% strongly disagreed.
When asked if they feel safe on the bus, 4% strongly agreed, 9% agreed, 50% were unsure,
25% disagreed, and 12% strongly disagreed. When asked if buses are on time, 3% strongly agreed,
6% agreed, 75% were unsure, 11% strongly disagreed, and 6% disagreed. When asked if buses
are comfortable, 3% strongly agreed, 6% agreed, 61% were unsure, 21% disagreed, and
10% strongly disagreed. When asked if riding the bus is too expensive, 1% strongly agreed,
5% agreed, 59% were unsure, 23% disagreed, and 12% strongly disagreed.

When asked the importance of serving low-income, disabled, or senior populations that have few
transportation options, 82% replied very important, 12% replied somewhat important, and
6% replied not important. When asked the importance of supporting economic development and
access to jobs, 68% replied very important, 24% replied somewhat important, and 8% replied not
important. When asked the importance of providing fast, reliable service on City’s main arterial
streets, 63% replied very important, 29% replied somewhat important, and 8% replied not
important. When asked the importance of helping to create an environmentally friendly
sustainable City, not only dependent on car travel, 60% replied very important, 28% replied
somewhat important, and 12% replied not important.

Iltem 1.

18




Community Planning and Transportation Committee Minutes
August 26, 2021
Page 5

Item 2, continued:

When asked the importance of increasing flow of traffic and reducing congestion in the region,
57% replied very important, 32% replied somewhat important, and 11% replied not important.
When asked the importance of making it easier to get to and from transit (better sidewalks, stops,
parks and ride facilities, etc.), 57% replied very important, 35% replied somewhat important, and
9% replied not important. When asked the importance of expanding EMBARK’s service area
(routes to more places), 55% replied very important, 35% replied somewhat important, and
10% replied not important. When asked the importance of providing an alternative to congested
roadways, 55% replied very important, 33% replied somewhat important, and 12% replied not
important. When asked the importance of supporting and funding improved public transportation,
65% replied very important, 19% replied somewhat important, 10% were unsure, and 6% replied
not important.

When asked about the likelihood of using public transportation if the time it takes to get to their
destination by public transit was faster/more frequent, 24% replied very likely, 37% replied likely,
21% were unsure, 5% replied not likely, and 13% replied not likely at all. When asked the
likelihood of using public transportation if transit stops are located closer to the place they work
or frequent, 24% replied very likely, 34% replied likely, 23% were unsure, 6% replied not likely,
and 13% replied not likely at all. When asked the likelihood of using public transportation if buses
are scheduled to arrive at stops more frequently, 15% relied very likely, 32% replied likely,
32% were unsure, 8% replied not likely, and 16% replied not likely at all. When asked the
likelihood of using public transportation if their employer provided incentives to use public
transportation services, 20% replied very likely, 35% replied likely, 28% were unsure, 9% replied
not likely, and 19% replied not likely at all. When asked the likelihood of using public
transportation if a person better understood how it worked, 11% replied very likely, 34% replied
likely, 23% were unsure, 6% replied not likely, and 13% replied not likely at all. When asked the
likelihood of using public transportation if shelters were located at bus stops where they would
board or alight, 16% replied very likely, 25% replied likely, 32% were unsure, 11% replied not
likely, and 16% replied not likely at all. When asked the likelihood of using public transportation
if there were better times transfers between services, 10% replied very likely, 29% replied likely,
36% were unsure, 10% replied not likely, and 15% replied not likely at all. When asked the
likelihood of using public transportation if the cost of parking increases at the place they work or
at placed they visit frequently, 11% replied very likely, 27% replied likely, 35% were unsure,
10% replied not likely, and 17% replied not likely at all. When asked the likelihood of using public
transportation if EMBARK provided faster service, 13% replied very likely, 24% replied likely,
39% were unsure, 10% replied not likely, and 13% replied not likely at all. When asked the
likelihood of using public transportation if there were options other than the bus, 16% replied very
likely, 21% replied likely, 37% were unsure, 11% replied not likely, and 15% replied not likely at
all. When asked the likelihood of using public transportation if service were offered earlier or later
on existing routes, 12% replied very likely, 23% replied likely, 41% were unsure, 10% replied not
likely, and 15% replied not likely at all. When asked the likelihood of using public transportation
if they saw more people like themselves using the transit system, 11% replied very likely,
21% replied likely, 29% were unsure, 18% replied not likely, and 22% replied not likely at all.
When asked the likelihood of using public transportation if it cost less to ride transit, 9% replied
very likely, 14% replied likely, 43% were unsure, 16% replied not likely, and 18% replied not
likely at all.
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Item 2, continued:

When asked to choose the top things that would most likely cause a person to begin using public
transportation services in the region, 29% replied transit stops located near home; 25% replied
transit stops locate closest to work or frequented destinations; 21% replied if employer provided
incentives to use public transportation; 21% replied faster/more frequent routes; 13% replied
shelter located at bus stops; 13% replied if there were no other options than the bus; 12% replied
if buses are scheduled to arrive at stops more frequently; 12 % replied if EMBARK provided faster
service; 12% replied if they saw more people like them on bus; 11% replied if they understood
how the bus systems worked; 11% replied better timed transfers between services; 8% replied if it
cost less to ride transit; 8% replied if cost of parking increased at work for places frequented; and
8% replied if service was offered earlier or later on existing routes.

Mr. Tatham said the purpose of the rider survey is to better understand characteristic of riders,
assess satisfaction transit services, and identify opportunities for improvement. He said surveys
were conducted during the fall of 2020 and 1,208 total surveys were completed (994 in Oklahoma
City and 214 in Norman). Overall results have a precision of at least +/-2.5% at the 95% level of
confidence and Norman’s results have a precision of at least +/-6.9% at the 95% level of
confidence.

Citizens were asked about satisfaction of service and when asked about courtesy of drivers,
61% replied very satisfied, 29% replied satisfied, 6% were neutral, 2% replied dissatisfied, and
2% replied very dissatisfied. When asked how safe they feel riding the bus service, 54% replied
very satisfied, 35% replied satisfied, 6% were neutral, 2% replied dissatisfied, and 2% replied very
dissatisfied. When asked about safe operation of buses, 55% replied very satisfied, 33% replied
satisfied, 5% were neutral, 5% replied dissatisfied, and 2% replied very dissatisfied. When asked
about safety while waiting at a bus stop, 52% replied very satisfied, 36% replied satisfied, 8% were
neutral, 3% replied dissatisfied, and 1% replied very dissatisfied. When asked about the
cleanliness of the busses, 52% replied very satisfied, 35% replied satisfied, 8% were neutral,
2% replied dissatisfied, and 3% replied very dissatisfied. When asked about safety at transit
center, 53% replied very satisfied, 33% replied satisfied, 10% were neutral, 3% replied dissatisfied,
and 1% replied very dissatisfied. When asked about ease of locating a bus stop, 51% replied very
satisfied, 32% replied satisfied, 7% were neutral, 8% replied dissatisfied, and 2% replied very
dissatisfied. When asked about frequency of service, 49% replied very satisfied, 34% replied
satisfied, 6% were neutral, 8% replied dissatisfied, and 3% replied very dissatisfied. When asked
about COVID safety precautions/procedures while riding, 45% replied very satisfied, 37% replied
satisfied, 9% were neutral, 8% replied dissatisfied, and 1% replied very dissatisfied. When asked
about availability of accessible bus stops, 47% replied very satisfied, 35% replied satisfied,
9% were neutral, 6% replied dissatisfied, and 4% replied very dissatisfied. When asked about
cleanliness of transit center, 47% replied very satisfied, 34% replied satisfied, 14% were neutral,
3% replied dissatisfied, and 3% replied very dissatisfied. When asked about cleanliness of bus
shelters, 44% replied very satisfied, 37% replied satisfied, 14% were neutral, 4% replied
dissatisfied, and 1% replied very dissatisfied. When asked about information at the bus stops,
46% replied very satisfied, 34% replied satisfied, 11% were neutral, 7% replied dissatisfied, and
2% replied very dissatisfied. When asked about buses arriving on time, 41% replied very satisfied,
37% replied satisfied, 14% were neutral, 6% replied dissatisfied, and 2% replied very dissatisfied.

Iltem 1.

20




Community Planning and Transportation Committee Minutes
August 26, 2021
Page 7

Item 2, continued:

When asked about ease of getting service information, 44% replied very satisfied, 32% replied
satisfied, 13% were neutral, 7% replied dissatisfied, and 3% replied very dissatisfied.

Mr. Tatham said 47% of those surveyed do not transfer buses, 37% make one transfer, 13% make
two transfers, and 3% make three or more transfers. He said of the onboard surveys, riders were
asked the same questions as stated above and the top three priorities were buses arriving on time
(45%), availability of accessible bus stops (39%), and frequency of service (36%).

In summary, most residents think transit service is very important even if they are not using it;
overall satisfaction with transit service among riders is very high; 92% of Norman residents think
transit is important to support economic development and access to jobs; many non-riders would
be willing to use transit under the right conditions; and as service improvements are made,
expectations are likely to rise.

Councilmembers thanked Mr. Tatham and City Staff for the presentation.

Items submitted for the record
1. PowerPoint presentation entitled, “Survey Findings by ETC Institute,” dated
August 26, 2021

Item 3, being:
SUBMISSION OF PUBLIC TRANSIT RIDERSHIP REPORT.

Mr. Taylor Johnson, Transit and Parking Program Manager, said the fixed route service
transported 18,520 passengers in July 2021, compared to 16,774 in June 2021. The daily average
ridership was 712. There were 697 passengers with bicycles and 458 passengers with wheelchairs
or other mobility devices transported in July.

The paratransit service transported 1,654 passengers in July 2021, compared to 1,636 in June 2021.
Average daily ridership was 57, a decrease of 2.67%. For the month of July, the paratransit service
had 0% trip requests denied due to capacity.

Saturday service totaled 1,945 in July 2021, a 50.43% increase over 1,293 in June 2021.

Mr. Johnson said City Staff would like to create an opportunity for anyone interested in public
transportation to join Staff for a bus ride during the months of August and September. Each Friday,
from August 13 through September 29, a City Staff member will be riding Route 110 on its
10:00 a.m. trip throughout Norman. Boarding will occur at the bus stop at Webster Avenue and
Tonhawa Street (just outside the west entrance of the old Central Library at 225 North Webster
Avenue). While an RSVP is not required, Staff encourages it because of capacity limitations. He
said because of federal regulations, masks, capacity restrictions, and social distancing are still
being mandated on buses. He said all public transportation, i.e., buses, planes, trains, etc., have
the same mandates throughout the nation.
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Item 3, continued:

Mr. Johnson said progress continues to be made on the construction of the new Transit
Maintenance and Operation Facility on North Base and commended Fleet Maintenance Division
Staff for continuing to ensure the transit fleet is in operational condition despite the age of the
vehicles (19 out of 27 buses have met their useful life). This maintenance includes mechanical
maintenance as well as fueling, cleaning, and sanitizing the buses each night at the conclusion of
service.

The City is in the process of purchasing two battery electric buses and Staff anticipates receiving
these vehicles in August/September 2022. Approximately 70% of the vehicle purchase price will
be reimbursed through a grant received from the Federal Transit Authority’s 2021 Low or No
Emission Vehicle Program. Mr. Johnson said the City’s project was one of 49 projects selected in
the nation. Staff continues to identify other avenues to purchase transit vehicles to modernize and
standardize its fleet using existing local and federal funds available.

Items submitted for the record
1. Memorandum dated August 26, 2021, from Taylor Johnson, Public Transit
Coordinator, through Shawn O’Leary, P.E., CFM, Director of Public Works, to
Council Community Planning and Transportation Committee
2. Public Transportation Monthly Report for July 2021

* Kk Kk Kk *

Item 4, being:

DISCUSSION REGARDING BACK-IN ANGLE PARKING PILOT PROJECT ON JAMES
GARNER AVENUE AND ASSOCIATED ORDINANCE.

Mr. David Riesland, Transportation Engineer, said Norman currently does not have back-in angle
parking. Two projects under design, James Garner Avenue, Phase |1l and Gray Street Two-Way
Conversion, offer an opportunity for a back-in angle parking pilot project, which will provide more
parking than a typical parallel parking layout. The City created a parallel parking area on James
Garner Avenue between Symmes Street and Apache Street in 2019, as part of an original pilot to
show how parallel parking with a pull-off lane could work. This parallel parking area was created
with the City’s Engineering Design Criteria and features a pull-off area to be able to access the
parallel parking spaces without interfering with through traffic on James Garner Avenue. He said
because pull-off exists, this area is a prime candidate for another pilot project for back-in angle
parking by restriping the existing parallel spaces for a total cost of $1,000 to be accomplished by
City workers with completion in September 2021. A pilot project would allow motorists to get
used to the concept and allow Staff the perfect implementation of various supplemental signs prior
to implementation with much larger projects.
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Item 4, continued:

Mr. Riesland said the original pilot project added a row of parallel parking spaces to the west side
of James Garner Avenue between Symmes Street and Apache Street with a featured pull-off lane
so the backing maneuvers could be made outside of the travel lane. He said the pull-off lane is
being illegally used for double and sometimes triple parking. The proposed back-in angle parking
will increase the number parking spaces from ten to thirteen (keeping one accessible space) and is
designed to eliminate the potential for double parking and is a safer way of parking. He said back-
in angle parking is safer because instead of pulling into a parking space, cars back into the space
allowing them to make eye contact with oncoming traffic when exiting the parking space. Just
like parallel parking, the driver will signal a right turn to warn other drivers, pull past the parking
space and stop to reverse into the parking space.

The benefits of back-in angle parking includes improved visibility and increased field of vision
when leaving the parking space as motorists are better able to see oncoming traffic; decreased
number of collisions - motorists no longer have to back out blindly from their parking space;
improved safety for children - car doors will open in a manner that directs children to the back of
the vehicle ushering them toward the sidewalk rather than the street; improved safety for bicyclists
- as vehicles exit their parking space, they are able to see bicyclists in the roadway; improved
loading and unloading — trunks are adjacent to the sidewalk and open car doors offer protection
from the street allowing for loading and unloading to occur outside the traveled area; improved
accessible parking- accessible parking spaces can be placed adjacent to curb ramps; increased
space — reverse angle parking does not require as much space to maneuver as traditional angle
parking which may result in an increased number of parking spaces or additional room for
sidewalks, bike lanes, etc.; and traffic calming — the back-in maneuver encourages slower vehicle
operating speeds.

Potential downsides for back-in angle parking includes vehicles overhanging sidewalks — this can
be alleviated with proper design and placement; vehicles backing into street furniture — this can be
alleviated with proper design and placement; vehicles may enter the spaces head-in from the
opposite side of the street — this can be alleviated with enforcement, signs, and driver awareness;
and potential congestion — as with parallel parking, backing in may cause some congestion on
heavily trafficked streets. Mr. Riesland said each potential location would be evaluated to
determine if it is an appropriate site for back-in angle parking.

Mr. Riesland said Tucson, Arizona, uses back-in angle parking and had reported an average of
three to four bike/car crashes per month before back-in angle parking was implemented and zero
crashes have been reported since implementing back-in angle parking. Overall, back-in angle
parking improves the safety of the bicyclist and drivers by increasing visibility and makes
accessing your car easier and safer.
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Item 4, continued:

Transition for drivers should not be difficult when aided with signs, education, etc., to clarify the
appropriate use of the parking spaces. Mr. Riesland said “seed” cars could also be parked in a few
spaces in the beginning to provide a visual example of the correct way to park. He said Staff has
created an informational brochure to educate motorists regarding back-in angle parking, which
will help with the necessary educational outreach necessary to inform the public of the switch.
The parking itself is a simple driving operation that is, in fact, easier than parallel parking and
easier than blindly backing into an active traffic lane to leave a space.

Other cities that have back-in angle parking include Tulsa, Oklahoma; Birmingham, Alabama;
Charlotte, North Carolina; Chico, California; Everett, Washington; Honolulu, Hawaii;
Indianapolis, Indiana; Knoxville, Tennessee; Marquette, Michigan; Santa Barbara, California;
Syracuse, New York; Washington D.C.; Hoboken, New Jersey; Auburn, New York; Vancouver,
Washington; Davidson, North Carolina; Fort Collins, Colorado; Albuquerque, New Mexico;
Bloomfield, New Jersey; Missoula, Montana; New York, New York; Olympia, Washington;
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania; Portland, Oregon; Salem, Oregon; Salt Lake City, Utah; San
Francisco, California; Seattle, Washington; Tacoma, Washington; Venture, California;
Wilmington, Delaware; Burlington, Vermont; Enid, Oklahoma; New Braunfels, Texas; Eugene,
Oregon; South Bend, Indiana; Sarasota, Florida; and Arlington, Texas.

Mr. Riesland said signs will need to be displayed to alert motorists on the other side of the street
that head-in parking in spaces intended for back-in parking is illegal, but over time, drivers will
become more accustomed to the back-in angle parking and avoid the temptation to park illegally
head-in.

In order to properly enforce this, a change to the existing Code of Ordinances will be needed.
Section 20-805 of the Code of Ordinances deals with “Parking, stopping, or standing not to
obstruct traffic.” Mr. Riesland said Section 20-805(7) states “No person shall park, stop, or stand
a vehicle facing the opposite way from the normal flow of traffic,” which is proposed to be
amended to state, “No person shall park, stop, or stand a vehicle facing the opposite way from the
normal flow of traffic including turning across a double solid yellow line to park head-in in a space
intended for reverse angle back-in parking in the opposite direction.”

Mr. Riesland said if the Committee is in agreement with the proposed Ordinance change, Staff will
work on an agenda item for Council approval. Staff will also make the arrangements necessary to
implement the back-in angle parking pilot project on the west side of James Garner Avenue
between Symmes Street and Apache Street.

Committee members unanimously supported Staff’s proposal for the pilot project and are looking
forward to hearing the results.

Items submitted for the record
1. PowerPoint presentation entitled, “Back-In Angle Parking Pilot Project on James
Garner Avenue and Associated Ordinance Change,” dated August 26, 2021

E i
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MISCELLANEOUS COMMENTS.

Ms. Susan Meyer, Norman business owner and resident, said a developer wants to build a
commercial strip mall at the northeast corner of Lindsey Street and Berry Road, which is currently
zoned R-1, Single Family Residential District. She said the developer wants special treatment to
circumvent the traffic controls the City installed along Lindsey Street and she does not believe the
developer should be allowed to have ingress and egress from Berry Road as other businesses in
the area have restrictive access to their storefronts and are not allowed to enter or exit off Berry
Road. She believes the developer’s request would cause safety issues for drivers, pedestrians, and
emergency vehicles because the intersection already has a high amount of daily traffic including
the influx of students at the University of Oklahoma. She said her insurance company refused to
renew her 20-year commercial business insurance because their algorithm shows future losses will
be too high. She said a new strip mall will only add to the existing strip mall vacancy problem and
asked that City Council please consider the traffic and safety impacts to surrounding property
owners as well as existing businesses when considering this developer’s request. She is also
concerned that a traffic impact study will not be required for the development.

Residents along Jenkins Avenue voiced concerns about the Jenkins Avenue Widening Project as
the City is allegedly wanting up to six feet of their property and is planning to remove some very
old trees. They said the University of Oklahoma is across the street and has more “empty” property
to give up than the residential property owners and wondered if the City could ask the University
for additional property for the project. Chairman Holman asked Staff to look at options to keep as
many trees as possible as well as working with property owners regarding their right-of-way
concerns.

Items submitted for the record
1. Proposed draft Accurate Traffic Data Resolution
2. Letter from Susan Meyer

* k*k *k k%

The meeting adjourned at 6:04 p.m.

ATTEST:

City Clerk Mayor
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CITY COUNCIL STUDY SESSION MINUTES

September 21, 2021
5:30 p.m.

The City Council of the City of Norman, Cleveland County, State of Oklahoma, met in a study
session at 5:30 p.m. in the Municipal Building Executive Conference Room on the 21st day of
September, 2021, and notice and agenda of the meeting were posted at the Municipal Building at
201 West Gray 24 hours prior to the beginning of the meeting.

PRESENT: Councilmembers Foreman, Hall,
Holman, Schueler, Peacock,
Tortorello, Mayor Clark

ABSENT: Councilmembers Lynn and Studley
Item 1, being:

DISCUSSION REGARDING AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT OF 2021 (ARPA)
STORMWATER PROJECTS.

Mr. Shawn O’Leary, Director of Public Works, said Stormwater Capital Improvement Projects
(CIP) generally consist of improvements to the stormwater conveyance system through
infrastructure repairs (replacing culverts, pipes, channel liners), stream stabilization (repairing
damage to streambanks caused by stormwater flows), and property acquisition/buyouts (acquiring
properties within the floodway or floodplain). He said projects can be placed on the list through
citizen, organization, or Council requests based on complaints from residents experiencing
flooding of their property. There are also special studies as a result of public or Staff identified
problem areas, such as the lower Imhoff Creek Study. He said Staff identifies problems through
routine maintenance/inspections or in response to flooding events.

There is a method detailed in the Stormwater Master Plan (SWMP) that helps determine project
prioritization that includes factors such as public safety, sustainability, funding advantages,
positive impacts on neighborhoods and the environment, relationship to other infrastructure issues,
and costs versus benefits. Ms. Carrie Evenson, Stormwater Program Manager, said factors are
weighted based on importance and each factor is then rated from most relevant to no relevance to
obtain a factor score and each project’s score is ranked accordingly. There are approximately
60 projects identified and new projects are ranked and added as necessary. The City has completed
six projects to date and the total estimated cost of the remaining projects is $106 million.

In 2019, a Stormwater Citizen Committee met for two years to discuss a Stormwater Utility (SWU)
and they recommended a SWU rate and Stormwater General Obligation (G.O.) Bond.
Mr. O’Leary said the proposed G.O. Bond was $60 million, which would be a $5.25 per month
property tax increase based on property’s market value of $150,000. At that time, 33 projects were
selected within the eight wards that included streambank stabilization, infrastructure replacement,
capacity improvements, and detention pond expansion. The proposition for the G.O. Bond and
SWU went to a vote of the people and failed.
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Ms. Evenson said potential projects using ARPA funds would be improvements to Lower Imhoff
Creek that has significant bank erosion for an overall cost of $7,500,000. He said the project would
be phased to make it easier to fund and Phase | will consist of the area south of Imhoff Road Bridge
for an estimated cost of $3,500,000. This project is currently under design (funds encumbered)
and is the highest ranking SWMP project that is “shovel ready.” Phase Il will consist of the area
north of Imhoff Road Bridge at an estimated cost of $4,500,000 to be completed at a later date.
He said property owners are losing their backyards at an alarming rate and one property owner’s
sewer infrastructure will be put into jeopardy if this project is not completed as soon as possible.

Mr. O’Leary said criteria for using ARPA funds is making sure natural materials (reverse gabion,
typical gabion, rock toe, etc.) are used for projects so no concrete retaining walls will be
constructed.

Another potential stormwater project for ARPA funds is Norman Nature Park, which is located at
South Carter Avenue and Alameda Street at an estimated cost of $1,500,000. The goal is to provide
additional floodplain storage capacity (retention basin), serve as an outdoor classroom with access
to Bishop Creek, and provide a location for green infrastructure installation and demonstration
projects. This project was originally envisioned as a stormwater remediation project, but the City
has the added benefit of being able to add park amenities and ecosystem education to the project.

Another potential stormwater project for ARPA funds is Imhoff Bridge repairs, which was given
the highest priority for maintenance in the FYE 2022 Bridge Maintenance Program. On July 29,
2021, stormwater maintenance Staff notified the City of failure of the southeast wing wall with
enough significant damage to require closure of Imhoff Road at the bridge. On August 11, 2021,
the contractor identified spalling on the northwest wing wall that had dangerously separated from
the bridge structure. The bridge needs emergency repairs at an estimated cost of $1 million or be
replaced at a cost of $4 to $5 million.

Councilmembers supported Staff’s recommendations, but wanted to continue to explore other
funding sources for lower ranked stormwater projects, such as Norman Nature Park.

Councilmembers questioned whether Cleveland County would be interested in helping fund some
of the stormwater/bridge projects. Mr. O’Leary said there is State and Federal funding available
for bridges and Staff has looked into that, but Norman’s bridges do not rank as well as road
projects. He said the City has accomplished more stormwater projects through G.O. Bonds by
combining road infrastructure with stormwater infrastructure improvements. He encouraged
Council to consider a Bridge Maintenance Bond Program and Councilmembers agreed and felt a
bridge maintenance bond package would have a very good chance of receiving approval from
voters.

Mr. Darrel Pyle, City Manager, said there is statewide recognition of aging bridge conditions and
how susceptible every community can be to loss from flooding. He said there is a lot of chatter in
Washington D.C. regarding bridges so this is a nationwide issue and there could be more funding
for bridges available through the proposed Federal Infrastructure Package (approximately 1.2 to
3.5 trillion dollars).

E i
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Councilmembers said although they support the stormwater infrastructure projects discussed
tonight, they would like to use some of the ARPA Funds to help citizens, businesses, or
organizations within the community impacted by COVID before committing anymore ARPA
Funds to other projects.

The meeting was adjourned at 6:30 p.m.

ATTEST:

City Clerk Mayor
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CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL SESSION MINUTES
September 28, 2021

The City Council of the City of Norman, Cleveland County, State of Oklahoma, met in a Special
Session at 5:00 p.m. hosted in the Municipal Building Executive Conference room on the 28th day
of September, 2021, and notice and agenda of the meeting were posted in the Municipal Building
at 201 West Gray 48 hours prior to the beginning of the meeting.

PRESENT: Councilmembers  Foreman,  Hall,
Holman, Lynn, Peacock, Schueler,
Tortorello, Mayor Clark

ABSENT: Councilmember Studley
Item 1, being:

REPORT ON THE ADVANCED METERING INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENT
RESULTS.

Mr. Chris Mattingly, Director of Utilities, said Staff will be forthcoming with a water utility rate
increase and two big ticket items for that proposal will be Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI)
and groundwater disinfection pump.

Mr. Nathan Madenwald, Utilities Engineer, said E Source, a solutions-based consulting, research
advisory, and data science firm, has done some great work on preparing information and data on
AMI in Norman. He introduced Ms. Nicole Pennington, E Source Senior Project Manager for the
AMI Assessment. Ms. Pennington said she will be presenting information on assessment
expectations, current State evaluation, goals and key messages, business case, implementation
schedule, and next steps. She introduced Mr. Todd Barlow, Executive Consultant for E Source,
who will be helping with questions at the end of the presentation.

Ms. Pennington said the purpose of the AMI Assessment was to define the overall AMI project
goals and objectives specific to the City of Norman; create a business case; assess disciplines and
technology across the organization to identify gaps and determine readiness and develop an
implementation strategy; build a stakeholder engagement vision; and present the findings and
recommendations. She said the ultimate goal is to ensure a thorough due diligence effort to the
citizens of Norman. She said City Staff is engaged and well-qualified to adopt AMI technologies
and run on very lean staffing, e.g., estimating a high number of meter reads. She said there will
be a transition with new roles and responsibilities, which is a gap across every utility in the country.
She said, as far as the technology, Norman is well positioned for billing integration and will
continue prioritization on security. She said funding will be needed that includes a proposed water
rate increase and potential Department of Interior (DOI) WaterSMART grant.

Ms. Pennington said Staff participated in an anonymous survey in July and August 2021, and top
scoring areas included stakeholder engagement; digital strategy; customer satisfaction; safety;
costs; and environmental responsibility. Lowest scoring areas included meter reading; reliability;
revenue assurance; and maintenance.
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Item 1, continued:

Goals and key messages consist of leveraging AMI technology to engage customers and enhance
their overall utility experience, such as timely usage information and alerts for leaks or high usage;
providing better data to increase responsiveness to customer inquiries thereby empowering
customers to make informed decisions; reducing manual processes (e.g., meter reading) along with
new tools to improve efficiencies resulting in fewer estimated bills, responsiveness to customer
inquiries, and an increase in value added activities. Ms. Pennington said utility analytics and
system monitoring allows Norman to make data driven decisions (e.g., water loss reduction, future
capital investments, asset management, etc.) and continually improves operational processes. The
AMI process is a natural “next step” to contributing to Norman’s community-wide environmental
sustainability effort, reduces greenhouse gases, provides a quality water system, and conserves
water by detecting leaks.

Ms. Pennington highlighted three business case scenarios as basic, moderate, and extended, which
included meter replacements, remote disconnects, sensors and Internet of Things (loT), and
software at various levels identified in the presentation. E Source recommends Norman move
forward with the moderate AMI option with net zero staffing included in the model. She
highlighted costs of basic AMI - $1,412,016; moderate AMI - $3,576,383; and extended AMI -
$9,661,789.

The implementation schedule would consist of voter approval in April 2022, procurement in
February 2023, and AMI deployment in February 2025.

Mr. Barlow said the current meters have to be replaced with smart meters in order to have reliable
and accurate readings. If the water rate increase failed, E Source would begin drilling down into
the budget and review eliminating or partially funding projects, staging projects, etc.

Councilmembers agreed there is a need to modernize the City’s infrastructure and said it will be
important for the City to educate citizens on benefits, features, and cost savings of AMI
technology.

Items submitted for the record
1. PowerPoint presentation entitled, “City of Norman Advanced Metering
Infrastructure (AMI) Assessments Results,” dated September 28, 2021
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Item 2, being:

CONSIDERATION OF ADJOURNING INTO AN EXECUTIVE SESSION AS AUTHORIZED
BY OKLAHOMA STATUTES, TITLE 25 § 307(B)(3) TO DISCUSS THE ACQUISITION OF
REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 318 EAST COMANCHE STREET AND 207 EAST GRAY
STREET.

Motion to Adjourn. Moved by Councilmember Foreman. Seconded by Councilmember Hall. Ayes:
Mayor Clark, Councilmembers Foreman, Hall, Holman, Lynn, Peacock, Schueler, and Tortorello.
Nayes: None.

The City Council convened into Executive Session at 5:38 p.m. Ms. Kathryn Walker, City Attorney;
Mr. Darrel Pyle, City Manager; Mr. Anthony Francisco, Director of Finance; Ms. Heather Poole,
Assistant City Attorney; and Mr. Jason Olsen, Director of Parks and Recreation, were in attendance
at the Executive Session.

Motion to Reconvene. Moved by Councilmember Holman. Seconded by Councilmember Foreman.
Ayes: Mayor Clark, Councilmembers Foreman, Hall, Holman, Lynn, Peacock, Schueler, and
Tortorello. Nayes: None.

The Mayor declared the motion carried and the Special Session was reconvened at 6:15 p.m.

The Mayor said the acquisition of real property located at 318 East Comanche Street and 207 East
Gray Street was discussed in Executive Session. No action was taken and no votes were cast.

** Kk k%
ADJOURNMENT
The Mayor adjourned the meeting at 6:29 p.m.

*k k* k%

ATTEST:

City Clerk Mayor
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CITY COUNCIL CONFERENCE MINUTES
October 12, 2021

The City Council of the City of Norman, Cleveland County, State of Oklahoma, met in a
conference at 5:30 p.m. in the Municipal Building Executive Conference room on the 12th day of
October, 2021, and notice and agenda of the meeting were posted at the Municipal Building at
201 West Gray 24 hours prior to the beginning of the meeting.

PRESENT: Councilmembers  Foreman, Hall,
Holman, Lynn, Peacock, Schueler,
Studley, Tortorello, Mayor Clark

ABSENT: None
Item 1, being:

DISCUSSING REGARDING THE CURRENT CITY OF NORMAN MASS TRANSIT
SYSTEM AND ON-DEMAND MICROTRANSIT SERVICE PROGRAMS.

Mr. Shawn O’Leary, Director of Public Works, introduced Dr. Marilyn Dillon, Ph.D., Mobility
Management Administrator/American with Disabilities Act (ADA) Coordinator for Embark. He
said tonight’s discussion will include background and major milestones; existing City service
overview; Regional Transportation Authority (RTA); Go Norman Transit Plan; microtransit/on-
demand services; and next steps. He said Arlington, Texas, has a program known as VIA, which
IS a private company operating an on demand microtransit system. He said the City of Norman
operates a mass transit system that moves a large number of people with large vehicles and
microtransit moves a few number of people with small vehicles. He said microtransit is naturally
more expensive, but is an on-demand service making it the Uber of transit.

In August 2018, the City was notified the University of Oklahoma (OU) wanted to transfer the
transit system to the City of Norman; in February 2019, the RTA was officially formed; in
July 2019, OU transferred the transit system to Norman and Norman partnered with EMBARK to
operate the system fare free for fixed routes and paratransit service; in November 2019, voters
approved a Public Transit Sales Tax; in July 2020, the Go Norman Study began; in November
2020, the groundbreaking for the new Transit/Public Safety Maintenance Building was held; and
in June 2021, the Go Norman Plan was unanimously approved by City Council.

Mr. Taylor Johnson, Transit and Parking Program Manager, said the Norman transit system is fare
free and operates on a fixed schedule, Monday through Friday from 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. and
Saturday from 10:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. The transit system services various destinations in Norman
and has a fleet of 13 fixed route buses which carried 189,664 passengers in FYE 21. He highlighted
the fixed routes that include Route 110 — Main Street; Route 111 — Lindsey Street East; Route 112-
Lindsey Street West; Route 120 — West Norman Link; and Route 121 — Alameda Street/East
Norman. He said two specialty routes include Route 024 — Norman/Sooner Express (operated by
EMBARK in Oklahoma City and Route 144 — Social Security (operates on Tuesday and Friday
afternoons when the Moore Social Security Office is open).
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Mr. Johnson said the paratransit system is fare free as well and operates in two zones with Zone 1
(paratransit service required to provide 3/4 mile around fixed routes) being available Monday
through Friday from 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. and Saturday from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. and Zone 2
(service of 3/4 mile to City limits provided, but not required) operates Monday through Friday
from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. He said the paratransit system has a fleet of 15 buses, which carried
16,338 passengers in FYE 21. He said since the City accepts federal funds for the transit system,
the City is required to provide a paratransit service for eligible individuals who are not functionally
able to ride fixed route bus service due to a disabling condition. He said paratransit riders must
submit an application and once approved they can schedule a trip one to seven days in advance.
He said there are currently 563 active paratransit customers.

Mr. Johnson said FYE 22 expenses are anticipated to be $7,108,252 ($5,401,850 without fleet
replacement) that includes EMBARK Interlocal Agreement - $3,585,856; Fleet Maintenance,
Fueling, Cleaning, Staff - $1,568,992; Fleet Replacement - $1,706,402; and other costs
(Administrative Staff, annual fees/memberships, etc.) - $247,002. He said FYE 22 revenues are
anticipated to be $7,108,252 ($5,487,357 without fleet replacement) that includes Annual FTA
Section 5307 Urbanized Formula Allocation/Grant - $2,000,000; Public Transit Sales Tax -
$2,550,000; FTA Section 5339c Fleet Replacement Grant - $639,969; Oklahoma Department of
Environmental Quality (ODEQ) Volkswagen Settlement Fleet Replacement Grant - $450,000;
Oklahoma Department of Transportation (ODOT) Public Transit Revolving Fund - $134,285;
Norman Regional Hospital - $50,000; Bus Stop Advertising - $12,000; and General Fund -
$1,271,998.

Mr. Johnson said a 20,000 square foot facility to house transit operations, maintenance activities,
and maintenance of heavy duty public safety equipment is under construction on North Base at a
cost of $7,584,743.41. He said the facility construction is being funded by Federal Transit
Authority (FTA) CARES Act Grant - $5,057,371; Capital Fund - $1,657,372.41; and Public Safety
Sales Tax (PSST) - $870,000. Substantial completion and move in is anticipated to be November
2021.

Currently, the City is utilizing OU’s Brooks Street Transfer Station for operations, but is working
to establish a City Transit Center in the downtown area because of existing infrastructure
(sidewalks, bike lanes/paths, access to street grid for routes, etc.), improved access to major
destinations, and continued momentum to create a more vibrant downtown. The budget for the
Transit Station is anticipated to be $1,234,900 that includes land acquisition - $442,500 and
construction/remodeling - $792,700.

The RTA was officially formed in February 2019, that included six member cities — Del City;
Edmond; Midwest City; Moore; Oklahoma City; and Norman. The Transit System Plan was
approved in April 2021, and members are currently working on an Alternative Analysis that
includes corridor planning, stations and Land Use, and concept development.
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Staff has been working with Nelson/Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc., (Nelson/Nygaard) for a
comprehensive evaluation of the existing transit service to identify opportunities to improve transit
service for the community. The study is a strategic plan to optimize and expand transit over the
next 20 years. Outreach activities included promotion of the project website to citizens and
stakeholders, public meetings, and promotion of an online survey to obtain feedback on existing
transit service and suggestions for potential improvements.

The transit study began in July 2020, and included 1) Existing Conditions Analysis — routes,
schedules, ridership, destinations, paratransit trips, demographics, employment and travel patterns;
2) Scenario Planning - consisted of community meetings and online surveys as well as discussions
with bus drivers, mechanics, and stakeholders; and 3) Report Development — route changes,
service expansion, transit center, bus stops, and new buses.

The Transit Study reviewed major destinations such as University of Oklahoma; Sooner Mall;
University Town Center; Walmart Supercenter stores; Community Services Building; and
Robinson Crossing shopping center. The study also reviewed existing routes as well as the transit
market that includes families without a car, seniors who do not drive, employees without a car,
students, low-wage employees; and commuters to and from Oklahoma City.

The Transit Study consisted of numerous public engagement activities that included online and
on-board surveys, in-person and virtual community meetings, social media posts, utility bill
inserts, project website, and posters on buses. A stakeholder group was established to solicit
feedback and share information. The final report included operational and capital
recommendations to the existing service and future expansion as well as existing conditions, fare
analysis, transit support design toolkit, and outreach summary. The Go Norman Transit Plan was
unanimously adopted by Council on June 22, 2021.

Summarized recommendations include: Update and Streamline the Route Network — realign bus
routes to better serve the needs of existing and potential transit riders by improving access to key
destinations and reducing travel time; Establish a Downtown Transit Center — relocate the local
route transfer hub from the OU Campus to Downtown Norman to maximize efficiency and allow
for future service expansion; Strategically Expand Bus Service — extend routes to serve emerging
destinations, offer longer hours and more frequent service, and operate on Sundays; Upgrade and
Standardize Fleet — replace aging vehicles and assemble a uniform fleet to minimize maintenance
costs and pursue FTA grants for replacement buses; Continue to Operate Fare Free — avoid costly
collection equipment on new buses and allow riders to adjust to route changes and the local
economy to recover from the pandemic before re-evaluating the fare policy; and Promote Transit
Supportive Land Use — make transit easier to access and encourage more sustainable development
and maximize rider safety, comfort, and convenience.

On-demand or Microtransit services at its basic level is low-capacity, flexible public transit service
that is privately or publicly operated, technology based, and uses vans or shuttle type vehicles.
Microtransit is typically deployed to compliment traditional public transit in areas of low-density
mobility, underperforming bus routes, or paratransit services. Microtransit has really started to
evolve and become more popular in the last five years.
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On-demand or Microtransit services generally have microtransit zones or offer citywide service.
Some providers include VIA (operations, maintenance, and/or technology); Spare (technology);
Moovit (technology); Routematch by Uber (technology); and RideCo (technology). Mr. Johnson
said Arlington, Texas, is the only City offering citywide on-demand transit service while a few
other cities offer microtransit zone services. He said Arlington is 99 square miles with a population
of 398,864 in 2020 and their ridership from October 1, 2020, through September 25, 2021, was
179,814. The cost of operations is $8,300,000 and they have a fare fee system as follows:

Trips from 0 to 1.5 miles - $3.00

Trips from more than 1.5 to 3 miles - $3.50

Trips from more than 3.43 to 5 miles - $4.00

Trips from less than 4.5 to 6 miles - $4.50

Trips over 6 miles - $5.00

ViaPass - $25.00 weekly pass that allows up to four trips per day

Norman has 189 square miles with a population of 125,762 and ridership of 206,002 from July 1,
2020, through June 30, 2021. Norman’s transit service is fare free and cost of operations is
$6,231,850 ($5,401,850 for operations/maintenance/administrative costs, etc., $600,000 for one
bus replacement, and $230,000 for two paratransit vehicle replacements).

Mr. Johnson highlighted testimonials from a few cities that have on-demand or microtransit
service. Tulsa Transit stated, “It is a fallacy to think on-demand is more cost effective than fixed
route. Our vision is to focus on key fixed routes and use microtransit for first and last mile service.”
Dallas Area Rapid Transit (DART) stated, “Dallas is currently operating 17 microtransit zones and
there will be an expansion to 30 zones in 2022 with some of the zones replacing fixed route services
as recommended in their DARTzoom Plan.” Denton County Transportation Authority (DCTA)
stated, “We began on-demand service on September 7, 2021, alongside the fixed route service to
observe ridership trends. Originally planned to discontinue all non-university routes on
December 6, 2021; however, it will depend on the analysis of ridership and feedback.” A Big 12
University City stated, “We would not go 100% on-demand because it is not cost effective. A
fixed route bus in a high density area gets far more productivity than a 15 passenger vehicle. Our
microtransit program is only suitable for areas where fixed routes cannot go or there is not enough
density to sustain it.”

The City of Norman initially considered microtransit service for northwest or southeast Norman
that are underserved areas, but decided not to pursue this as it was showing to result in a large
increase to the transit program budget. In the Go Norman Transit Plan planning horizon,
approximately 10 years, it was identified that there are greater needs particularly with frequency
in areas already served by fixed route service. Existing fixed routes carried ten to 40 riders per
service hour pre-pandemic and six to 17 riders per service hour in FYE 21 with limited capacity
restrictions. Existing paratransit service carried 1.5 riders per service hour pre-pandemic and per
service hour in FYE 21. On-demand/microtransit typical carries three to four riders per service
hour when used as a fixed route replacement.
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Mr. Johnson said Staff is seeking Council’s input on an EMBARK Norman Plus On-demand
Service Pilot Project by leveraging the City’s existing partnership with EMBARK. Services of
Routematch, the City’s existing paratransit software provider, can be utilized. Estimated cost
increases include operations/maintenance/and fuel - $571,830 that assumes level demand for
service to switch to on-demand; however, demand for the service could increase. In addition, if
the service remains free, costs could double to $1,143,660. This pilot project assumes no trip will
be longer than ten miles and fully loaded trip cost uses a standard cost per revenue hour ($70) and
assumes that two trips can be completed per hour. Routematch would cost an additional $127,440
for the first two years and $43,360 per year after that. There would be one-time capital cost of
$230,000 to $345,000 for two to three paratransit vehicles to handle the on-demand service.

Next steps include continuing to explore and implement the immediate/short-term Go Norman
Transit Plan recommendations to design and build a Downtown Transit Center, creating new bus
stops to serve recommended route network, and implementing recommended route network.

If Council directs pursuing implementation of on-demand paratransit pilot program, Staff
recommends a mid-fiscal year 2023 start date of January 2023. Mr. Johnson said Staff would need
to create the pilot program and policies, zones of operation, fare or no fare, marketing, etc., as well
as finalize costs and submit for EMBARK’s annual operating contract for FYE 2023. He said
finalized costs will include an increased cost for EMBARK’s annual operating contract for
FYE 2023; increased costs for City of Norman maintenance and fuel for FYE 2023; increased
costs of technology service provided by Routematch in FYE 2023; and procurement of two to
three paratransit vehicles (if funding could be realized in FYE 2022, that would be ideal due to
delay in vehicle production).

Councilmembers were very interested in a pilot program because having to schedule rides 24 hours
in advance can be a burden to citizens, particularly those with disabilities, that may need immediate
rides for any number of reasons. Councilmembers suggested reaching out to Cleveland County to
see if they would be interested in helping fund an on-demand program since many areas in
Cleveland County, such as Little Axe, have no bus service at this time.

Items submitted for the record

1. PowerPoint presentation entitled, “City of Norman Transit (Mass Transit and
Microtransit),” dated October 12, 2021

* k* Kk k%

The meeting was adjourned at 6:30 p.m.

ATTEST:

City Clerk Mayor
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CITY OF NORMAN, OK

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
Municipal Building, Council Chambers, 201 West Gray, Norman, OK 73069
Tuesday, November 30, 2021 at 6:30 PM

MINUTES

CITY COUNCIL, NORMAN UTILITIES AUTHORITY, NORMAN MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY,
AND NORMAN TAX INCREMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY

It is the policy of the City of Norman that no person or groups of persons shall on the grounds of
race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin, age, place of birth, sex, sexual orientation, gender
identity or expression, familial status, marital status, including marriage to a person of the same
sex, disability, retaliation, or genetic information, be excluded from participation in, be denied the
benefits of, or otherwise subjected to discrimination in employment activities or in all programs,
services, or activities administered by the City, its recipients, sub-recipients, and contractors. In
the event of any comments, complaints, modifications, accommodations, alternative formats,
and auxiliary aids and services regarding accessibility or inclusion, please contact the ADA
Technician at 405-366-5424, Relay Service: 711. To better serve you, five (5) business days'
advance notice is preferred.

CALL TO ORDER
Mayor Clark called the Meeting to Order at 6:30 p.m.

ROLL CALL
PRESENT

Mayor Breea Clark

Councilmember Ward 1 Brandi Studley
Councilmember Ward 2 Lauren Schueler
Councilmember Ward 3 Kelly Lynn
Councilmember Ward 4 Lee Hall
Councilmember Ward 5 Rarchar Tortorello
Councilmember Ward 6 Elizabeth Foreman
Councilmember Ward 7 Stephen Holman
Councilmember Ward 8 Matthew Peacock

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Mayor Clark led the Pledge of Allegiance.
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APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1.

Iltem 1.

CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL, REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR
POSTPONEMENT OF THE MINUTES AS FOLLOWS:

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 9, 2021

NORMAN UTILITIES AUTHORITY MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 9, 2021

NORMAN MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 9, 2021

NORMAN TAX INCREMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 9,
2021

Motion made by Councilmember Ward 2 Schueler, Seconded by Councilmember
Ward 6 Foreman.

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2
Schueler, Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember
Ward 5 Tortorello, Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman,
Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock

Items submitted for the record

Staff Report dated November 30, 2021, from Brenda Hall, City Clerk
City Council Minutes of November 9, 2021

Norman Utilities Authority minutes of November 9, 2021

Norman Municipal Authority minutes of November 9, 2021

Norman Tax Increment Finance Authority minutes of November 9, 2021

arwnpE

The Minutes were Approved.

* k k k%

AWARDS AND PRESENTATIONS

2.

PRESENTATION OF AN AWARD FOR LAW ENFORCEMENT RE-ACCREDITATION
TO THE NORMAN POLICE DEPARTMENT FROM THE OKLAHOMA ASSOCIATION
OF CHIEFS OF POLICE.

Mr. Kevin McCullough, Chair of Accreditation Committee for the Oklahoma Association
of Chiefs of Police, presented a Leadership Award and Renewal of Accreditation to
Major Brent Barbour.

ltems submitted for the record
1. Staff Report dated November 30, 2021, from Kevin Foster, Chief of Police, and
Oklahoma Association of Chiefs of Police

* % k k%

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING - Tuesday, November 30, 2021 Page |2

38




PROCLAMATIONS

3.

B

Iltem 1.

CONSIDERATION OF ACKNOWLEDGEMENT, APPROVAL, REJECTION,
AMENDMENT, AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF PROCLAMATION P-2122-14:
PROCLAIMING FRIDAY, DECEMBER 3, 2021, AS INTERNATIONAL DAY OF PEOPLE
WITH DISABILITIES IN THE CITY OF NORMAN.

Motion made by Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock, Seconded by Councilmember Ward 6
Foreman.

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2
Schueler, Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember
Ward 5 Tortorello, Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman,
Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock

Items submitted for the record

1. Staff Report dated November 30, 2021, from Cinthya Allen, Chief Diversity and
Equity Officer

2. Proclamation P-2122-14

Participants in discussion

1. Ms. Miranda Hooper, Chair of Norman Citizens ADA Advisory Committee and
Cleveland County Disability Coalition, and Mr. Victor Long, member of the
ADA Citizens Advisory Committee and Cleveland County Disability Coalition,
accepted proclamations and thanked the Council

Receipt of the Proclamation was Acknowledged.

* k k x %

CONSIDERATION OF ACKNOWLEDGEMENT, APPROVAL, REJECTION,
AMENDMENT, AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF PROCLAMATION P-2122-15: A
PROCLAMATION OF THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA,
PROCLAIMING FRIDAY, DECEMBER 10, 2021, AS INTERNATIONAL HUMAN RIGHTS
DAY IN THE CITY OF NORMAN.

Motion made by Councilmember Ward 7 Holman, Seconded by Councilmember Ward 2
Schueler.

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2
Schueler, Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember
Ward 5 Tortorello, Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman,
Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock

Items submitted for the record
1. Staff Report dated November 30, 2021, from Cinthya Allen, Chief Diversity and
Equity Officer
2. Proclamation P-2122-15
Participants in discussion
1. Mr. Brent Smith, Chair of the Norman Coalition for Refugee Support, accepted the
proclamation and thanked the Council

Receipt of the Proclamation was acknowledged.

* k k k%

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING - Tuesday, November 30, 2021 Page |3

39




COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS ltem 1.

Giving Tuesday. Councilmember Schueler said today, November 30th, is "Giving Tuesday" and
asked residents to give to the non-profits if they are able to give.

*

Homeless GAPS Analysis Survey. Councilmember Schueler said there will be two public meetings
regarding the Homeless GAPS Analysis Survey on Monday, December 6th, at the Norman Central
Library, the first meeting is from 10:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. and the second will be from 5:30 p.m. to
7:30 p.m. This is an opportunity for citizens to provide input on priorities needed to address
homelessness in our community. She said there is also an online survey that citizens can fill out and
the links to the survey are on the City website.

Councilmember Hall said this meeting is part of the overall plan designed from the very beginning to
have a preliminary plan and the preliminary report presented to Council. She said now is the time
for community engagement by attending these meetings and to fill out the brief survey because the
feedback is so important to this process.

[-35 Corridor. Councilmember Schueler said the Oklahoma Department of Transportation (ODOT)
is working on updating and improving the 1-35 corridor between S.W. 4th Street in Moore and
Robinson Street in Norman. In order to receive input, she said ODOT has a Virtual Open House
that started on November 15th and will run through December 10th. She said the link is available
on the ODOT Website or through the City of Norman Facebook Page. She said her Councilmember
Page also shares the link.

The Well. Councilmember Hall welcomed The Well to Ward 4 and Center City. She was delighted
to be able to attend the Grand Opening on November 12th of this transformational Cleveland County
Project built in the heart of Norman. She said she is excited about the impact the facility will make
on Norman as a whole and all of the opportunities and partnerships that are being created to promote
wellness in Cleveland County. She said this project is so important for the James Garner Corridor
that connects Main Street to the University of Oklahoma Campus.

*

Diversity and Equity. Councilmember Hall said on Wednesday, December 1st, from 6:00-8:00 p.m.,
the City of Norman and Cinthya Allen, Chief Diversity and Equity Officer, are hosting a Community
and Conversation Event to encourage involvement through dialogue and awareness regarding
diversity and equity and to learn more about the division's programs, goals, and initiatives. She said
she appreciates Ms. Allen making this opportunity available to the community and hopes everyone
will attend.

Councilmember Peacock said the event will be at the Central Norman Library. He said being
informed and having two-way dialogue is critical to insuring the services and programming provided
by the City of Norman addresses the community in ways which are meaningful and effective. He
said this event is a first of a series with a goal of continuing open dialogue and broad community
engagement. He thanked Ms. Allen for all of her hard work.

*
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Councilmember Announcements, continued:

Iltem 1.

City Council Oversight Committee. Councilmember Hall said the City Council Oversight
Committee Meeting will be held Thursday, December 9th, at 4:00 p.m. She said this meeting
will, for the first time, provide a monthly update of the City's continuing efforts to reduce
homelessness in Norman.

Andrews Parks Tree Lighting. Councilmember Hall said on Friday, December 10th, at 5:30 p.m.
will be the Andrews Park Tree Lighting. She said those who come will enjoy hot cocoa, holiday
music, and the tree lighting. She said at 7:00 p.m. participants will walk to the Central Library
where the Pioneer Library System will be hosting crafts, story time, and photos with Santa.

*

Second Friday Art Walk. Councilmember Hall announced the Second Friday Art Walk will be
held December 10th from 6-9 p.m. in the Walker Arts District and Historical Downtown
Norman. She said this is a great time to remind residents to "Shop Local" and "Shop Small" and
support all of the City's local artists.

Lincoln Riley. Councilmember Foreman said Norman has been a divided city for the last year
and a half and it is a beautiful thing to put our differences aside to all band together with our
dislike of Lincoln Riley right now. She said "Forget Him", "In Bob, we trust" and Boomer Sooner.

*

State of the City. Councilmember Holman thanked Mayor Clark and Governor John Johnson,
Absentee Shawnee Tribe, for the “State of the City and State of the Absentee Shawnee Tribe"
this evening. He said it provided some very informative statistics, projects, and updates about
projects. He urged those who missed the presentation to watch it on YouTube.

Mayor Clark said that was the longest speech she has given but that is because there is a long
list of accomplishments in our Community and also a long list of things to look forward to.

*

Community Planning and Transportation Committee (CPTC). Councilmember Holman said the
CPTC hasn't been scheduled yet for December but he would like to meet. He said a Public
Transit update is provided at each meeting. He said those who cannot attend can watch the
meeting on YouTube.

*

Norman Music Festival. Councilmember Holman said the Norman Music Festival will be back
this year at the end of April, 2022. He said there are only two days left for musicians and
performers to submit an application.

Councilmember Announcements, continued:
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Ugly Sweater 5K. Mayor Clark said she is going to put on an ugly sweater and attend the Ugly
Sweater 5K with the Mayor. She said it will be at Ruby Grant Park, Saturday, December 11th,
at 10:00 a.m.

Listening Session with  Norman Police Department. Mayor Clark said on Wednesday,
December 8th, from 6:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. at the Central Norman Library is a Listening Session
with Norman Police Department regarding the restructuring with our Community Outreach
Bureau. She said she looks forward to Captain Stacy Clements joining Council to continue this
conversation.

CONSENT DOCKET

This item is placed on the agenda so that the City Council, by unanimous consent, can designate
those routine agenda items that they wish to be approved or acknowledged by one motion. If
any item proposed does not meet with approval of all Councilmembers, that item will be heard
in regular order. Staff recommends that Item 5 through Item 35 be placed on the consent docket.

Motion made by Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock, Seconded by Councilmember Ward 7
Holman.

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2 Schueler,
Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember Ward 5 Tortorello,
Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman, Councilmember Ward 8
Peacock

Item 5 through 35 were Placed on the Consent Docket.

* k * k%

First Reading Ordinances

5. CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION, REJECTION, AMENDMENT AND/OR
POSTPONEMENT OF ORDINANCE 0-2122-32 UPON FIRST READING BY TITLE:
AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA,
FIXING THE COMPENSATION OF THE CITY MANAGER AS PROVIDED BY
ARTICLE XVII, SECTION 1, OF THE CHARTER OF THE CITY OF NORMAN; AND
PROVIDING FOR THE SEVERABILITY THEREOF.

Motion made by Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Seconded by Councilmember Ward 7
Holman.

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2
Schueler, Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember
Ward 5 Tortorello, Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman,
Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock

ltem 5, continued:
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Ordinance 0-2122-32 was Adopted Upon First Reading by Title.

Items submitted for the record
1. Staff Report dated November 30, 2021, from Kathryn Walker, City Attorney
2. Ordinance 0-2122-32

* k k k%

Appointments

6. CONSIDERATION OF CONFIRMATION, REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR
POSTPONEMENT OF THE MAYOR’S APPOINTMENTS AS FOLLOWS:

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
TERM: 12-22-21 TO 12-21-24: CURTIS MCCARTY, WARD 8
TERM: 12-22-21 TO 12-21-24: PATRICK SCHRANK, WARD 6

ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL ADVISORY BOARD
TERM: 10-27-21 TO 10-27-24: NATHALIE ROCHER, WARD 4

NORMAN FORWARD CITIZENS FINANCE OVERSIGHT BOARD
TERM: 12-22-21 TO 12-22-24: ERIK PAULSON, WARD 2
TERM: 12-22-21 TO 12-22-24: LINDA PRICE, WARD 1
TERM: 12-22-21 TO 12-22-24: ANDY RIEGER, WARD 4

NORMAN HOUSING AUTHORITY
TERM: 11-21-21 TO 11-21-24: PAUL AUSTIN, WARD 6

Motion made by Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Seconded by Councilmember Ward 7
Holman.

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2
Schueler, Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember
Ward 5 Tortorello, Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman,
Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock

ltems submitted for the record
1. Staff Report dated November 30, 2021, from Brenda Hall, City Clerk

The Appointments were Confirmed.

* k% k% %
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Reports/Communications

7. CONSIDERATION OF ACKNOWLEDGEMENT, APPROVAL, ACCEPTANCE,
REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF RECEIPT OF THE
FINANCE DIRECTOR'S INVESTMENT REPORT AS OF OCTOBER 31, 2021, AND
DIRECTING THE FILING THEREOF.

Motion made by Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Seconded by Councilmember Ward 7
Holman.

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2
Schueler, Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember
Ward 5 Tortorello, Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman,
Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock

Items submitted for the record
1. Staff Report dated November 30, 2021, from Anthony Francisco, Director of
Finance
2. Finance Director’s Investment Report as of October 31, 2021

Receipt of the Report was Acknowledged.

* %k x %x

8. CONSIDERATION OF ACKNOWLEDGEMENT, APPROVAL, ACCEPTANCE,
REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF THE MONTHLY
DEPARTMENTAL REPORT FOR THE MONTH OF OCTOBER, 2021.

Motion made by Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Seconded by Councilmember Ward 7
Holman.

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2
Schueler, Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember
Ward 5 Tortorello, Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman,
Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock

Items submitted for the record
1. Staff Report dated November 30, 2021, from Stacey Parker, Executive
Assistant
2. Monthly Departmental Reports for the month of October, 2021

Receipt of the Report was Acknowledged.

* k% k% %
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Authorization for Purchase

9. CONSIDERATION OF AUTHORIZATION, APPROVAL, REJECTION, AMENDMENT,
AN OR POSTPONEMENT OF THE PURCHASE OF BUILDINGS AND CONTENTS
INSURANCE FOR THE CITY OF NORMAN FROM AFFILIATED FM INSURANCE
COMPANY IN THE AMOUNT OF $405,229 FOR THE PERIOD OF DECEMBER 1,
2021, TO DECEMBER 1, 2022, AND BUDGET APPROPRIATION FROM THE RISK
MANAGEMENT FUND BALANCE.

Motion made by Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Seconded by Councilmember Ward 7
Holman.

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2
Schueler, Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember
Ward 5 Tortorello, Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman,
Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock

Items submitted for the record

1. Staff Report dated November 30, 2021, from Clint Mercer, Chief Accountant

2. Proposal of Insurance for the City of Norman, Oklahoma, and Norman Utilities
Authority effective December 1, 2021, and presented December 3, 2021,
prepared by Denise Engle, MBA, CPCU, AIC, Insurance Broker, Arthur J.
Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc. with Appendix, Bindable Quotations
and Compensation Disclosure Schedule; Binding Requirements; Claims
Reporting by Policy; CORE™ Loss Control Flyer; Cyber Liability eRiskHub
Features; Appendix A, Affiliated FM Insurance Company and Attachment,
Property Schedule for Insurance22

The Purchase of Buildings and Contents Insurance was Approved.

* %k k%

Acceptance of Funds

10. CONSIDERATION OF ACCEPTANCE, REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR
POSTPONEMENT OF AN INCENTIVE PAYMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $8,143 FROM
THE PEPSI BEVERAGES COMPANY TO THE NORMAN MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY
FOR THE EXCLUSIVE SALE OF PEPSI PRODUCTS AT THE WESTWOOD GOLF
COURSE AND WESTWOOD FAMILY AQUATIC CENTER AND BUDGET
APPROPRIATION AS OUTLINED IN THE STAFF REPORT.

Motion made by Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Seconded by Councilmember Ward 7
Holman.

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2
Schueler, Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember
Ward 5 Tortorello, Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman,
Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock
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Items submitted for the record
1. Staff Report dated November 30, 2021, from Jason Olsen, Director of Parks
and Recreation
2. Contract K-1819-105

The Incentive Payment from Pepsi Beverages Company was Accepted.

* k k% %

Easement

11.

12.

CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL, ACCEPTANCE, REJECTION, AMENDMENT,
AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF EASEMENT E-2122-17: A PERMANENT DRAINAGE
EASEMENT DONATED BY DURWIN J. GAITHER FOR THE WEST IMHOFF ROAD
BRIDGE EMERGENCY REPAIR PROJECT.

Motion made by Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Seconded by Councilmember Ward 7
Holman.

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2
Schueler, Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember
Ward 5 Tortorello, Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman,
Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock

Items submitted for the record
1. Staff Report dated November 30, 2021, from Joseph Hill, Streets Program
Manager
2. Easement E-2122-17 with Exhibit “A”, location map and legal description
3. Easement Table

Easement E-2122-17 was Accepted.

* k% k% %

CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL, ACCEPTANCE, REJECTION, AMENDMENT,
AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF EASEMENT E-2122-18: A PERMANENT DRAINAGE
EASEMENT DONATED BY JENNIFER ANDERSON AND PETER SOPPELSA, JOINT
TENANTS, FOR THE WEST IMHOFF ROAD BRIDGE EMERGENCY REPAIR
PROJECT.

Motion made by Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Seconded by Councilmember Ward 7
Holman.

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2
Schueler, Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember
Ward 5 Tortorello, Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman,
Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock
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13.

14.

Iltem 1.

Items submitted for the record
1. Staff Report dated November 30, 2021, from Joseph Hill, Streets Program
Manager
2. Easement E-2122-18 with Exhibit “A”, location map and legal description
3. Easement Table

Easement E-2122-18 was Accepted.

* k k% %

CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL, ACCEPTANCE, REJECTION, AMENDMENT,

AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF EASEMENT E-2122-19: a PERMANENT DRAINAGE
EASEMENT FROM SARAH HOLLAND AND ROBERT ASHLEY, JOINT TENANTS, IN
THE AMOUNT OF $10,400 FOR THE WEST IMHOFF ROAD BRIDGE EMERGENCY
REPAIR PROJECT.

Motion made by Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Seconded by Councilmember Ward 7
Holman.

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2
Schueler, Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember
Ward 5 Tortorello, Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman,
Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock

Items submitted for the record
1. Staff Report dated November 30, 2021, from Joseph Hill, Streets Program
Manager
2. Easement E-2122-19 with Exhibit “A”, location map and legal description
3. Easement Table
4. Easement location map

Easement E-2122-19 was Accepted.

* %k k%

CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL, GRANT, REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR

POSTPONEMENT OF EASEMENT E-2122-22: GRANTING AN EASEMENT TO
OKLAHOMA ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE TO PROVIDE ELECTRICAL SERVICE TO
THE NEW SANITATION CONTAINER MAINTENANCE BUILDING AT 3440 JENKINS
AVENUE.

Motion made by Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Seconded by Councilmember Ward 7
Holman.
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Item 14, continued:

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2
Schueler, Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember Ward
5 Tortorello, Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman,
Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock

Items submitted for the record
1. Staff Report dated November 30, 2021, from Nathan Madenwald, Utilities Engineer
2. Easement E-2122-22 with Exhibit “A”, location map and legal description
3. Project location map

Easement E-2122-22 was Granted.

*k k k%

Special Claims

15. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL, REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR
POSTPONEMENT OF SPECIAL CLAIM SC-2122-2: SUBMITTED BY BRENT AND
KAREN SHAMBAUGH IN THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF $16,192.57 FOR VEHICLE DAMAGE
AND CAR RENTAL FEES DUE TO AN INCIDENT WITH A SANITATION DIVISION TRASH
TRUCK ON 24TH AVENUE S.W. ON JUNE 1, 2021.

Motion made by Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Seconded by Councilmember Ward 7
Holman.

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2
Schueler, Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember
Ward 5 Tortorello, Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman,
Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock

Items submitted for the record

1. Staff Report dated November 30, 2021, from Anthony Purinton, Assistant City
Attorney

2. Estimate of Record dated October 11, 2021, in the amount of $6,242.24 from Mills
Body Shop

3. Vehicle Rental Agreement dated June 11, 2021, in the amount of $798.77 from
Enterprise Rental Car

4. Rental Record 997977816 from June 21, 2021, to July 20, 2021, in the amount of
$2,328.66 from Hertz Multi Month Rental Program

5. Rental Record 997977831 from August 20, 2021, to September 18, 2021, in the
amount of $2,275.15 from Hertz Multi Month Rental Program

6. Rental Record 997977842 from September 19, 2021, to October 15, 2021, in the
amount of $2,241.62 from Hertz Multi Month Rental Program

7  Photographs of damage to vehicle

8. Official Oklahoma Traffic Collision Report dated June 1, 2021

The Special Claim was Approved.

*k k k%
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Contracts

16. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL, ACCEPTANCE, REJECTION, AMENDMENT,
AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF AMENDMENT NO. ONE CONTRACT K-1213-160: BY
AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA, AND GARVER, L.L.C,,
INCREASING THE CONTRACT AMOUNT BY $22,500 FOR A REVISED CONTRACT
AMOUNT OF $219,475 TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL DESIGN SERVICES ON THE
ALAMEDA STREET WIDENING PROJECT FROM RIDGE LAKE BOULEVARD TO
48TH AVENUE S.E. AND BUDGET TRANSFER AS OUTLINED IN THE STAFF
REPORT.

Motion made by Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Seconded by Councilmember Ward 7
Holman.

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2
Schueler, Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember
Ward 5 Tortorello, Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman,
Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock

Items submitted for the record

1. Staff Report dated November 30, 2021, from Tim Miles, Capital Projects
Engineer

2. Amendment No. One to Contract K-1213-160 with Attachment C,
Compensation

3. Contract K-1213-160 with Attachment A, Scope of Services; Attachment B,
Project Schedule; Attachment C, Compensation; and Attachment D, Owner’s
Responsibilities

4. Project location map

Amendment No. One to Contract K-1213-160 was Approved.

R I A

17. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL, ACCEPTANCE, REJECTION, AMENDMENT,
AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF AMENDMENT AND ADDENDUM NO. TWO TO
CONTRACT K-1819-70: BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA,
AND THE BALL CLUBS OF NORMAN (FORMERLY NORMAN YOUTH BASEBALL
ACADEMY) FOR THE USE OF REAVES PARK BASEBALL/SOFTBALL FIELDS AND
COMPLEX FOR THE PURPOSE OF ORGANIZING AND PROVIDING YOUTH AND
ADULT BASEBALL AND SOFTBALL PROGRAMS FOR THE CITY OF NORMAN FOR
A PERIOD OF FIVE YEARS.

Motion made by Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Seconded by Councilmember Ward 7
Holman.

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2
Schueler, Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember
Ward 5 Tortorello, Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman,
Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock
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18.

19.

Iltem 1.

Items submitted for the record
1. Staff Report dated November 30, 2021, from Jason Olsen, Director of Parks
and Recreation
2.  Amendment No. One and Addendum No. Two to Contract K-1819-70
3. Aerial location map of Reaves Park future improvements
4. Request for Proposal RFP-1819-22 with Attachment “A”, Operational Structure

Amendment No. One and Addendum No. Two to Contract K-1819-70 were
Approved.

* k k k%

CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL, ACCEPTANCE, REJECTION, AMENDMENT,
AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF THE FINAL ACCEPTANCE OF CONTRACT
K-1819-133 (AMENDMENT NO. TWO): BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF NORMAN,
OKLAHOMA, AND CROSSLAND CONSTRUCTION COMPANY FOR THE NORMAN
FORWARD YOUTH FOOTBALL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT AND FINAL PAYMENT
OF $58,952.69.

Motion made by Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Seconded by Councilmember Ward 7
Holman.

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2
Schueler, Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember
Ward 5 Tortorello, Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman,
Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock

Items submitted for the record
1. Staff Report dated November 30, 2021, from Jason Olsen, Director of Parks
and Recreation
2. Application and Certificate for Payment dated November 18, 2021, in the
amount of $58,952.69 from Crossland Construction Company

Final Acceptance of Contract K-1819-133 (Amendment No. Two) was Approved.

* k * k%

CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL, ACCEPTANCE, REJECTION, AMENDMENT,
AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF THE FINAL ACCEPTANCE OF CONTRACT
K-1819-133 AMENDMENT NO. THREE: BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF NORMAN,
OKLAHOMA, AND CROSSLAND CONSTRUCTION COMPANY FOR THE
SOUTHEAST PARKING ADDITION AT RUBY GRANT PARK (PHASE 1B) PROJECT
AND FINAL PAYMENT OF $16,228.35.

Motion made by Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Seconded by Councilmember Ward 7
Holman.
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Iltem 1.

Iltem 19, continued:

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2
Schueler, Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember
Ward 5 Tortorello, Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman,
Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock

Items submitted for the record
1. Staff Report dated November 30, 2021, from Jason Olsen, Director of Parks
and Recreation
2. Application and Certificate for Payment dated November 18, 2021, in the
amount of $16,228.35 from Crossland Construction Company

Final Acceptance of Contract K-1819-133 (Amendment No. Three) was Approved.

* k *x k%

20. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL, ACCEPTANCE, REJECTION, AMENDMENT,
AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF CHANGE ORDER NO. ONE TO CONTRACT
K-1920-7: BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA, AND CENTRAL
CONTRACTING SERVICES, INC., DECREASING THE CONTRACT AMOUNT BY
$3,130.50 FOR A REVISED AMOUNT OF $305,104.50 FOR THE URBAN CONCRETE
PAVEMENT PROJECT, FYE 2020 LOCATIONS, BID 1, (LAKECREST DRIVE FROM
12TH AVENUE N.E. TO ERIE AVENUE AND MCKINLEY AVENUE AND GEORGE
AVENUE FROM LINDSEY STREET TO STINSON STREET), FINAL ACCEPTANCE
OF THE PROJECT, AND FINAL PAYMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $12,405.24.

Motion made by Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Seconded by Councilmember Ward 7
Holman.

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2
Schueler, Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember
Ward 5 Tortorello, Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman,
Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock

Items submitted for the record
1. Staff Report dated November 30, 2021, from Joseph Hill, Streets Program
Manager
2. Change Order No. One to Contract K-1920-7
3. Project location map

Change Order No. One to Contract K-1920-7 and Final Acceptance of the Project
were Approved.

* k *x k%
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21. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL, ACCEPTANCE, REJECTION, AMENDMEN "*"*

AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF CHANGE ORDER NO. ONE TO CONTRACT K-1920-47:
BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA, AND CENTRAL
CONTRACTING SERVICES, INC., DECREASING THE CONTRACT AMOUNT BY
$3,184.50 FOR A REVISED CONTRACT AMOUNT OF $298,970.50 FOR THE URBAN
CONCRETE PAVEMENT FYE 2020 LOCATIONS, PROJECT 3, (GLENWOOD STREET,
WIND HILL ROAD, ABE MARTIN DRIVE; LEANING ELM DRIVE; WINDING CREEK
CIRCLE; WOODCREST CREEK DRIVE; HEMPSTEAD COURT; ROCKRIDGE COURT;
AND CHARLES STREET), FINAL ACCEPTANCE OF THE PROJECT, AND FINAL
PAYMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $12,098.54.

Motion made by Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Seconded by Councilmember Ward 7
Holman.

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2
Schueler, Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember
Ward 5 Tortorello, Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman

Items submitted for the record
1. Staff Report dated November 30, 2021, from Joseph Hill, Streets Program
Manager
2. Change Order No. One to Contract K-1920-47
3. Project location map

Change Order No. One to Contract K-1920-47 and Final Acceptance of the Project
were Approved.

* k k k%

22. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL, ACCEPTANCE, REJECTION, AMENDMENT,
AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF FINAL ACCEPTANCE OF CONTRACT K-2021-89: BY
AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA, AND CIMARRON
CONSTRUCTION COMPANY FOR THE CRESTON WAY AND SCHULTZ DRIVE
DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENT PROJECT AND FINAL PAYMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF
$53,690.36.

Motion made by Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Seconded by Councilmember Ward 7
Holman.

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2
Schueler, Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember Ward
5 Tortorello, Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman,
Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock

Items submitted for the record
1. Staff Report dated November 30, 2021, from Hans Osgood, Stormwater Program
Manager
2. Application and Certificate for Payment dated October 18, 2021, in the amount of
$53,690.36 from Cimarron Construction Company

Final Acceptance of Contract K-2021-89 was Approved.

*k k k%
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23.

24.

CONSIDERATION _OF APPROVAL, REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/q "™*

POSTPONEMENT OF AMENDMENT NO. TWO TO CONTRACT K-2021-97: BY AND
BETWEEN THE NORMAN MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY AND GE JOHNSON
CONSTRUCTION COMPANY INCREASING THE CONTRACT AMOUNT BY
$12,875,632 FOR A REVISED CONTRACT AMOUNT OF $16,280,106 FOR
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT AT RISK SERVICES TO PROVIDE BUILDING
CONCRETE, STEEL/JOIST/DECK FABRICATION & ERECTION, POOLS,
CONCRETE/ASPHALT EXTERIOR PAVING, SITE UTILITIES AND CONSTRUCTION
CONTINGENCY FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE YOUNG FAMILY ATHLETIC
CENTER AND BUDGET TRANSFER AS OUTLINED IN THE STAFF REPORT.

Acting as the Norman Municipal Authority
Motion made by Trustee Ward 4 Hall, Seconded by Trustee Ward 7 Holman.

Voting Yea: Chairman Clark, Trustee Ward 1 Studley, Trustee Ward 2 Schueler,
Trustee Ward 3 Lynn, Trustee Ward 4 Hall, Trustee Ward 5 Tortorello, Trustee Ward 6
Foreman, Trustee Ward 7 Holman, Trustee Ward 8 Peacock

Items submitted for the record
1. Staff Report dated November 30, 2021, from Jason Olsen, Director of Parks
and Recreation
2.  Amendment No. Two to Contract K-2021-97

Amendment No. Two to Contract K-2021-97 was Approved.

* k *k k%

CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL, ACCEPTANCE, REJECTION, AMENDMENT,
AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF CHANGE ORDER NO.TWO TO CONTRACT
K-2122-2: BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA, AND
EMC SERVICES, L.L.C., INCREASING THE CONTRACT AMOUNT BY $18,453 FOR
A REVISED CONTRACT AMOUNT OF $875,248 ADDING THE ACRES STREET
INSET PARKING PROJECT LOCATION TO THE URBAN CONCRETE FYE 2022
LOCATIONS PROJECT, BID #1, AND BUDGET TRANSFER AS OUTLINED IN THE
STAFF REPORT.

Motion made by Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Seconded by Councilmember Ward 7
Holman.

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2
Schueler, Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember
Ward 5 Tortorello, Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman,
Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock
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ltem 24, continued:

25.

26.

Iltem 1.

Items submitted for the record
1. Staff Report dated November 30, 2021, from Joseph Hill, Streets Program
Manager
2. Change Order No. 2 to Contract K-2122-2
3. Project location map
4. Schematic drawing of Acres Street Inset Parking Project

Change Order No. Two to Contract K-2122-2 was Approved.

* k% *x % %

CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL, ACCEPTANCE, REJECTION, AMENDMENT,
AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF THE FINAL ACCEPTANCE OF CONTRACT K-2122-7:
BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA, AND ASTI SAWING, INC.,
THE FYE 2022 SIDEWALK HORIZONTAL SAW CUTTING PROJECT AND FINAL
PAYMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $34,470.

Motion made by Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Seconded by Councilmember Ward 7
Holman.

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2
Schueler, Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember
Ward 5 Tortorello, Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman,
Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock

ltems submitted for the record
1. Staff Report dated November 30, 2021, from Nate McNeely, Engineering
Assistant

Final Acceptance of Contract K-2121-7 was Approved.

* k * k%

CONSIDERATION OF AWARDING, APPROVAL, ACCEPTANCE, ADOPTION,
REJECTION, AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL
RFP-2122-20, CONTRACT K-2122-64 BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF NORMAN,
OKLAHOMA, AND HAPPY PLAYGROUNDS, L.L.C., IN THE AMOUNT OF $180,000,
PERFORMANCE BOND B-2122-46, STATUTORY BOND B-2122-47, AND
MAINTENANCE BOND MB-2122-33 FOR THE VINEYARD PARK PLAYGROUND
PROJECT AND RESOLUTION R-2122-42 GRANTING TAX-EXEMPT STATUS.

Motion made by Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Seconded by Councilmember Ward 7
Holman.

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2
Schueler, Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember
Ward 5 Tortorello, Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman,
Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING - Tuesday, November 30, 2021 Page |18

54




Iltem 1.

ltem 26, continued:

Items submitted for the record
1. Staff Report dated November 30, 2021, from Jason Olsen, Director of Parks
and Recreation
Contract K-2122-64
Performance Bond B-2122-46
Statutory Bond B-2122-47
Maintenance Bond B-2122-33
Resolution R-2122-42

R

The Request for Proposal, Contract K-2122-64, and Associated Bonds were
Approved and Resolution R-2122-42 was Adopted.

* k k k%

27. CONSIDERATION OF AUTHORIZATION, APPROVAL, ADOPTION, REJECTION,
AMENDMENT, AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF CONTRACT K-2122-70: A
MAINTENANCE, FINANCING, AND RIGHT-OF-WAY AGREEMENT BY AND
BETWEEN THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA, AND THE OKLAHOMA
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR FEDERAL-AID PROJECT
TAP214E(102)AG, STATE JOB 33271(04), FOR THE CONSTITUTION STREET
MULTI-MODAL PATH BETWEEN JENKINS AVENUE AND CLASSEN BOULEVARD,
ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION R-2122-62, AND PAYMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF
$545,459 TO THE OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR THE
LOCAL SHARE OF THE PROJECT COST.

Motion made by Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Seconded by Councilmember Ward 7
Holman.

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2
Schueler, Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember
Ward 5 Tortorello, Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman,
Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock

Items submitted for the record
1. Staff Report dated November 30, 2021, from Mike Rayburn, Capital Projects
Engineer
2. Contract K-2122-70
3. Resolution R-2122-62
4. Invoice dated October 20, 2021, in the amount of $61,842 from the Oklahoma
Department of Transportation
5. Project location map
Participants in discussion
1. Mr. Shawn O’Leary, Director of Public Works

Contract K-2122-70 was Approved and Resolution R-2122-62 was Adopted.

* %k k%
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Resolutions

28.

29.

Iltem 1.

CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION, REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR
POSTPONEMENT OF RESOLUTION R-2122-50: A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA, PROGRAMMING AIR QUALITY SMALL
GRANT PROGRAM FUNDS FOR THE COMPLETION OF A SIDEWALK GAP
PROJECT ON THE NORTH SIDE OF ROCK CREEK ROAD EXTENDING 850 FEET
WEST OF PORTER AVENUE ALONG THE FEDERAL FUNCTIONALLY CLASSIFIED
TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM IN NORMAN.

Motion made by Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Seconded by Councilmember Ward 7
Holman.

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2
Schueler, Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember
Ward 5 Tortorello, Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman,
Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock

Items submitted for the record
1. Staff Report dated November 30, 2021, from David Riesland, Transportation
Engineer
2. Resolution R-2122-50

Resolution R-2122-50 was Adopted.

* %k k%

CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION, REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR
POSTPONEMENT OF RESOLUTION R-2122-51: A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA, PROGRAMMING AIR QUALITY SMALL
GRANT FUNDS FOR THE COMPLETION OF A SIDEWALK GAP PROJECT ON THE
NORTH SIDE OF ROBINSON STREET EXTENDING 420 FEET EAST OF PETERS
AVENUE ALONG THE FEDERAL FUNCTIONALLY CLASSIFIED TRANSPORTATION
SYSTEM IN NORMAN.

Motion made by Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Seconded by Councilmember Ward 7
Holman.

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2
Schueler, Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember
Ward 5 Tortorello, Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman,
Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock

Items submitted for the record
1. Staff Report dated November 30, 2021, from David Riesland, Transportation
Engineer
2. Resolution R-2122-51

Resolution R-2122-51 was Adopted.

* %k k%

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING - Tuesday, November 30, 2021 Page |20

56




30.

31.

CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION, REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/C

Iltem 1.

POSTPONEMENT OF RESOLUTION R-2122-52: A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA, PROGRAMMING AIR QUALITY SMALL
GRANT PROGRAM FUNDS FOR THE ADDITION OF BICYCLE LANES ALONG BOTH
SIDES OF WEBSTER AVENUE BETWEEN DAWS STREET AND DUFFY STREET
ALONG THE FEDERAL FUNCTIONALLY CLASSIFIED TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM
IN NORMAN.

Motion made by Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Seconded by Councilmember Ward 7
Holman.

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2
Schueler, Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember
Ward 5 Tortorello, Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman,
Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock

Items submitted for the record
1. Staff Report dated November 30, 2021, from David Riesland, Transportation
Engineer
2. Resolution R-2122-52

Resolution R-2122-52 was Adopted.

R I A

CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION, REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR
POSTPONEMENT OF RESOLUTION R-2122-53: A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA, PROGRAMMING AIR QUALITY SMALL
GRANT PROGRAM FUNDS FOR THE ADDITION OF BICYCLE LANES ALONG BOTH
SIDES OF UNIVERSITY BOULEVARD BETWEEN APACHE STREET AND BOYD
STREET ALONG THE FEDERAL FUNCTIONALLY CLASSIFIED TRANSPORTATION
SYSTEM IN NORMAN.

Motion made by Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Seconded by Councilmember Ward 7
Holman.

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2
Schueler, Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember
Ward 5 Tortorello, Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman,
Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock

Items submitted for the record
1. Staff Report dated November 30, 2021, from David Riesland, Transportation
Engineer
2. Resolution R-2122-53

Resolution R-2122-53 was Adopted.

* k% k% %
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32.

33.

CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION, REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/C

Iltem 1.

POSTPONEMENT OF RESOLUTION NO. R-2122-54 A RESOLUTION OF THE
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORMAN REQUESTING CONGESTION MITIGATION
AIR QUALITY — AQ SMALL GRANT FUNDING FOR AN ELIGIBLE TRANSIT
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT CONSISTING OF NEW BUS STOPS ASSOCIATED WITH
THE RECOMMENDED ROUTE NETWORK IN THE GO NORMAN TRANSIT PLAN.

Motion made by Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Seconded by Councilmember Ward 7
Holman.

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2
Schueler, Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember
Ward 5 Tortorello, Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman,
Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock

Items submitted for the record
1. Staff Report dated November 30, 2021, from David Riesland, Transportation
Engineer
2. Resolution R-2122-54

Resolution R-2122-54 was Adopted.

* k k k%

CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION, REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR
POSTPONEMENT OF RESOLUTION R-2122-61: A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA TRANSFERRING $50,000 FROM THE
LEGACY PARK AUDIO EQUIPMENT PROJECT TO BE USED TO MAKE REPAIRS
FOR DAMAGES FROM THE 2020-2021 STORMS, ELECTRICAL UPGRADES, AND
AIR COMPRESSOR REPLACEMENT AT LEGACY PARK.

Motion made by Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Seconded by Councilmember Ward 7
Holman.

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2
Schueler, Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember
Ward 5 Tortorello, Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman,
Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock

Items submitted for the record
1. Staff Report dated November 30, 2021, from Jason Olsen, Director of Parks
and Recreation
2. Resolution R-2122-61
3. Air Compressor Supply Quotation No. SL-21-0087 dated September 28, 2021
with Option A in the amount of $20,000 and Option B in the amount of $25,000
from Gardner Denver

Resolution R-2122-61 was Adopted.

* k% k% %
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34. CONSIDERATION _OF _ADOPTION, REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/Q "™

POSTPONEMENT OF RESOLUTION R-2122-65: A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF NORMAN REQUESTING CONGESTION MITIGATION AIR
QUALITY PUBLIC FLEET CONVERSION GRANT FUNDING FOR AN ELIGIBLE
ALTERNATIVE FUEL INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECT CONSISTING OF TWO NEW
ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGERS TO BE LOCATED IN THE MUNICIPAL COMPLEX.

Motion made by Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Seconded by Councilmember Ward 7
Holman.

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2
Schueler, Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember
Ward 5 Tortorello, Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman,
Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock

Items submitted for the record
1. Staff Report dated November 30, 2021, from Taylor Johnson, Transit and
Parking Program Manager
2. Resolution R-2122-65

Resolution R-2122-65 was Adopted.

* k k k%

35. CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION, REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR
POSTPONEMENT OF RESOLUTION R-2122-69: A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA, DECLARING THAT THE CITY COUNCIL,
NORMAN MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY NORMAN UTILITIES AUTHORITY, AND THE
NORMAN TAX INCREMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY MEETING SCHEDULED FOR
JANUARY 11, 2022, SHALL BE CANCELLED AND A CITY COUNCIL MEETING
SHALL BE SCHEDULED FOR JANUARY 18, 2022.

Motion made by Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Seconded by Councilmember Ward 7
Holman.

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2
Schueler, Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember
Ward 5 Tortorello, Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman,
Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock

ltems submitted for the record
1. Staff Report dated November 30, 2021, from Brenda Hall, City Clerk
2. Resolution R-2122-69

Resolution R-2122-69 was Adopted.

* %k k%
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Iltem 1.

Motion made by Councilmember Ward 4 Hall to approve the Consent Docket, Seconded

Councilmember Ward 7 Holman.

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2 Schueler,
Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember Ward 5 Tortorello,
Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman, Councilmember Ward 8
Peacock

Item 5 through 35 were approved on the Consent Docket.

*k k k%

NON-CONSENT ITEMS

36. CONSIDERATION _OF _ ADOPTION, REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR
POSTPONEMENT OF RESOLUTION R-2122-31: A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA, AMENDING THE NORMAN 2025 LAND USE AND
TRANSPORTATION PLAN SO AS TO REMOVE THE NORTH ONE HUNDRED FIFTY
(150) FEET OF LOT TWO (2), BLOCK TEN (10), OF PICKARD ACRES ADDITION, TO
NORMAN, CLEVELAND COUNTY, OKLAHOMA, FROM THE LOW DENSITY
RESIDENTIAL DESIGNATION, AND THE SOUTH ONE HUNDRED FIFTY-TWO AND
ONE-HALF (152.5) FEET OF LOT TWO (2), BLOCK TEN (10), OF PICKARD ACRES
ADDITION, TO NORMAN, CLEVELAND COUNTY, OKLAHOMA, FROM THE OFFICE
DESIGNATION AND PLACE THE SAME IN THE COMMERCIAL DESIGNATION. (1027
AND 1035 SOUTH BERRY ROAD)

Motion to postpone Resolution R-2122-31 until January 18, 2022, made by Councilmember
Ward 3 Lynn, Seconded by Councilmember Ward 5 Tortorello.

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2
Schueler, Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember
Ward 5 Tortorello, Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman,
Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock

Items submitted for the record
1. Staff Report dated November 30, 2021, from Jane Hudson, Director of Planning
and Community Development
Resolution R-2122-31
Location map
Planning Commission Staff Report dated October 14, 2021
City of Norman Predevelopment Summary PD21-23 dated June 24, 2021, for
Sooner Traditions, L.L.C. for property located at 1027 and 1035 South Berry Road
6. Pertinent excerpts from Planning Commission minutes of October 14, 2021
Participants in discussion
1. Mr. Sean Rieger, The Rieger Law Group, 136 Thompson Drive, attorney
representing the applicant
2. Ms. Leslie Cornwall, Ward 4, protestant

ahwN

Resolution R-2122-31 was Postponed Until January 18, 2022.

*k k k%
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37. CONSIDERATION _OF ADOPTION, REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/d "™

POSTPONEMENT OF ORDINANCE 0O-2122-15 UPON SECOND AND FINAL
READING: AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORMAN,
OKLAHOMA, AMENDING SECTION 460 OF CHAPTER 22 OF THE CODE OF THE
CITY OF NORMAN SO AS TO REMOVE THE NORTH ONE HUNDRED FIFTY (150)
FEET OF LOT TWO (2), BLOCK TEN (10), OF PICKARD ACRES ADDITION, TO
NORMAN, CLEVELAND COUNTY, OKLAHOMA, FROM THE R-1, SINGLE FAMILY
DWELLING DISTRICT, AND PLACE SAME IN THE SPUD, SIMPLE PLANNED UNIT
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, AND TO REMOVE THE SOUTH ONE HUNDRED FIFTY-
TWO AND ONE-HALF (152.5) FEET OF LOT TWO (2), BLOCK TEN (10), OF PICKARD
ACRES ADDITION, TO NORMAN, CLEVELAND COUNTY, OKLAHOMA, FROM THE
CO, SUBURBAN OFFICE COMMERCIAL DISTRICT, AND PLACE SAME IN THE
SPUD, SIMPLE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT; AND PROVIDING FOR
THE SEVERABILITY THEREOF. (1027 AND 1035 SOUTH BERRY ROAD)

Motion to postpone Ordinance 0-2122-15 until January 18, 2022, made by
Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Seconded by Councilmember Ward 5 Tortorello.

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2
Schueler, Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember
Ward 5 Tortorello, Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman,
Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock

Items submitted for the record
1. Staff Report dated November 9, 2021, from Jane Hudson, Director of Planning
and Community Development

2. Ordinance 0-2122-15

3. Application for Simple Planned Unit Development submitted August 2, 2021,
and Revised November 2, 2021, prepared by Rieger Law Group, P.L.L.C., with
Exhibit A, Site Development Plan; Exhibit B, Allowable Uses; Exhibit C, Open
Space Diagram; and Exhibit D, Stormwater Enhancement Diagram

4. Location map

5. Planning Commission Staff Report dated October 14, 2021

6. City of Norman Predevelopment Summary PD21-23 dated June 24, 2021, from

Sooner Traditions, L.L.C., for property located at 1027 and 1035 South Berry
Road
7. City of Norman Development Review Form, Transportation Impacts, dated
October 5, 2021, conducted by Jami L. Short, P.E., City Traffic Engineer
8. Protest and Support Map dated October 6, 2021, containing 8.3% protest and
17.8% support within Notification Area
9. Statement of Support received October 6, 2021, from Gary Graham
10. Statement of Support received October 6, 2021, from Hunter Miller
11. Statement of Support received October 6, 2021, from Hal Smith
12. Statement of Support received October 6, 2021, from Carol West
13. Letter of protest received September 9, 2021, from Alise Osis and Daniel Mains
with attached aerial map
14. Letters of protest received August 30, 2021, and June 22, 2021, from David and
Kathy Nehrenz with attached aerial map
15. Letter of protest received September 3, 2021, from Michelle Nehrenz
16. Letter of protest received August 31, 2021, from Gabrielle Mandeville
17. Letter of protest received September 2, 2021, from Cynthia Brnx Mills
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Iltem 37, continued:

Iltem 1.

Items submitted for the record, continued

18.
19.
20.
21.

22.

23.

24.
25.
26.
27.
28.

29.
30.
31.
32.
33.
34.
35.
36.
37.

38.
39.

40.

Letter of protest received September 2, 2021, from Delbert G. Mills

Letter of protest received September 2, 2021, from Gary Kruk

Letter of protest received September 2, 2021, from Micah Alcorn

Letter of protest received September 3, 2021, from Dana Drury and Stephen
Maple with attached aerial map

Protest and Support Map dated October 14, 2021, containing 12.5% protest and
17.8% support within notification area

Letter of protest received October 13, 2021, from Nathalie Rocher, PhD, and
Solon Clinton

Letter of protest received October 7, 2021, from Ron LaSpisa

Letter of protest received October 7, 2021, from Susan Meyer

Letter of protest received October 7, 2021, from Dennis Yarbro

Letter of protest received October 7, 2021, from Roxana Leonard

Letter of protest received October 8, 2021, from Konstantinos Karathanasis,
Ph.D., Professor of Music Technology and Composition, School of Music, the
University of Oklahoma, and Ekaterini Akarepi, Lecturer of World Music, the
University of Oklahoma

Letter of protest received October 8, 2021, from Leslie Cornwall

Letter of protest received October 8, 2021, from John B. Cornwall

Letter of protest received October 8, 2021, from JoAnn Oliver

Letter of protest received October 12, 2021, from Linda Lockett

Letter of protest received October 12, 2021, from William Farrell and Alana Sofia
Letter of protest received October 12, 2021, from William Lockett

Letter of protest received October 12, 2021, from Kevin and Kricket Connywerdy
Letter of protest received October 12, 2021, from Carolyn and Gary Kauley
Letter of protest received October 12, 2021, from Nolita C. Morgan with attached
family photograph and photograph of Lindsey and Berry intersection

Letter of support received October 14, 2021, from Brent Swift, Swift Company
Revised Traffic Impact Analysis prepared for Shops at Berry, L.L.C., October,
2021, prepared by Traffic Engineering Consultants, Inc., with Figure 1, Project
Location Map; Figure 2, Proposed Site Plan; Figure 3, 2021 Existing Traffic;
Figure 4, 2023 Future Background Traffic; Figure 5, Proposed Development
Traffic; Figure 6, Projected Combined Traffic; Table 1, Projects Site Generate
Traffic; Table 2, Level-of-Service Criteria; and Table 3, Intersection Capacity
Analysis Results

Pertinent excerpts from Planning Commission Minutes of October 14, 2021

Ordinance 0-2122-15 was Postponed Until January 18, 2022.
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38. CONSIDERATION __OF _ADOPTION, REJECTION, _AMENDMENT, AND/Q "™

POSTPONEMENT OF ORDINANCE 0O-2122-26 UPON SECOND AND FINAL
READING: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORMAN,
OKLAHOMA, ADDING ARTICLE VI TO CHAPTER 2 OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF
NORMAN TO ALLOW THE USE OF CONSENSUAL, AUTHORIZED ELECTRONIC
SIGNATURES AND ELECTRONIC RECORDS THAT COMPLY WITH THE
REQUIREMENTS OF THE OKLAHOMA UNIFORM ELECTRONIC TRANSACTION
ACT AND CITY POLICY IN CITY TRANSACTIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS; AND
PROVIDING FOR THE SEVERABILITY THEREOF.

Motion made by Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock, Seconded by Councilmember
Ward 2 Schueler.

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2
Schueler, Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember
Ward 5 Tortorello, Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman,
Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock

Items submitted for the record

1. Staff Report dated November 9, 2021, from Heather Poole, Assistant City

Attorney

2. Ordinance 0-2122-26

3. Legislatively notated copy of Ordinance O-2122-26

4. Oklahoma Uniform Electronic Transactions Act, Oklahoma State Statute
Participants in discussion

1. Ms. Heather Poole, Assistant City Attorney

Ordinance 0-2122-26 was Adopted Upon Second Reading Section by Section.

Motion made by Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock, Seconded by Councilmember
Ward 2 Schueler.

Voting Yea: Mayor Clark, Councilmember Ward 1 Studley, Councilmember Ward 2
Schueler, Councilmember Ward 3 Lynn, Councilmember Ward 4 Hall, Councilmember
Ward 5 Tortorello, Councilmember Ward 6 Foreman, Councilmember Ward 7 Holman,
Councilmember Ward 8 Peacock

Ordinance 0-2122-26 was Adopted Upon Final Reading as a Whole.

* k *x k%
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MISCELLANEOUS COMMENTS

Iltem 1.

Police Department Issue. Mr. Larry Bierman, Ward 4, said he was on his way to church recently
and saw flashing lights in his rear view mirror. He said when he pulled into the church parking
lot, a police officer knocked on his window and was very threatening. He said he handed the
police officer his license and insurance and tried to get out of the car. He said the policeman
yelled at him to get back in the car and close the door. He said "This is my church" and the
police officer said it was a traffic stop and | had to stay in my car. He said he noticed another
police officer standing behind his car with his hand on his holster. He said he was terrified and
could not understand why he had been stopped. He said the police officer told him he was
driving 40 miles per hour and the speed limit was 30 miles per hour. He said it is awful to feel
unsafe in the community you have lived in for 50 years, especially when it is the police who are
making you feel that way.

Items submitted for the record
1. Statement to City Council from Larry Bierman

* %k x %x

ADJOURNMENT

The Meeting was Adjourned at 7:28 p.m.

Mayor City Clerk
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Item 2.

File Attachments for ltem:

2. CONSIDERATION OF ACKNOWLEDGEMENT, APPROVAL, REJECTION,
AMENDMENT, AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF PROCLAMATION P-2122-16: A
PROCLAMATION OF THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA,
PROCLAIMING THE MONTH OF DECEMBER, 2021, AS NATIONAL IMPAIRED
DRIVING PREVENTION MONTH IN THE CITY OF NORMAN.
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Item 2.

CITY OF NORMAN, OK

STAFF REPORT

MEETING DATE: 12/14/2021

REQUESTER: Darci Poe
PRESENTER: John Stege, Professional Standards, Police Department
ITEM TITLE: CONSIDERATION OF ACKNOWLEDGEMENT, APPROVAL,

REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF
PROCLAMATION P-2122-16: A PROCLAMATION OF THE MAYOR OF
THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA, PROCLAIMING THE MONTH OF
DECEMBER, 2021, AS NATIONAL IMPAIRED DRIVING PREVENTION
MONTH IN THE CITY OF NORMAN.

Page 1 of 1
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P-2122-16

A PROCLAMATION OF THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF
NORMAN, OKLAHOMA, PROCLAIMING THE MONTH
OF DECEMBER, 2021, AS NATIONAL IMPAIRED
‘DRIVING PREVENTION MONTH IN THE CITY OF
NORMAN.

§ 1. WHEREAS, every year thousands of lives are needlessly lost on our Nation’s roadways as
aresult of alcohol and drug impaired driving; and

§ 2. WHEREAS, alcohol; illicit drugs, prescription medication, and even over-the-counter
medications can impair a driver’s judgment, decrease motor coordination and slow the
reaction time necessary to safely operate a motor vehicle; and

§ 3. WHEREAS, the federal Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act calls for the National
Highway Traffic Safety Administration to issue a new standard for “advanced drunk and
impaired prevention technology” for new vehicles, which would help prevent impaired
drivers from taking the wheel; and

§ 4. WHEREAS, while technology continues to advance, everyone must take individual
responsibility and pledge to never drive while impaired and to deter others from making
that fateful decision.

NOW, THEREFORE, I, MAYOR OF THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA:
§ 5. Do hereby proclaim the month of December, 2021, as National Impaired Driving
Prevention Month in the City of Norman and urge residents of the City of Norman to make

responsible decisions and take appropriate measures to help end impaired driving.

PASSED AND APPROVED this 14th day of December, 2021.

Mayor
ATTEST:

City Clerk

Item 2.

Proclamation
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File Attachments for ltem:

3. CONSIDERATION OF ACKNOWLEDGEMENT, APPROVAL, REJECTION,
AMENDMENT, AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF PROCLAMATION P-2122-17: A
PROCLAMATION OF THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA,
PROCLAIMING THE WEEK OF DECEMBER 26, 2021, THROUGH JANUARY 1, 2022,
AS KWANZAA WEEK IN THE CITY OF NORMAN

Item 3.
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Item 3.

CITY OF NORMAN, OK

STAFF REPORT

MEETING DATE: 12/14/2021

REQUESTER: Cinthya Allen
PRESENTER: Cinthya Allen, Chief Diversity & Equity Officer
ITEM TITLE: CONSIDERATION OF ACKNOWLEDGEMENT, APPROVAL,

REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF
PROCLAMATION P-2122-17: A PROCLAMATION OF THE MAYOR OF
THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA, PROCLAIMING THE WEEK OF
DECEMBER 26, 2021 THROUGH JANUARY 1, 2022, AS KWANZAA
WEEK IN THE CITY OF NORMAN

Page 1 of 1
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Item 3.

Proclamation
P-2122-17

A PROCLAMATION OF THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF
NORMAN, 'OKLAHOMA, PROCLAIMING THE WEEK OF
DECEMBER 26, 2021 THROUGH JANUARY 1, 2022, AS
KWANZAA WEEK IN THE CITY OF NORMAN.

§ 1. WHEREAS, Kwanzaa, an African-American holiday, was initiated in the United States in 1966
to give the Black community an opportunity to celebrate themselves and their history to support
identify, purpose, and direction; and

§ 2. WHEREAS, the name Kwanzaa derives from the Swahili phrase matunda ya kwanza, meaning
“first fruits”; and

§ 3.. WHEREAS, Kwanzaa is inclusive, people of all backgrounds and cultures celebrate the holiday
around the world; and -

§ 4. WHEREAS, this holiday encourages participants to reflect on the seven principles of Kwanzaa
which are: Umoja (Unity), Kujichagulia (Self-Determination), Ujima (Collective Work and
Responsibility), Ujamaa (Cooperative Economics), Nia (Purpose), Kuumba (Creativity), and
Imani (Faith); and

§ S. WHEREAS, 1997 marked the year of the first Kwanzaa United States Post Office stamp and the
first Presidential Declaration, declarations have been made by all United States Presidents since
then; and

§ 6. WHEREAS, the City of Norman’s Alliance of Black Employees Employee Resource Group will
host the first community Kwanzaa Karamu on December 28" at the Norman Central Public
Library; and

§ 7. WHEREAS, the Kwanzaa Karamu is open to all community members; and

NOW, THEREFORE, I, MAYOR OF THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA:

§ 8. Do hereby proclaim the week of December 26, 2021, through January 1, 2022, as Kwanzaa
Week in the City of Norman. [ invite all citizens to join me in celebrating and learning of this

special holiday of reflection in our community.

PASSED AND APPROVED this 14" day of December, 2021.

Mayor
ATTEST:

Eﬁty Clerk
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File Attachments for ltem:

4. CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION, REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR
POSTPONEMENT OF ORDINANCE 0O-2122-21 UPON FIRST READING BY TITLE:
AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA,
AMENDING THE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT ESTABLISHED IN ORDINANCE
0-1415-45 TO AMEND THE ALLOWABLE USES FOR LOT 4A, IN BLOCK ONE (1),
OF UNIVERSITY NORTH PARK PROFESSIONAL CENTER, TO THE CITY OF
NORMAN, CLEVELAND COUNTY, OKLAHOMA; AND PROVIDING FOR THE
SEVERABILITY THEREOF.

Iltem 4.
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Iltem 4.

CITY OF NORMAN, OK

STAFF REPORT

MEETING DATE: 12/14/2021
REQUESTER: Johnson & Associates, on behalf of University North Park

PRESENTER: Jane Hudson, Director of Planning & Community Development

CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION, REJECTION, AMENDMENT,

ITEM TITLE: AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF ORDINANCE 0-2122-21 UPON FIRST
READING BY TITLE: AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA, AMENDING THE PLANNED UNIT
DEVELOPMENT ESTABLISHED IN ORDINANCE O-1415-45 TO AMEND
THE ALLOWABLE USES FOR LOT 4A, IN BLOCK ONE (1), OF
UNIVERSITY NORTH PARK PROFESSIONAL CENTER, TO THE CITY
OF NORMAN, CLEVELAND COUNTY, OKLAHOMA; AND PROVIDING
FOR THE SEVERABILITY THEREOF.

SYNOPSIS:

The applicant is requesting to amend the existing UNP PUD for this subject lot to allow for the
use of a daycare facility. Currently, for this subject lot, commercial use is not permitted north of
Rock Creek Road.

HISTORY: The original PUD, O-0203-2 was approved by City Council on August 27, 2002. The
first amendment to the PUD, O-0506-9 was approved on October 11, 2005 to allow the owner
to sell or lease unplatted portions of forty acres or more. This was the only change to the original
PUD. Then on December 12, 2006 City Council approved PUD O-0607-13 which replaced both
the original PUD and the amendment. Since the O-0607-13 PUD Amendment there have been
various amendments to specific areas of the overall development to allow for changes in site
plan and setback requirements as well as additional uses within the UNP PUD.

ZONING ORDINANCE CITATION:

SEC. 420 - PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENTS

1. Statement of Purpose. It is the intent of this section to encourage developments with a
superior built environment brought about through unified development and to provide for the
application of design ingenuity in such developments while protecting existing and future
surrounding areas in achieving the goals of the comprehensive plan of record. The "PUD"
Planned Unit Development district herein established is intended to provide for greater flexibility

Page 1 of 4
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in the design of buildings, yards, courts, circulation, and open space than would otherwise be
possible through the strict application of other district regulations. In this way, applicants may
be awarded certain premiums in return for assurances of overall planning and design quality, or
which will be of exceptional community benefit and which are not now required by other
regulations. By permitting and encouraging the use of such procedures, the Planning
Commission and City Council will be able to make more informed land use decisions and thereby
guide development more effectively in the best interest of the health, safety, and welfare of the
City.

Specifically, the purposes of this section are to encourage:

(&) A maximum choice in the types of environment and living units available to the public.

(b) Provision of more usable and suitably located open space, recreation areas, or other
common facilities than would otherwise be required under conventional land
development regulations.

(c) Maximum enhancement and minimal disruption of existing natural features and
amenities.

(d) Comprehensive and innovative planning and design of diversified developments
which are consistent with the City's long range plan and remain compatible with
surrounding developments.

(e) More efficient and economic use of land resulting in smaller networks of utilities and
streets, thereby lowering costs.

(f) Preparation of more complete and useful information which will enable the Planning
Commission and City Council to make more informed decisions on land use.

The PUD (Planned Unit Development) Regulations are designed to provide for small and large
scale developments incorporating a single type or a variety of residential, commercial, industrial
and related uses which are planned and developed as a unit. Such development may consist
of individual lots, or it may have common building sites. Private or public common land and open
space must be an essential, major element of the development which is related to, and affects,
the long term value of the homes and other development. A Planned Unit Development shall be
a separate entity with a distinct character that respects and harmonizes with surrounding
development.

2. Uses Permitted. In addition to zoning districts established elsewhere in this chapter, a
Planned Unit Development zoning district is established and shall be designated on the Zoning
District Map, upon application of the landowner and approval by the City Council. In order to
increase creativity and flexibility in the development of areas suitable for a Planned Unit
Development, there are no specifically prescribed uses which are permitted within the
boundaries of a Planned Unit Development. The developer shall be responsible for preparation
of a list of permitted uses within the specific Planned Unit Development requested. The
development of the list shall take into account the nature and purpose of the Planned Unit
Development area, and such uses and locations shall be appropriate in order to protect and be
in harmony with surrounding development. At the time of the Pre-Application plan and
conference, the applicant shall generally describe the nature and types of land uses to be located
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within the boundaries of the PUD District. At the time of zoning application and consideration of
the preliminary plat, a specific written list of uses to be "permitted by right" shall be submitted for
review by the Planning Commission. Following approval by the Planning Commission and City
Council, the list of specific uses permitted by right shall serve as the control list in issuance of
building permits and certificates of occupancy.

EXISTING ZONING: The existing zoning for this subject lot is included in the overall master
planned PUD, Planned Unit Development for the University North Park Development. This
subject lot is located in “Sub-Development Area 1”. The PUD specifically states “With respect
to SDA #1, Owner/Applicant specifically states that it is limited to industrial, office and/or
residential uses, only, and that no commercial uses will be developed on SDAs #1, #2, #6 or #7.
(It should be noted that, since no actual end-users for the North Half of the Property are known
at this time, the land-use limitations in the preceding two sentences are subject to revision,
contingent on an acceptable TIA for any such revisions.) A TIA was submitted with the 2006
UNP PUD and included as part of the exhibits on-file with the City of Norman. The applicant
submitted a TIA that addressed the use of a daycare for this lot, included in the packet.
Therefore, the applicant is requesting to amend the PUD to allow for the use of the commercial
daycare on the subject lot.

ANALYSIS: The particulars of this PUD include:
1. USE: The applicant is planning to operate a daycare facility at this site.

2. PARKING: Uses within the PUD shall comply with the off-street parking and loading
requirements. The recent changes in the parking regulations, going from required parking
count to recommended parking count will allow this site to develop with their parking needs
as opposed to meeting the previously required parking counts.

3. PHASES: There is not a phasing plan for this site. There is one building proposed and if
approved the applicant plans to begin construction in a timely manner.

4. SITE PLAN/ACCESS: The site will have access via an existing common drive located on
the south side of the lot. This is the access onto 24™" Ave. NW for this site. With the Final
Site Development Plan for University North Park Professional Center, filed with the County
Clerk, there is shared circulation shown to be located on the east side of the properties.

5. AREA REGULATIONS: For each lot/area developed the applicant is responsible for
accounting for their created stormwater run-off. For this site the stormwater run-off is
proposed to be contained within an off-plat detention area located within the airport property
to the east of this plat.

6. LANDSCAPING: The applicant will submit a landscape plan for the site and it will be
reviewed and approved by the ARB as well as the City of Norman. In this case, the landscape
strip adjacent to 24" Ave. NW will be five feet. Landscaping is the responsibility of the owner
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of the lot — the landscaping will be bonded and inspected after three years to make sure all
landscaping materials are still in good condition.

7. SIGNAGE: The UNP PUD has an overall Master Signage Plan. The UNP ARB reviews
and approves all signage prior to the City of Noman issuing any permits.

8. LIGHTING: The outdoor lighting for the site will be reviewed and approved by the UNP
ARB. Overall, the trend in the UNP area has been full cut-off fixtures and architecturally
compatible.

ALTERNATIVES/ISSUES:

IMPACTS: This proposal will not create any negative impacts to the overall development
of University North Park; this development was designed as a master development plan
to accommodate traffic, parking and commercial and entertainment uses to accommodate
the surrounding population.

Through the previous ordinance, Ordinance No. O-1415-45, this lot was approved with a
25’ building setback line and a reduced landscape buffer of 5’. With this request, and due
to the depth of the lot, the applicant is requesting to continue with the 25’ building setback
line and a reduced landscape buffer of 5’ due to the depth of the lot configuration.

OTHER AGENCY COMMENTS:

PARK BOARD: Parkland dedication is not required for this development.

PUBLIC WORKS: All public improvements including utilities are existing or will be in
place for the development of this subject lot.

FIRE: Fire hydrants are existing, however, through the review of a building permit
application additional improvements for fire protection may be required.

CONCLUSION:

Staff forwards this request to amend the existing UNP PUD to allow for a day care on the subject
lot and Ordinance 0O-2122-21 to City Council for consideration.

Planning Commission, at their November 18, 2021 meeting, unanimously recommended
adoption of Ordinance O-2122-21 by a vote of 6-0.

Page 4 of 4
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0-2122-21

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
NORMAN, OKLAHOMA, AMENDING THE PLANNED UNIT
DEVELOPMENT ESTABLISHED IN ORDINANCE NO. O-
1415-45, TO AMEND THE ALLOWABLE USES FOR LOT 4A,
IN BLOCK ONE (1), OF UNIVERSITY NORTH PARK
PROFESSIONAL CENTER, TO THE CITY OF NORMAN,
CLEVELAND COUNTY, OKLAHOMA; AND PROVIDING
FOR THE SEVERABILITY THEREOF.

WHEREAS, Johnson & Associates, on behalf of University North Park, the
owner of the hereinafter described property, has made application to amend the
Planned Unit Development approved by Ordinance No. O-1415-45, so as to
amend the allowable uses; and

WHEREAS, said application has been referred to the Planning Commission of
said City and said body has, after conducting a public hearing as required by law,
considered the same and recommended that the same should be granted and an
ordinance adopted to effect and accomplish such amendment; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Norman, Oklahoma, has thereafter
considered said application and has determined that said application should be
granted and an ordinance adopted to effect and accomplish such amendment.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORMAN,
OKLAHOMA:

§

4.

That Section 460 of Chapter 22 of the Code of the City of Norman, Oklahoma, is
hereby amended so as to amend the Planned Unit Development approved by
Ordinance No. 0-1415-45, so as to amend the allowable uses for the subject
property, to wit:

University North Park Professional Center

Lot 4A, Block 1

A tract of land being a part of the Northwest Quarter (NW/4) of
Section Thirteen (13), Township Nine (9) North, Range Three (3)
West of the Indian Meridian, City of Norman, Cleveland County,
Oklahoma, being all of Lot 4, Block 1 as shown on the plat
UNIVERSITY NORTH PARK PROFESSIONAL CENTER recorded
in Book 24 of plats, Page 80, LESS & EXCEPT the North 21.64 feet
thereof, being more particularly described as follows:

Iltem 4.

76




Ordinance No. 0-2122-21

Page 2

Beginning at the Southwest (SW) Corner of said Lot 4, said point
being the POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE along and with the
West line of said Lot 4 on a curve to the left, having a radius of 936.16
feet, a chord bearing of North 01°26°56” East, a chord length of 56.12
feet and an arc length of 56.13 feet; THENCE North 00°16°07” West,
continuing along and with the West line of said Lot 4, a distance of
202.54 feet; THENCE North 89°15°55” East, parallel with and 21.64
feet South of the North line of said Lot 4, a distance of 229.81 feet to a
point on the East line of said Lot 4, THENCE South 00°38°00” East,
along and with the East line of said Lot 4, a distance of 258.61 feet to
the Southeast (SE) Corner of said Lot 4; THENCE South 89°15°55”
West, along and with the South line of said Lot 4, a distance of 233.14
feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

Containing 59,676 square feet or 1.3700 acres, more or less.

§ S. Further, the following condition is hereby attached to the zoning of the tract:

a.

§ 6. Severability. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this
ordinance is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of
competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and
independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the

The site shall be developed in accordance with Amended and
Restated University North Park PUD Development Plan, dated
October 2021, and the site development plan submitted by the
applicant and approved by the Planning Commission on November
18, 2021, attached and made a part hereof.

remaining portions of this ordinance.

Iltem 4.

ADOPTED this day of NOT ADOPTED this day of
, 2022. , 2022.

(Mayor) (Mayor)

ATTEST:

(City Clerk)
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Planning Commission Agenda
November 18, 2021

ORDINANCE NO. 0-2122-21 ITEM NO. 5

STAFF REPORT

GENERAL INFORMATION

APPLICANT Johnson & Associates, on behalf of
University North Park

REQUESTED ACTION University North Park PUD Amendment

EXISTING ZONING PUD, Planned Unit Development
(0O-1415-45)

SURROUNDING ZONING North: PUD, Planned Unit Development
East: [-1, Light Industrial District

South: PUD, Planned Unit Development
West:  I-1, Light Industrial District

LOCATION East of 24t Avenue N.W. and south of W.
Tecumseh Road

SIZE 1.37 acres, more or less
PURPOSE Daycare Facility
EXISTING LAND USE Vacant
SURROUNDING LAND USE North: Office

East: Airport
South: Office
West: Vacant

SYNOPSIS: The applicant is requesting to amend the existing UNP PUD for this subject lot to
allow for the use of a daycare facility. Currently, for this subject lot, commercial use is not
permitted north of Rock Creek Road.

HISTORY: The original PUD, O-0203-2 was approved by City Council on August 27, 2002.
The first amendment to the PUD, O-0506-9 was approved on October 11, 2005 to allow the
owner to sell or lease unplatted portions of forty acres or more. This was the only change to
the original PUD. Then on December 12, 2006 City Council approved PUD O-0607-13 which
replaced both the original PUD and the amendment. Since the O-0607-13 PUD Amendment
there have been various amendments to specific areas of the overall development to allow
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for changes in site plan and setback requirements as well as additional uses within thg

PUD.

ZONING ORDINANCE CITATION:

SEC. 420 - PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENTS

1. Statement of Purpose. It is the intent of this section to encourage developments with a
superior built environment brought about through unified development and to provide for the
application of design ingenuity in such developments while protecting existing and future
surrounding areas in achieving the goals of the comprehensive plan of record. The "PUD"
Planned Unit Development district herein established is intended to provide for greater
flexibility in the design of buildings, yards, courts, circulation, and open space than would
otherwise be possible through the strict application of other district regulations. In this way,
applicants may be awarded certain premiums in return for assurances of overall planning and
design quality, or which will be of exceptional community benefit and which are not now
required by other regulations. By permitting and encouraging the use of such procedures, the
Planning Commission and City Council will be able to make more informed land use decisions
and thereby guide development more effectively in the best interest of the health, safety,
and welfare of the City.

Specifically, the purposes of this section are to encourage:

(a) A maximum choice in the types of environment and living units available to the
public.

(b) Provision of more usable and suitably located open space, recreation areas, or
other common facilities than would otherwise be required under conventional land
development regulations.

(c) Maximum enhancement and minimal disruption of existing natural features and
amenities.

(d) Comprehensive and innovative planning and design of diversified developments
which are consistent with the City's long range plan and remain compatible with
surrounding developments.

(e) More efficient and economic use of land resulting in smaller networks of utilities and
streets, thereby lowering costs.

() Preparation of more complete and useful information which will enable the
Planning Commission and City Council to make more informed decisions on land
use.

The PUD (Planned Unit Development) Regulations are designed to provide for small and large
scale developments incorporating a single type or a variety of residential, commercial,
industrial and related uses which are planned and developed as a unit. Such development
may consist of individual lots, or it may have common building sites. Private or public
common land and open space must be an essential, major element of the development
which is related to, and affects, the long term value of the homes and other development. A
Planned Unit Development shall be a separate entity with a distinct character that respects
and harmonizes with surrounding development.

2. Uses Permitted. In addition to zoning districts established elsewhere in this chapter, a
Planned Unit Development zoning district is established and shall be designated on the Zoning
District Map, upon application of the landowner and approval by the City Council. In order to
increase creativity and flexibility in the development of areas suitable for a Planned Unit
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Development, there are no specifically prescribed uses which are permitted withi

boundaries of a Planned Unit Development. The developer shall be responsible for
preparation of a list of permitted uses within the specific Planned Unit Development
requested. The development of the list shall take into account the nature and purpose of the
Planned Unit Development area, and such uses and locations shall be appropriate in order to
protect and be in harmony with surrounding development. At the time of the Pre-Application
plan and conference, the applicant shall generally describe the nature and types of land
uses to be located within the boundaries of the PUD District. At the time of zoning application
and consideration of the preliminary plat, a specific written list of uses to be "permitted by
right” shall be submitted for review by the Planning Commission. Following approval by the
Planning Commission and City Council, the list of specific uses permitted by right shall serve as
the control list in issuance of building permits and certificates of occupancy.

EXISTING ZONING: The existing zoning for this subject lot is included in the overall master
planned PUD, Planned Unit Development for the University North Park Development. This
subject lot is located in “Sub-Development Area 1”. The PUD specifically states “With respect
to SDA #1, Owner/Applicant specifically states that it is limited to industrial, office and/or
residential uses, only, and that no commercial uses will be developed on SDAs #1, #2, #6 or
#7. (It should be noted that, since no actual end-users for the North Half of the Property are
known at this time, the land-use limitations in the preceding two sentences are subject to
revision, contingent on an acceptable TIA for any such revisions.) A TIA was submitted with
the 2006 UNP PUD and included as part of the exhibits on-file with the City of Norman. The
applicant submitted a TIA that addressed the use of a daycare for this lot, included in the
packet. Therefore, the applicant is requesting to amend the PUD to allow for the use of the
commercial daycare on the subject lot.

ANALYSIS: The particulars of this PUD include:
1. USE The applicantis planning to operate a daycare facility at this site.

2. PARKING Uses within the PUD shall comply with the off-street parking and loading
requirements. The recent changes in the parking regulations, going from required parking
count to recommended parking count will allow this site to develop with their parking
needs as opposed to meeting the previously required parking counts.

3. PHASES There is not a phasing plan for this site. There is one building proposed
and if approved the applicant plans to begin construction in a timely manner.

4. SITE PLAN/ACCESS The site will have access via an existing common drive located on
the south side of the lot. This is the access onto 24t Ave. NW for this site. With the Final Site
Development Plan for University North Park Professional Center, filed with the County Clerk,
there is shared circulation shown to be located on the east side of the properties.

5. AREA REGULATIONS For each lot/area developed the applicant is responsible for
accounting for their created stormwater run-off. For this site the stormwater run-off is
proposed to be contained within an off-plat detention area located within the airport
property to the east of this plat.

6. LANDSCAPING The applicant will submit a landscape plan for the site and it will be
reviewed and approved by the ARB as well as the City of Norman. In this case, the
landscape strip adjacent to 24t Ave. NW will be five feet. Landscaping is the responsibility
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of the owner of the lot - the landscaping will be bonded and inspected after three
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to make sure all landscaping materials are still in good condition.

7. SIGNAGE The UNP PUD has an overall Master Signage Plan. The UNP ARB reviews
and approves all signage prior to the City of Noman issuing any permits.

8. LIGHTING The outdoor lighting for the site will be reviewed and approved by the
UNP ARB. Overall, the trend in the UNP area has been full cut-off fixtures and
architecturally compatible.

ALTERNATIVES/ISSUES:

IMPACTS This proposal will not create any negative impacts to the overall
development of University North Park; this development was designed as a master
development plan to accommodate traffic, parking and commercial and
entertainment uses to accommodate the surrounding population.

Through the previous ordinance, Ordinance No. O-1415-45, this lot was approved with
a 25’ building setback line and a reduced landscape buffer of 5°. With this request, and
due to the depth of the lot, the applicant is requesting to continue with the 25’ building
setback line and a reduced landscape buffer of 5° due to the depth of the lot
configuration.

OTHER AGENCY COMMENTS:

PARK BOARD Parkland dedication is not required for this development.

PUBLIC WORKS All public improvements including utilities are existing or will be in
place for the development of this subject lot.

FIRE Fire hydrants are existing, however, through the review of a building permit
application additional improvements for fire protection may be required.

CONCLUSION: Staff forwards this request to amend the existing UNP PUD to allow for a

day care and Ordinance No. O-2122-21 to Planning Commission for consideration.
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CITY OF NORMAN

Development Review Form
Transportation Impacts

Y

DATE: September 20, 2021

CONDUCTED BY: Jami L. Short, P.E.
City Traffic Engineer

PROJECT NAME: UNP Daycare PUD Amendment PROJECT TYPE: Commercial PUD

Owner: University North Park
Developer’s Engineer: Johnson & Associates
Developer’s Traffic Engineer: Johnson & Associates

SURROUNDING ENVIRONMENT (Streets, Developments)

The areas surrounding this site include some medical office with some commercial to the northwest and various forms of resi-
dential to the south. 24™ Avenue NW connects to Tecumseh Road to the north and to Rock Creek Road and Robinson Street
to the south.

ALLOWABLE ACCESS:
The access will be in accordance with Section 4018 of the City’s Engineering Design Criteria.

EXISTING STREET CHARACTERISTICS (Lanes, Speed Limits, Sight Distance, Medians)
24" Avenue NW: 4 lanes (existing and future). Speed Limit—45 mph. No sight distance problems. Median with an existing
opening and left-turn bay for shared access drive to the current Premiere Pediatrics located just south of the daycare location.

ACCESS MANAGEMENT CODE COMPLIANCE: YES W NO []

Proposed access for the development will comply with what is allowed in the University North Park PUD.
TRIP GENERATION

Total In Out
Weekday 741 371 370
A.M. Peak Hour 122 65 57
P.M. Peak Hour 123 58 65
TRANSPORTATION IMPACT STUDY REQUIRED? YES B NO []

The developer submitted a traffic impact analysis documenting the trip generation information for this PUD . The develop-
ment is proposed for location approx1mately 1,200 feet south of the intersection of 24™ Avenue NW and Tecumseh Road with
access to Tecumseh Road by way of 24™ Avenue NW to the north and to Rock Creek Road and Robinson Street, also by way
of 24™ Avenue NW, to the south.

RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL M DENIAL [ONA O STIPULATIONS []

Recommendations for Approval refer only to the transportation impact and do not constitute an endorsement from City Staff-

The proposed daycare will access 24™ Avenue NW to the west and Tecumseh Road to the north and Rock Creek Road and
Robinson Street to the south, both by way of 24™ Avenue NW. Access will remain unchanged on 24" Avenue NW as an ex-
isting median opening and left-turn lane are utilized to access the site. Capacity exceeds demand in this area. As such, no off-
site improvements are anticipated.
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TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS

“mﬁ To Serve A
UNP DAYCARE

located

l

South of Tecumseh Rd. & east of 24" Ave. N.W.
Norman, Cleveland County, Oklahoma

JOHNSON&CASSOCIATES

Prepared by:

JOHNSON & ASSOCIATES
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION #1484
EXPIRATION DATE: 06-30-2023

1 EAST SHERIDAN AVENUE

SUITE 200

OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73104
(405) 235-8075
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TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALY'SIS

To Serve

UNP DAYCARE

located

South of Tecumseh Rd. & east of 24™ Ave. N.W.

Norman, Cleveland County, Oklahoma

KL A
il

August 27, 2021

Prepared for:
Crosslands Companies
5750 DTC Parkway #145

Greenwood Village, CO 80111

Prepared by:

JOHNSON & ASSOCIATES
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION #1484
EXPIRATION DATE: 06-30-2023
1 EAST SHERIDAN AVENUE
SuITE 200
OKLAHOMA CITY, OKLAHOMA 73104
(405) 235-8075
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Johnson & Associates has been retained to provide a traffic study for the proposed

UNP Daycare development located south of Tecumseh Road and east of 24t
Avenue N.W. This proposed development will share an access drive onto 24"
Avenue with Premiere Pediatrics to the south. This report analyzes this shared
access and the impact of the proposed daycare on existing traffic conditions at the
intersection with 24" Avenue N.W.

- JECUMSEH ROAD

o
CHtAVENUE MWL

The results of the analyses in this report show that the intersection at the existing
access drive operates at a Level-of-Service (LOS) “A” currently serving Premiere
Pediatrics and will continue to do so after the construction of the proposed daycare
facility during both the AM and PM peak hours. The analyses show longest delays
for vehicles leaving the site turning left during the PM peak hour currently operating
at a LOS “C" and a delay of 15.4 seconds which will remain at a LOS “C” after the
proposed development and increase in delay slightly to 18.7 seconds.

Given the minor impact of the proposed development on the fully developed 24
Avenue N.W., Johnson & Associates recommends the project be allowed to
proceed without any street infrastructure improvements.
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UNP Daycare August 27, 2021
Page I-1
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PROJECT SCOPE

Johnson & Associates has been retained to provide a Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA)

for UNP Daycare located approximately 1200 feet south of Tecumseh Road on the
east side of 24" Avenue N.W. in Norman. As it stands the site is currently
undeveloped and will include a 10,000 square feet of daycare facility. Access to
the site will be obtained through an existing shared access drive that currently
serves Premiere Pediatrics to the south. Figqure 1 shows the site location,
surrounding streets, and the access drive.

24" Avenue N.W. is a 4-lane divided, 45 MPH roadway primarily utilized to convey
traffic from existing and future surrounding development either north to Tecumseh
Road or south to Robinson Street. 24" Avenue N.W. was constructed with the
expectation of the surrounding area being fully developed, and significant
engineering has been performed over the years to place traffic signals,
intersections and median cuts to optimize traffic flow through the area. Given this
broad planning approach, changes to the street infrastructure along 24t Avenue
N.W., outside of median cuts and the addition of left turn lanes, are not anticipated
in the foreseeable future. When the existing access drive serving the site was
constructed a median cut and southbound left turn lane was also built.

This report will analyze the intersection of this access drive with 24" Avenue N.W.
including analyses for the existing condition and conditions after the proposed
daycare has been constructed.

TRAFFIC COUNTS

Recent 24-hour street counts for the area were obtained from the Association of

Central Oklahoma Governments (ACOG). Traffic counts from January of this year
just south of the proposed site indicate that 24" Avenue N.W. carries
approximately 9,919 vehicles per day. The existing traffic counts can be found in

the Appendix.
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UNP Daycare August 27, 2021
Page 1
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TRIP GENERATION

To determine the amount of traffic generated by the proposed development and

the existing Premiere Pediatrics to the south, the nationally accepted TRIP
Generation Report, published by the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE)

was utilized. The ITE Report is a compilation of studies conducted to project the
expected number of trips that various land uses might be expected to generate. A
TRIP, as defined by the report, is “a single or one-direction vehicle movement with
either the origin or the destination (exiting or entering) inside a study site.” One
TRIP End is equal to one TRIP. For TRIP generation purposes, total TRIP Ends
for a land use over a given period of time is the total of all trips entering plus all
trips exiting a site during that designated time. The land uses determined to most
accurately simulate the development is Daycare Center (565), and Medical /
Dental Office (720). Table 1 shows that the existing Premiere Pediatrics likely
generates a total of 29 trips during AM peak hour and 44 trips during the PM peak
hour while the Average Daily Traffic (ADT) generated is 441. The table also shows
the proposed daycare will generate a total of 122 trips during AM peak hour and
123 trips during the PM peak hour while the Average Daily Traffic (ADT)
generated is 741.

TRIP DISTRIBUTION

After the above traffic volumes were calculated they were then distributed onto the

existing street system with assumptions made as to the direction that the vehicles
would approach and leave the site. These assumptions are based on the existing
traffic patterns of the adjacent street system and likely routes traffic will take in and
out of the area. Given the simple nature of the access drive’s intersection with 24t
Avenue N.W. and the proximity of surrounding street and development, it was
assumed the traffic would split evenly distributing north and south. This distribution
was applied first to the existing Premiere Pediatrics facility and then to the
proposed daycare traffic. The combination of these values with the existing traffic
from the ACOG counts can be seen in the analyzed scenarios in the Appendix.

Iltem 4.

UNP Daycare August 27, 2021
Page 2
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NORMAN DAYCARE CENTER
TRIP GENERATION
8/26/2021
T"”:‘:“”‘"“‘ Distribution Percentages Total Trips Trip Distribution
Description, ITE Code (Unit Type) | Numb ates
Trip Generation Details of Units AM AM PM PM AM Peak | PM Peak | AM AM AM PM PM PM

Waskday | 1AM SRR Pass By Entering | Exiting| Entering| Exiting Daily Hour Hour | Enteting | Exiting | Pass-By || Entering | Exiting | Pass-By

EXISTING PEDIATRIC DEVELOPMENT
12200 3613 | 239 | as7 NA 79% | 21% | 28% | 72% a1 29 44 23 6 NA 12 32 NA

Medical / Dental Office 720(SF |

65 NA

AM & PM Peak of Adjacent Street

57 NA 58

122 123 65

53% Ta1

1218 | 1234 NA

10.000 7406

Daycare Center 565 (S F |
JABLE 1

AM & PM Peak of Adjacent Street
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INTERSECTION CAPACITY ANALYSES

Capacity analyses were conducted on the adjacent access drive for both the AM

and PM peak hours utilizing Synchro 11 Traffic Signal Software. The analyses
were conducted to determine how the intersections currently operated and how
they will operate after the proposed daycare is fully operational.

In order to qualitatively compare and measure the effectiveness of intersections
the nationally accepted Level-Of-Service (LOS) rating system was employed. This
rating system utilizes many factors such as speed, traffic interruptions, reaction
time and queue lengths to determine delays and saturation experienced at an
intersection. The two nationally accepted methods of calculating LOS for an
intersection are the Highway Capacity Manual (HCM) method, primarily used for
signalized intersections and all-way stop unsignalized intersections, and the
Intersection Capacity Utilization (ICU) method, primarily used for intersections with

driveways and minor streets where the major street is not required to stop.

The ICU method sums the amount of time required to serve all movements at
saturation for a given cycle length and divides by that reference cycle length to
give a percentage of the full capacity for the intersection. This places the
intersection in one of eight categories from “A” to “H” with a LOS “A” representing
the best operating conditions and LOS “H" representing the worst operating
conditions. The ICU criteria for LOS ranking is listed in the following table.

Iltem 4.

ICU INTERSECTION LOS CRITERIA
LSe:Si-c?ef- Percent of Full Capacity
A <55%
B >55%-64%
C >64%-73%
D >73%-82%
E >82%-91%
F >91%-100%
G >100%-109%
H >109%
UNP Daycare August 27, 2021

Page 3
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Utilizing the ICU method for the access drive the analyses show that the adjacent
intersection with 24" Avenue N.W. currently operates at a LOS “A” for both the AM
and PM peak hours with the iongest movement delay being the PM exiting
westbound left turn at 15.4 seconds and a LOS “C”. After the proposed daycare
development, the intersection as a whole continues to operate at a LOS “A” for
both the AM & PM peak hours while the PM westbound left turn increases in delay
to 18.7 seconds but remaining at a LOS “C". Details of the analyses for all the
scenarios are included in the Appendix.

CONCLUSIONS

It is anticipated that the access for the proposed development will continue to

operate similar to any other development in commercial areas that gain access to
a major arterial. Additionally, the existing medical facility and the proposed daycare
pair well together utilizing the same access point do to their differing peak times of
traffic to each facility. The analyses in this report take this into consideration and
analyze the worst case which is the actual traffic generated from these facilities
during the adjacent street peak time. These the analyses show that the intersection
at the existing access drive and 24™ Avenue N.W. operates at a Level-of-Service
(LOS) “A” currently serving Premiere Pediatrics and will continue to do so after the
construction of the proposed daycare facility during both the AM and PM peak
hours. The analyses show longest delays for vehicles leaving the site turning left
during the PM peak hour currently operating at a LOS “C" and a delay of 15.4
seconds and will remain at a LOS “C” after the proposed development and
increase in delay slightly to 18.7 seconds.

Given the minor impact of the proposed development on the fully developed 24t
Avenue N.W., Johnson & Associates recommends the project be allowed to
proceed without any street infrastructure improvements.
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UNP Daycare August 27, 2021
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https://acog.public.ms2soft.com/tcds/tsearch.asp?loc=Acog&mod=

acog Transportation Data Management
System
Volume Count Report
Location ID {52500-5001 Hourly
Type |LINK Time Count

Fact'l Class [Minor Arterial 0:00-1:00 31
Located On [24TH AVE NW 1:00-2:00 17
From Road [TECUMSEH RD 2:00-3:00 18
To Road |W ROCK CREEK RD 3:00-4:00 19
Direction |2-WAY 4:00-5:00 21
County [Cleveland 5:00-6:00 47
Community {Norman 6:00-7:00 164
MPO ID 7:00-8:00 530
HPMS ID 8:00-9:00 706
Agency JACOG OK 9:00-10:00 672
10:00-11:00 & 753

® 11:00-12:00 729

12:00-13:00 850

Count Status |Accepted 13:00-14:00 723

Start Date [Thu 1/28/2021 14:00-15:00 726

End Date |Fri 1/29/2021 15:00-16:00 762

Start Time |11:00:00 AM 16:00-17:00 781

End Time {11:00:00 AM 17:00-18:00 855

Direction 18:00-19:00 604

Notes 19:00-20:00 394

Station [5001 20:00-21:00 250

Study 21:00-22:00 160

Speed Limit 22:00-23:00 61

Description 23:00-24:00 46

Sensor Type Total 9,919

Source AADT 9,919
Latitude,Longitude AM Peak 10:00-11 722

PM Peak 17:00—185(532
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EXIST. AM Peak Hour 2021

2: ACCESS DRIVE & 24th AVE.

N.W.

HCM Unsignalized Intersection Capacity Analysis

Iltem 4.

08/26/2021

" BV
Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR  SBL SBT
Lane Configurations 5 rf LT
Traffic Volume (veh/h) 3 3 353 12 1 353
Future Volume (Veh/h) 3 3 353 12 1 353
Sign Control Stop Free Free
Grade 0% 0% 0%
Peak Hour Factor 092 092 092 092 092 092
Hourly flow rate (vph) 3 3 384 13 12 384
Pedestrians
Lane Width (ft)
Walking Speed (ft/s)
Percent Blockage
Right turn flare (veh)
Median type None None
Median storage veh)
Upstream signal (ft)
pX, platoon unblocked
vC, conflicting volume 606 198 397
vC1, stage 1 conf vol
vC2, stage 2 conf vol
vCu, unblocked vol 606 198 397
tC, single (s) 6.8 6.9 41
tC, 2 stage (s)
tF (s) 35 3.3 22
p0 queue free % 99 100 99
¢M capacity (veh/h) 424 809 1158
Direction, Lane # WB1 WB2 NB1 NB2 SB1 SB2 SB3
Volume Total 3 3 256 141 12 192 192
Volume Left 3 0 0 0 12 0 0
Volume Right 0 3 0 13 0 0 0
cSH 424 809 1700 1700 1158 1700 1700
Volume to Capacity 001 000 015 008 001 011 011
Queue Length 95th (ft) 1 0 0 0 1 0 0
Control Delay (s) 13.6 9.5 0.0 0.0 8.1 0.0 0.0
Lane LOS B A A
Approach Delay (s) 115 0.0 0.2
Approach LOS B
Intersection Summary
Average Delay 0.2
Intersection Capacity Utilization 20.1% ICU Level of Service
Analysis Period (min) 15

P:\4897\CAL\Traffic\Base Synchro Model.syn

Johnson & Associates

Synchro 11 Report

Page 1
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EXIST. PM Peak Hour 2021
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HCM Unsignalized Intersection Capacity Analysis

2. ACCESS DRIVE & 24th AVE. N.W. 08/26/2021
v Lt 2

Movement WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL  SBT |

Lane Configurations N [ S L

Traffic Volume (veh/h) 16 16 428 6 6 427

Future Volume (Veh/h) 16 16 428 6 6 427

Sign Control Stop Free Free

Grade 0% 0% 0%

Peak Hour Factor 092 092 09 092 092 092

Hourly flow rate (vph) 17 17 465 7 7 464

Pedestrians

Lane Width (ft)

Walking Speed (ft/s)

Percent Blockage

Right turn flare (veh)

Median type None None

Median storage veh)

Upstream signal (ft)

pX, platoon unblocked

vC, conflicting volume 714 236 472

vC1, stage 1 conf vol

vC2, stage 2 conf vol

vCu, unblocked vol 714 236 472

tC, single (s) 6.8 6.9 41

tC, 2 stage (s)

tF (s) 35 3.3 22

p0 queue free % 95 98 99

¢M capacity (veh/h) 363 766 1086

Direction, Lane # WB1 WB2 NB1 NB2 SB1 SB2 SB3

Volume Total 17 17 310 162 7 232 232

Volume Left 17 0 0 0 7 0 0

Volume Right 0 17 0 7 0 0 0

cSH 363 766 1700 1700 1086 1700 1700

Volume to Capacity 005 002 018 010 001 014 014

Queue Length 95th (ft) 4 2 0 0 0 0 0

Control Delay (s) 154 98 0.0 0.0 8.3 0.0 0.0

Lane LOS C A A

Approach Delay (s) 12.6 0.0 01

Approach LOS B

Intersection Summary |

Average Delay 0.5

Intersection Capacity Utilization 22.0% ICU Level of Service

Analysis Period (min) 15

P:\4897\CAL\Traffic\Base Synchro Model.syn

Johnson & Associates

Synchro 11 Report
Page 1
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Future Access Drive Analyses
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PROP. AM Peak Hour 2021

2: ACCESS DRIVE & 24th AVE. N.W.

HCM Unsignalized Intersection Capacity Analysis

Iltem 4.

08/26/2021

vt 2
Movement _ WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL  SBT
Lane Configurations % f N 44
Traffic Volume (veh/h) 32 31 353 44 4 353
Future Volume (Veh/h) 32 K} 353 44 44 353
Sign Control Stop Free Free
Grade 0% 0% 0%
Peak Hour Factor 092 092 092 092 09 092
Hourly flow rate (vph) 35 34 384 48 48 384
Pedestrians
Lane Width (ft)
Walking Speed (ft/s)
Percent Blockage
Right turn flare (veh)
Median type None None
Median storage veh)
Upstream signal (ft)
pX, platoon unblocked
vC, conflicting volume 696 216 432
vC1, stage 1 conf vol
vC2, stage 2 conf vol
vCu, unblocked vol 696 216 432
tC, single (s} 6.8 6.9 41
tC, 2 stage (s)
tF (s) 35 33 22
p0 queue free % 90 96 96
cM capacity (veh/h) 360 789 1124
Direction, Lane # WB1 WB2 NB1 NB2 SB1 SB2 SB3
Volume Total 35 34 256 176 48 192 192
Volume Left 35 0 0 0 48 0 0
Volume Right 0 34 0 48 0 0 0
cSH 360 789 1700 1700 1124 1700 1700
Volume to Capacity 010 004 015 010 004 011 011
Queue Length 95th (ft) 8 3 0 0 3 0 0
Control Delay (s) 16.1 9.8 0.0 0.0 8.3 0.0 0.0
Lane LOS C A A
Approach Delay (s) 13.0 0.0 09
Approach LOS B
Intersection Summary
Average Delay 14
Intersection Capacity Utilization 27.8% ICU Level of Service
Analysis Period (min) 15

P:\4897\CAL\Traffic\Base Synchro Model.syn

Johnson & Associates

Synchro 11 Report

Page 1
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PROP. PM Peak Hour 2021

HCM Unsignalized Intersection Capacity Analysis

Iltem 4.

2. ACCESS DRIVE & 24th AVE. N.W. 08/26/2021
v St 2

Movement _WBL WBR NBT NBR SBL  SBT ;

Lane Configurations % f LI

Traffic Volume (veh/h) 49 48 428 35 35 427

Future Volume (Veh/h) 49 48 428 35 35 427

Sign Control Stop Free Free

Grade 0% 0% 0%

Peak Hour Factor 092 092 092 092 092 092

Hourly flow rate (vph) 53 52 465 38 38 464

Pedestrians

Lane Width (ft)

Walking Speed (ft/s)

Percent Blockage

Right turn flare (veh)

Median type None None

Median storage veh)

Upstream signal (ft)

pX, platoon unblocked

vC, conflicting volume 792 252 503

vC1, stage 1 conf vol

vC2, stage 2 conf vol

vCu, unblocked vol 792 252 503

tC, single (s) 6.8 6.9 41

tC, 2 stage (s)

tF (s) 35 33 22

p0 queue free % 83 93 96

cM capacity (veh/h) 315 748 1058

Direction, Lane # WB1 WB2 NB1 NB2 SB1 SB2 SB3

Volume Total 53 52 310 193 38 232 232

Volume Left 53 0 0 0 38 0 0

Volume Right 0 52 0 38 0 0 0

cSH 315 748 1700 1700 1058 1700 1700

Volume to Capacity 017 007 018 011 004 014 014

Queue Length 95th (ft) 15 6 0 0 3 0 0

Control Delay (s) 187 102 0.0 0.0 85 0.0 0.0

Lane LOS c B A

Approach Delay (s) 145 0.0 06

Approach LOS B

Intersection Summary

Average Delay 1.7

Intersection Capacity Utilization 29.6% ICU Levei of Service

Analysis Period (min) 15

P:\4897\CAL\Traffic\Base Synchro Model.syn

Johnson & Associates

Synchro 11 Report
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Amended and Restated
University North Park PUD Development Plan
October 2021

Background: In 2002, the Board of Regents of the University of Oklahoma
(“Owner/Applicant’) submitted a Development Plan for approximately 585 acres owned
by the Applicant, together with off-site detention easements, as a Planned Unit
Development (“PUD”), located East of I-35 and West of existing airport runways, running
North from Robinson Street to Tecumseh Avenue LESS AND EXCEPT the North 1,226.5
feet lying West of 24t Avenue NW, (hereinafter referred to as “the Property”). A PUD
Application and Preliminary Plat were submitted concurrently with that Development Plan.
The PUD, the Development Plan, and Preliminary Plat were duly approved by the City
Council of Norman, Oklahoma, on August 27, 2002. On October 11, 2005, the Norman
City Council approved the First Amendment to the PUD Narrative by Ordinance O-0506-
9 which permits the Owner/Applicant to sell or lease unplatted portion of forty (40) acres
or more. Subsequently, the Owner/Applicant sold a portion of the 585 acres.
Development has begun on the areas originally designated as “SDA #3, SDA #4, and
SDA #5” on the original Preliminary Plat, part of which is now designated and recorded
as the Final Plat of UNIVERSITY NORTH PARK ADDITION, Section One. In addition, a
Master Plan has been developed for the South Half of the Property. As to the North Half
of the Property, it is still impossible, at this juncture, to realistically outline building
footprints. As specific users come forward, final plats and site plans will be submitted for
City review and approval.

This Amended and Restated Narrative is intended to replace, in their entirety, the original
2002 PUD Narrative and its 2005 First Amendment, subsequent amendments in 2006,
2015, 2018, 2019 and 2021 (Lot 4A, Block 1 University North Park Professional
Center).

It is still appropriate to impose significant standards, restrictions and requirements on the
development of the Property.

The City of Norman has long owned forty acres of land which abut the subject PUD tract.
This forty-acre tract lies at the south ends of the existing airport runways. Years ago, the
City leased said forty acres to the University of Oklahoma (“the University”), with the
stipulation that the University would operate and maintain the land as a municipal airport.
The University has satisfied, and continues to satisfy, that obligation to operate a
municipal airport. The University is still under an obligation to the FAA to include the
following reservations and restrictions in all deeds conveying any part of the Property:

1. Reserving air space above the Property for aircraft, with attendant noise,
operating from Westheimer Airpark;

2. Restricting height of structures, vegetation and obstructions; and

3. Restricting use of land that would interfere with landings and takeoffs at
Westheimer Airpark, or that would otherwise constitute an airport hazard.
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UNP PUD Narrative — Page 2

The following Exhibits, submitted by the firm of SMC Consulting Engineers, P.C., are
made a part of this Planned Unit Development:

Exhibit A - Revised Preliminary Plat dated 8/14/06 and subsequently revised as presented
to Council on 12/12/06;

Exhibit B - Revised Traffic Impact Analysis dated 8/14/06;

Exhibit C - Revised Preliminary Development Plan Map dated 8/14/06 as revised for
Council on 12/12/06;

Exhibit D - Revised Streetscape/Landscape/Greenway Plan dated 8/14/06;
Exhibit E - Revised Drainage/Detention Plan dated 8/14/06 and revised 9/22/06;

Exhibit F-University North Park (South Halfy Master Signage Plan dated 8/14/06
(prepared by architect).

Exhibit G - Legal Description, University North Park (SDA-1) Purchase Tract
Exhibit G-1 - Location Map, UNP Business Center

Exhibit H — Amended uses to a portion of the south half of UNP to allow a bar, lounge or
tavern; live entertainment venue; and mixed buildings as permitted uses

Exhibit | ~ Amended use to a portion of the south half of UNP to allow for seasonal use
of a stage for outdoor live entertainment located in the area as shown on Exhibit I.

Exhibit J — Legal description for additional allowable use of senior living center with a
restaurant and a bar, and a revised parking ratio.

Exhibit K — Location Map for Lot 4A, Block 1 University North Park Professional
Center (provided by Johnson & Associates)

Exhibit L — Legal description for Lot 4A, Block 1 University North Park Professional
Center (provided by Johnson & Associates)

Exhibit M — Site Plan for Lot 4A, Block 1 University North Park Professional Center
(provided by Johnson & Associates)

USE: In the accompanying revised Preliminary Plat and Revised Preliminary Plan Map
Exhibits, the South Half of the Property is divided into Ready Building Areas (“RBA”) 1A,
1B, 2, 3,4,5,6,7,8,9, 10, 11, and 12, along with Legacy Park, RBA-LP. The North Half
of the Property is not divided into lots and blocks. At this juncture, the Applicant has no
way of knowing what configuration for a lot, or what specific use, any particular
Buyer/Tenant might want for all or any part of said North Half. Accordingly, as to said
North Half, the Revised Preliminary Plat simply divides the Property and designates
separate Sub-Development Areas (“SDA”). The RBAs and the SDAs are expected to be
developed successively, each over a period of three (3) years. However, this does not
preclude two or more RBAs and/or SDAs being developed within the same time frame.
While the entire Property could take twenty-one (21) years to develop, it is contemplated
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UNP PUD Narrative — Page 3

that full development will be accomplished in a lesser time. Approval of a Final Plat for
any part of an RBA or SDA will contemplate that Final Plat(s) for all of that particular RBA
or SDA will be submitted within three (3) years thereafter. However, water and sewer
improvements for an entire RBA or SDA will be installed, for that particular RBA or SDA,
at the time the first part of that particular SDA is developed. [NOTE: Tracts X1 and X2,
as shown on Exhibit A (Revised Preliminary Plat) and Exhibit C (Revised Development
Map, are not RBAs or SDAs. Tracts X1 and X2 (which were referred to as 3A and 4A on
the original Preliminary Plat) will accommodate street, utility, parking, detention, and
airport purposes. Tract X1 and X2 will be landscaped, and any parking thereon will be
subject to a fifty (50) foot setback line, and there will be no curbcuts, driveways or other
access from either X1 or X2 directly onto Robinson Street.] Owner/Applicant proposes
the following-described uses for all 585 acres of the Property, relating to the total
developed land area, less rights-of way, as follows:

INDUSTRIAL - not more than fifty percent (50%) of total;

COMMERCIAL - not more than fifty percent (50%) of total;

OFFICE - not more than fifty percent (50%) of total;

RESIDENTIAL - not more than thirty percent (30%) of total.
The terms used, immediately above, are defined to mean:

“‘Residential’-Any uses currently permitted as a matter of right in the RM-6 zoning district
of the City of Norman;

“‘Commercial’- Any uses currently permitted as a matter of right in the C-2 zoning district
of the City of Norman and the below additional allowable uses; except the land included
on Exhibit H also allows the following uses:

e Bar, lounge or tavern;
¢ Live entertainment venue;
e Mixed buildings

Except the land included on “Exhibit |I” also allows the following use:

o Seasonal use of a stage for outdoor live entertainment located in the area
as shown on “Exhibit I” and defined as follows:

Outdoor Live Entertainment: Allowing outdoor live entertainment within the
area designated on the site plan (Exhibit |). The outdoor live entertainment
will occur seasonally, weather permitting, and during business hours, so
long as said outdoor live entertainment does not interfere with any permitted
or City organized activities at the adjacent parkland.

e The land included on “Exhibit J” also allows the following uses:
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o Senior Living Center, including but not limited to memory care and assisted
living, with a restaurant and a bar on the premises and a revised parking
ratio of 1 parking space per 1 living unit.

e The land included on “Exhibits L and M” also allows the following uses:
o A childcare establishment located in the area as shown on “Exhibits
L and M”.

“Industrial” - Any uses currently permitted as a matter of right in the I-1 and M-1 zoning
districts of the City of Norman; and

“Office” - Any uses currently permitted as a matter of right in the O-1 and C-O zoning
districts of the City of Norman

With respect to SDA #1, Owner/Applicant specifically states that it is limited to industrial,
office and/or residential uses, only, and that no commercial uses will be developed on
SDAs #1, #2, #6 or #7. Further, 72 acres of the net 88 acres in SDA #6 will be solely
devoted to multi-family residential at a density of 18 units per acre. (It should be
noted that, since no actual end-users for the North Half of the Property are known
at this time, the land-use limitations in the preceding two sentences are subject to
revision, contingent on an acceptable TIA for any such revisions.) Further, the
maximum Floor Area Ratio (“FAR") for each land use category, for the entire PUD, shall
be as follows: .40 Residential; .20 Commercial; and .15 Industrial.

SALES, FINAL PLAT AND TAXES: The terms “Owner”, “Applicant” and
“Owner/Applicant” should each be, and are, deemed to include the University of
Oklahoma Foundation, Inc., (“Foundation”) an Oklahoma not-for-profit corporation
having the University as its exclusive beneficiary (including a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Foundation), as well as the University of Oklahoma. Owner/Applicant may sell or
lease unplatted portions of forty (40) acres or more of the Property to a Buyer/Tenant.
Such Buyer/Tenant must first submit a Final Plat and a Site Plan to the Owner/Applicant
for review and approval. No building permit can be issued prior to the approval of a Final
Plat by the City of Norman. Subject to the preceding four sentences, Owner/Applicant
will not sell or lease unplatted portions of the Property to any Buyer/Tenant. All Final
Plats and building permits will be subject to then-applicable ordinances and regulations
of the City of Norman and to fees connected therewith. In the event that Owner/Applicant
or any other tax-exempt entity lease any part of the Property to any entity, or uses any
part of the Property for any purpose, that is not entitled by law to be exempt from paying
ad valorem taxes, then and is all such events, the owner(s) of such tract(s) will be required
to pay to the County Treasurer of Cleveland County an in-lieu tax in an amount of the ad
valorem tax that would otherwise be payable. Such in-lieu taxes will be due and payable
at the time or times such ad valorem taxes would otherwise be due and payable.

WATER WELLS: There are existing water wells in the PUD tract, currently capable of
producing non-potable water. Owner/Applicant reserves the right to use such non-
potable water for irrigation and/or manufacturing purposes only.
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QUALIFICATION OF BUYER/TENANT: Whenever the Owner/Applicant

(meaning the University, the Foundation or the Foundation’s wholly-owned subsidiary)
receives a written offer to buy or lease any party of the Property, such offer will be referred
to and examined by a committee appointed by the President of the University or the
President of the Foundation, as the case may be. The President of the University of
Oklahoma (or his/her designee) shall serve as a member of any such Committee which
is appointed by the President of the Foundation. If a contract is then executed by
Owner/Applicant and the Buyer/Tenant, a Final Plat and required accompanying
documents will be prepared. Upon approval of such Final Plat and related documents,
the development of the Buyer/Tenant’s lot may be started.

ACCESS: Primary access to the Property will be from existing 24" Avenue NW. The
submitted Revised Preliminary Plat contains easements sufficient to accommodate a new
frontage road along the westerly boundary of the Property, with connections to 1-35.

With respect to such I-35 connections, ingress and egress points for North-bound traffic
on Interstate Highway 35 may be constructed. The construction of an interchange over
I-35, at Rock Creek Road, will be dependent on funding by the Oklahoma Department of
Transportation (“*ODOT"). It is hoped that such interchange will be constructed in
connection with widening of I-35. The point currently shown, where the easement for the
south end of a new frontage road ties into Robinson Street, is subject to adjustment,
depending on final decision from highway officials having jurisdiction. The precise points
where the easement for such frontage road ties back into Tecumseh Road, Robinson
Street, Rock Creek Road or 24" Avenue NW may be relocated by the requirements of
the buyer/tenant(s) of the lot(s) in such area(s), if highway officials having jurisdiction
approve any such relocation.

The Revised Traffic Impact Analysis (“TIA") Exhibit B reflects total current buildout
limitations, based on the realization that no portion of the I-35 Interchange at Rock Creek
Road is either in existence or authorized. As Final Plats are submitted, if the Interchange
at Rock Creek Road is not under contract or has not been built, each such Final Plat must
adequately accommodate traffic, without the Interchange. A detailed TIA, to be submitted
with each Final Plat, must embrace traffic considerations for the entire RBA or SDA within
which any Final Plat is located. [f any such Final Plat, along with any proposed
improvements, will generate traffic in excess of “Level Service D” during peak hours for
any intersections identified in the TIA, Owner/Applicant understands and agrees that such
Final Plats will not be considered by the City of Norman. Owner/Applicant hopes to gain
approval of the construction of the I-35 Interchange at Rock Creek Road. It is important
to note that the estimated maximum Floor Area Ratio (“FAR”) percentages, shown in
Revised TIA Exhibit B, apply to the entire PUD land area, and not to any particular RBAs
or SDAs. A Final Plat may be submitted for all or any part of an RBA or SDA, with the
FAR percentage for any particular land use exceeding the maximum percentage
estimated in the Revised TIA Exhibit B for the entire PUD, for that particular land use.
The maximum square footage of each use category for the entire PUD is stated in
Revised TIA Exhibit B.

Because no alleyways have been proposed on the Preliminary Plat, all lots smaller than
three (3) acres in size, or which share access to public streets, will provided internal
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connections with cross-access easements to adjacent lots to facilitate deliveries, traffic
flow and sanitation service. In SDA#1, there will be no more than three (3) curb cuts onto
24™ Avenue NW, to be used as shared driveways by a maximum of six (6) platted lots in
SDA#1. Throughout the PUD, driveway/curb cuts will: (A) be at least one hundred fifty
feet (150’) from a street intersection; and (B) be at least one hundred fifty feet (150’) apart;
and (C) not be permitted within “stacking” lanes for turning movements on streets. The
sharing of common driveways, by adjoining lots, along with cross-access easements, will
be utilized to the maximum extent practical. Median cuts in the South Half of the Property
will be limited to those shown on the approved Revised Development Plans Map (Exhibit
C).

LANDSCAPING/STREETSCAPING/GREENWAY: At least fifteen percent (15%) of
the net area of the Property will be designated as open space. The project will fully
comply with all Norman ordinances and regulations relating to landscaping and drainage
detention. On-site landscaping (including “streetscaping”, as hereinafter defined) will be
installed when a Building Permit is issued for an approved Final Plat. Definitions of terms
used herein are:

“arterial streets”-24™" Ave. NW and 1-35 Service Road and Rock Creek Road:

“interior streets”-All other public streets, other than arterial streets, within the
development;

“streetscaping” - On individual lots, trees bordering interior streets and arterial
streets; in common areas, all trees and all other vegetation; and

landscaping” - Trees, other than streetscaping, plus all other vegetation on any
given lot.

For the property described on “Exhibits G and G-1” the required streetscape buffer strip
along the east side of 24" Avenue will be maintained at five (5) feet.

For the property described on “Exhibits L and M” the required streetscape buffer
strip along the east side of 24'" Avenue will be maintained at five (5) feet.

Streetscaping, as well as landscaping, must be shown on a Final Plat, including irrigation.
Actual construction of streetscaping and landscaping on any Final Plat can be deferred
to the time a building permit is issued for an approved Final Plat.

The owner of any given lot will always be responsible for the installation and
maintenance of landscaping, plus the installation of streetscaping on each such lot,
plus the installation and maintenance of any detention area which is wholly or partially
contained within such lot.

The installation and maintenance of any and all streetscaping in medians and common
areas (along with the operation and maintenance of all common drainage/detention areas
and any other commons areas) will always be the responsibility of a mandatory Property
Owners Association (“POA”), which has been formed by Owner/Applicant, pursuant to
the First Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions executed by
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the Owner/Applicant and others and filed on March 13, 2006, in Book 4145, Pages 213-
257, Cleveland County Clerk’s Office (“the Restrictive Covenants”). Installation, or
bonding for installation, shall occur in adjacent medians, prior to the issuance of a
Certificate of Occupancy. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Restrictive Covenants
(or any other covenant between adjoining landowners), the City of Norman can discharge
its legal obligation to notify responsible parties by notifying only the POA of the need for
maintenance and the possibility of a lien if the City has such maintenance performed.

Current Norman ordinances would require two five foot (5’) wide sidewalks, one on each
side of 24" Avenue NW, each running the entire north-south length of the Property.
Instead, Applicant proposes to provide appropriate easements and will cause to be built,
and have the POA maintain, a ten-foot (10°) wide “multi-purpose trail” along the entire
east side of 24" Avenue NW, as it runs through the PUD. The remaining sidewalks will
be on both sides of Rock Creek Road, between 24" Avenue NW and the I-35 Service
Road easement. Such trail and sidewalks will provide connections to existing City
‘greenway” trails. In any residential areas, additional sidewalks may be required,
pursuant to Norman Ordinances.

PARKING AND OFF-STREET LOADING: All uses within the PUD shall comply with
the off-street parking and loading requirements, and related landscaping provisions,
provided by applicable Norman ordinances, subject to the following: Owner/Applicant
has confirmed that the various uses to be made of the Property will not, in all cases,
require as much parking space as is prescribed by current Norman ordinances.
Accordingly, owners may submit revised Site Development Plans and Preliminary Plats
showing less than the amounts required by Norman ordinances for parking for any
specific lot(s), for the consideration of the City of Norman.

BUILDING LIMITATIONS: The building heights on each individual lot shall be
governed by applicable FAA Regulations and by restrictions identified within the PUD.
Setbacks and coverages on each individual lot shall be governed by applicable FAA
Regulations and City of Norman ordinances, subject to the provisions of this PUD
Narrative. All buildings must observe a fifty foot (50°) front building setback line. Provided,
however, on a Commercial lot which provides parking at the rear and/or side of a store,
(where no parking is provided in front of the building, a twenty foot (20°) front building
setback line is permissible.

For the property described on “Exhibits G and G-1" the required front building setback
line shall be twenty-five (25) feet.

For the property described on “Exhibits L and M” the required front building
setback line shall be twenty-five (25) feet.

DRAINAGE/DETENTION: A regional drainage solution, embracing the entire area
within the PUD, is submitted as Revised Exhibit E. It exceeds City of Norman
requirements. Detention plans for the PUD are discussed, in general, in Revised Exhibit
E. Specific detention plans will be submitted with each Final Plat, as required by Norman
ordinances. All off-site drainage detention areas will be conveyed as non-exclusive
easements to the POA, for the use and benefit of the PUD, by separate instruments.
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PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION: A mandatory POA (University North Park
Association, LLC, 100 Timberdell Road, Norman, OK 73019) has been created, to
operate and maintain the detention/drainage and other common areas and the
streetscaping areas within the entire PUD, all as shown on attached Revised Exhibits.
Installation and maintenance of landscaping is the responsibility of the individual lot
owner.

BUILDING DESIGN AND MATERIAL: Pursuant to Section 11 of the Restrictive
Covenants, Owner/Applicant has appointed an Architectural Review Board (“ARB”). The
ARB is to review and approve building design and material. Buildings throughout the
PUD are to be compatible in design and in color. Buildings with metal exterior walls are
prohibited in the PUD, except as specifically authorized, in writing, by the ARB. As to any
such authorized metal building, any exterior wall which is exposed to a public street
(including said 1-35 Service Road) must be glass, concrete and/or masonry. [If any
masonry wall, on any building anywhere in the PUD, is built from concrete or concrete
blocks, it must be covered with stucco or other comparable finish, and painted in colors
compatible with surrounding buildings. No colors shall be utilized on exterior walls and/or
exterior fixtures without the prior approval of the ARB. In addition to control over design
and materials, the ARB will have final authority regarding exterior colors, if any disputes
arise. Building design and materials must be made a part of any Site Plan submitted to
the City of Norman, along with a Final Plat.

SCREENING: Items stored outside any enclosed building must be screened by a
masonry fence which is tall enough to completely screen the stored items from the view
of passing motorists and pedestrians. In no event shall such masonry fence be less than
six feet (6') tall. Such storage must be behind any applicable building setback lines.
Automobiles, trucks, recreational vehicles, boats and similar fully finished products, which
are part of inventories being offered for sale at retail, are expressly excluded from the
screening requirement in this paragraph. At the time any Final Plat is submitted, it must
specify any outdoor storage and/or sales area.

SIGNS: Each and every sign must comply fully with the Norman sign ordinance,
except as specifically modified by Exhibit F University North Park Master Signage Plan,
and by the following:

1. The setback for ground signs may be a minimum of ten feet (10’), which
includes signs that can have an increased size under existing Norman
ordinances, if set back an additional distance.

2. “Entry Signage” may be placed on opposite sides of the following streets: 24t
Avenue NW, at Robinson; 24" Avenue NW, at the North end of SDA#6; and
Rock Creek Road, at I-35 Service Road.

Any such “Entry Signage” sign cannot exceed one hundred (100) square feet and can
bear only the name of this PUD Development.

3. Owner/Applicant will cause no more than one (1) “off-premises” billboard to be
erected on the East side of I-35, on land embraced within this Application, on
a site to be designated by Owner/Applicant which will be separated from any
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other existing billboards by at least one thousand feet (1,000).
Owner/Applicant expects to promptly convey title, by metes and bounds
descriptions, to such billboard site to the Foundation. The Foundation is not a
“school or public or quasi-public institution” within the context of the Norman
sign ordinance. This one billboard within the PUD may be electronic and will
be restricted to advertising only the University of Oklahoma, its programs, its
activities and its people.

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS

A. TRAFFIC LIGHTS: At a future date, there will be a need for a traffic signals
within the Property to the extent that such traffic signals are not constructed
and financed through the recently-approved TIF District for the Property, the
Owner/Applicant requests the City of Norman to ask the Oklahoma Department
of Transportation (“ODOT”) to place each such traffic signal on the State
system, to fund its construction. In such event(s), Owner/Applicant will
contribute twenty percent (20%) of the cost of the construction of each such
traffic signal, within sixty (60) days after the City of Norman delivers written
certification to the Owner/Applicant that any such traffic signal is ready to be
put out for bid. Owner/Applicant will furnish the engineering for each such light
within ninety (90) days after the City of Norman delivers written request to the
Owner/Applicant that such engineering be furnished.

In the event that the City has not received approval of State, Federal or other
outside funding for any such traffic signal, at the time any Final Plat is
submitted, then as to each such “unfunded” signal, the engineer's total
estimate of the construction cost must be escrowed with the City by
Owner/Applicant.

B. OTHER IMPROVEMENTS: A Final Plat's share of the cost of such other
transportation improvements, as identified in the current or successive TIAs
(including, but not limited to, widening, intersection improvements, right-of-way,
utility relocation costs, etc.), must be assessed at the time of Final Plat approval
and escrowed with the City of Norman at the time of obtaining a building permit.

RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS: Applicant prepared and filed the Restrictive
Covenants, as more fully described, above. Such covenants cover, at a minimum,
common maintenance, detention requirements and building design.
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EXHIBIT "B"

REVISED TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY

DATED AUGUST 14, 2006

ON FILE FOR REVIEW IN THE
CITY CLERK'S DEPARTMENT
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EXHIBIT "E"

REVISED DRAINAGE/DETENTION PLAN

DATED AUGUST 14, 2006

AND REVISED SEPTEMBER 22, 2006

ON FILE FOR REVIEW IN THE
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
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MASTER SIGNAGE CONCEPT PLAN
EXHIBIT ” F-1”
Ground and Wall Sign Criteria for University Town Center
Norman, Oklahoma

GENERAL INFORMATION

The sign standards have been selected to harmonize with and compliment the design
of the entire site and will assist in creating a consistent quality of visual identity for
the development. It is intended that individual business signage be designed in an
imaginative and varied manner. The signage guidelines below supplement those
signage standards described in the Minimum Design Standards for University North
Park. In addition the Master Signage Concept Plan (MSCP) outlines the proposed
locations and sizes of all ground signs in the development. The Minimum Design
Standards, the Signage Exhibit, and the Master Signage Concept Plan are equally
enforceable and are joined together as one document. Together these documents
supersede the City of Norman Sign Code only with respect to this development, and
only to the extent of specific signs described herein. All other signage shall comply
with the City of Norman Sign Code.

Ground Signs

Ground signs will be categorized into the following primary catagories, and permitted at those
locations described on the Master Signage Concept Plan. The locations shown on that plan may
be adjusted according to the specific design constraints imposed by physical conditions or
property line adjustments. Deviations from the MSCP must be approved by the ARB and the
City Manager, or his designee, prior to obtaining sign permits.

Businesses which would otherwise be permitted “Additional Signs”, oriented for interstate
traffic, will not be permitted additional ground signs, other than those depicted on the
MSCP.

Categories

1-35 Ground signs

Signs ranging from twenty five to forty feet in height, located along the 1-35 frontage road,
between West Robinson Street and Rock Creek Road. Sign designs and locations designated on
the MSCP are intended to supersede the City of Norman Sign Code provision for “Additional
Signs” section 18-504 (b),(1),f. The intent is to provide uniform, coordinated signage design as
viewed from the 1-35 corridor. The express purpose of these signs is to provide visual identity for
single anchor store businesses, or identity on one sign for multiple businesses in the
development. Businesses represented on these signs may be located anywhere within the
development west of 24™ Avenue NW. 35-30

Iltem 4.
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EXHIBIT "F-1"

24™ Avenue NW Ground Signs

Signs ranging from twenty to twenty five feet in height, located no further than twenty five feet
from the Right of Way of 24™ Avenue NW between West Robinson Street and Rock Creek
Road. The express purpose of these signs is to provide visual identity for single, anchor store,
businesses or multiple businesses in the development. Businesses represented on these signs may
be located anywhere within the development.

Outparcel ‘monument style’ Ground Signs

Signs ranging from four feet to twelve feet in height, located as designated on the MSCP. The
express purpose of these signs are to identify the business, or businesses, in freestanding
buildings located on designated outparcels. These parcels include outparcel property facing West
Robinson Street, 24"™ Avenue NW, Mt. Williams Drive, and Conference center Drive

Directional and informational signs
Ground mounted directional and informational signs shall be permitted in accordance with the
Minimum Design Standards and the City of Norman Sign Code.

Wall Signs
Wall signs shall be permitted in accordance with the Minimum Design Standards and the City of
Norman Sign Code, with the following exceptions.

1. For purposes of calculating Maximum Area Allowable, buildings with multiple
connected businesses shall not be considered one building. Each business shall be
considered independently.

2. No part of a wall sign shall be located more than thirty feet above grade level

3. Due to the location of the ten-story hotel and conference center, wall signs (which
otherwise meet all Sign Code requirements) can be located at any height on the walls of
both structures.

Revised 8-18-06 by Little
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ExHiBir G
LEGAL DESCRIPTION
UNIVERSITYNORTHPARK

(SDA-1)
PURCHASE TRACT

A tract of land lying in the Northwest Quarter of Scction |3 and the Northeast Quarler of Section 14, Township 9
Notth, Range 3 West of the Indian Meridian, Cleveland County, Oklahoma, and being more particularly described as
tollows:

COMMENCING al the northwest corncr of said Section |3;
THENCE South 00°16'07" East, along the west line of the said Northwest Quarter of Section 13, a distance of 85.00

feet to a point on the southerly right-of-way linc of Teccumseh Road es established by that certain HIGHWAY
EASEMENT recorded in Book 2473, Page 439, said point being the POINT OF BEGINNING;

THENCE casterly, along said right-of-way line, the following four (4) courses:
. South 89°49'14" East a distance of 33.00 feet;
2. Noith 44°57'58" Cast a distance of 35.22 fect;
3. South 89°49'14" East a distancc of 189.54 feet;

4. South 83°18'03" Cast 8 distance of 58.87 fect to a point on the ¢ast line of that ceriain SURPLUS
PROPERTY DEED OF RELEASE recorded in Bouk 3282, Page 614, Cleveland County records;

THENCE southcasterly, along suid east linc,the following two (2) courses:
1. South 09°09'S1" East a distance of 99.71 feet;
2. South 00°38'00° East a distunce of 1379.14 fect;

THENCE South 89°22'00" West a distance of 291.24 fect;

THENCE North 69°58'55" West a distance of 60.00 feet to 8 point on the centerline uf 24 Avenue NW as
established by the HIOHWAY EASEMEN' in favor of the State of Oklahoma recorded in Book 2552, Page 472,
Cleveland County records;

THENCE northerly, along said centerline, on a non-tangent curve to the {efl having a radius of 876.16 feet (said
curve subtended by a chord which bears North 12°43'S8" East a distance of 222.22 feet) for an arc distance of 222.82

feet;

THENCE South 89°15'36" West a distance of 32.66 feet to a point on the cammon linc between said Sections 13 and
14;

THENCE Nosth 00°16'07" West, along suid common line, a distance of 1226.50 feet to the POINT OF
BEGINNING.

Seid tract of land containing a gross arca of 478,686 square feet or 10.9891 acres more or less, and an area net of the
right-of-way for 24™ Avenue NW (120 fect in width) of 339,588 square feet or 7.7959 acres tnorc or less.

Prepared by:

Taylor Denniston PLS 1787
Smith Roberts Baldischwiler LLC
April 16,2015

VERSION 4

Real Byiate Purchiase Contract 427.15 —~ Clean
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EXHIBIT J

PUD AREA DESCRIPTION

A tract of land lying in the East Half (E/2) of Section 14, Township 9 North, Range 3
West of the Indian Meridian, Cleveland County, Oklahoma being more particulariy
described as follows:

COMMENCING at the southeast corner of said Southeast Quarter, said point aiso being
the southeast corner of Block 1, UNIVERSITY NORTH PARK CORPORATE CENTRE

SECTION 1, recorded in Book 24 of Plats, Page 15;

THENCE South 89°06'20" West, along the south line of said Southeast Quarter, the
south line of said Block 1 and the south line of Rock Creek Road right of way as
dedicated by said plat, a distance of 667.66 feet to a point on the centerline of 24th
Avenue N.W. as established by that certain Highway Easement recorded in Book 2552,
Page 472 and partially dedicated by said plat, said point also being a point on a curve:

THENCE along the centerline of said 24th Avenue N.W., the following Four (4) courses:

1. Northwesterly along a non-tangent curve to the left having a radius of 1,905.41 feet
(said curve subtended by a chord which bears North 24°23'10" West a distance of
924.06 feet) for an arc distance of 933.37 feet;

2. North 38°25'09" West a distance of 400.00 feet to a point of curvature;

3. Northerly along a curve to the right having a radius of 1,225.41 feet (said curve
subtended by a chord which bears North 17°44'04" West a distance of 865.68 feet) for
an arc distance of 884.78 feet to the northwest corner of Radius Way right of way as
dedicated by UNIVERSITY NORTH PARK SECTION XIV recorded in Book 24 of Plats,
Page 83, said point being on the centerline of said 24th Avenue N.W., a pointon a
curve and the POINT OF BEGINNING;

4. Continuing Northeasterly along a curve to the right having a radius of 1,225.41 feet
(said curve subtended by a chord which bears North 26°17'27" East a distance of
971.02 feet) for an arc distance of 998.40 feet;

THENCE South 52°49'34" East a distance of 470.27 feet;

THENCE South 10°17'56" West a distance of 77.31 feet to the northwest corner of Lot
1, Block 2, UNIVERSITY NORTH PARK CORPORATE CENTRE SECTION 2, recorded
in Book 23 of Plats, Page 179 and being a point on a curve;

THENCE along the westerly line of Lots 1 and 2 in said Block 2, the following Two (2)
courses:

Iltem 4.
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1. Southerly along a non tangent curve to the right having a radius of 1,207.17 feet
(said curve subtended by a chord which bears South 09°36'47" West a distance of
224.62 feet) for an arc distance of 224.95 feet to a point of reverse curvature;

2. Southerly along a non tangent curve to the left having a radius of 1,265.72 feet (said
curve subtended by a chord which bears South 03°26'45" West a distance of 236.22

feet) for an arc distance of 236.57 feet;

THENCE North 90°00'00" West a distance of 209.63 feet to the northeast corner of said
Radius Way right of way;

THENCE along the northerly right of way line of said Radius Way, the following Six (6)
courses:

1. North 79°37'04" West a distance of 64.00 feet;
2. South 10°22'66" West a distance of 0.89 feet to a point of curvature;

3. Southwesterly along a curve to the right having a radius of 112.00 feet (said curve
subtended by a chord which bears South 50°11'28" West a distance of 143.41 feet) for

an arc distance of 155.63 feet;

4. South 90°00'00" West a distance of 272.47 feet;

5. North 43°49'56" West a distance of 34.63 feet;

6. North 87°03'00" West a distance of 60.00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

Said described tract of land contains an area of 494,425 square feet or 11.3504 acres,
more or less.

The basis of bearings for this description was North 90°00'00" West as a portion of the
northerly right of way line of Radius Way as shown on the plat of UNIVERSITY NORTH

PARK SECTION XIV.

Prepared by: Randall A. Mansfield, Professional Land Surveyor No. 1613
Dodson-Thompson-Mansfield PLLC
20 N.E. 38th Street - OKC, OK 73105
March 6, 2019
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EXHIBIT L

University North Park Professional Center

Lot 4A Block 1

A tract of land being a part of the Northwest Quarter (NW/4) of Section Thirteen (13),
Township Nine (9) North, Range Three (3) West of the Indian Meridian, City of
Norman, Cleveland County, Oklahoma, being all of Lot 4 Block 1 as shown on the plat
UNIVERSITY NORTH PARK PROFESSIONAL CENTER recorded in Book 24 of plats,
Page 80, LESS & EXCEPT the North 21.64 feet thereof, being more particularly
described as follows:

Beginning at the Southwest (SW) Corner of said Lot 4, said point being the POINT OF
BEGINNING;

THENCE along and with the West line of said Lot 4 on a curve to the left, having a
radius of 936.16 feet, a chord bearing of North 01°26'56" East, a chord length of 56.12
feet and an arc length of 56.13 feet;

THENCE North 00°16'07" West, continuing along and with the West line of said Lot 4,
a distance of 202.54 feet;

THENCE North 89°15'55" East, parallel with and 21.64 feet South of the North line of
said Lot 4, a distance of 229.81 feet to a point on the East line of said Lot 4;

THENCE South 00°38'00" East, along and with the East line of said Lot 4, a distance
of 258.61 feet to the Southeast (SE) Corner of said Lot 4;

THENCE South 89°15'65" West, along and with the South line of said Lot 4, a distance
of 233.14 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

Containing 59,676 square feet or 1.3700 acres, more or less.
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EXHIBIT M
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] Lot 4 Blocx t LANGSCAPING NOTES
Arsctol Lod
_ Thirtmen (13), Range ) 1. ALL PLANTS TO HAVE MACH,
Inclen Merician, CRy of Norman, Clevetand County, Otshoma, being o
| of Lot 4 Biock | Y 2. PROTECT ANY PLANT DURNG
of plats, Page 0, LESS CONSTRUCTION, »
| & EXCEPT the North 21,54 teet vrecd, Daing more parkcuarly z
descriad as follows: 3 THE Lan SHALL BE FOR (=1
aid Lot d, PROVIDING AN IRRIGATION SYSTEM WHICH PROVIDES FULL a|
the POINT OF BEGINNING; COVERAGE TO ALL PLANT MATERIAL. THE SYSTEM SHALL INCLUDE >
THENCE siong A COMBINATION OF SPRAY HEADS AND ROTORS. THE IRRIGATION Y
hanving u radius of 536,16 Seat, & chord beering of North 01°26'6" East, & SYSTEM SHALL B2 A DESIGN-BUILD SYSTEM.
4 13 foet
) THENCE North 00°16'07" West, continuing slong and with the West ine LS WILL NOT
of 82id Lot 4, » dstance of 202.54 feet: WTIES. L VERIFY
THENCE North 694 SS5° East, paratiel with and 21.04 feet South of the LOCATIONS OF ALL OVERMEAD & UNOERGROUND UTILITIES PRIOR
North ke of aaid Lot 4, 220.01 toat OF WORK, NSIBLE
e of 3040 Lok & FORALL oF
THENGE South 00°3'00" Eaat, 34ong and wth the East ke of seid Lot 4, THE LA AND AND 1S
g B : NSIBLE FOR LACEMENT AT
v THENCE South 8G°1555° Weet, along end with the South kne of akd Lot EXPENSE. PROPOSED LANDSCAPE WILL NOT INTERFERE WITH
- 4, 21 oF OVERHEAD OR UNDERGROUND UTILITIES.
WTeye Cantaining 50,576 square foel or 1.3700 acres, more or less.
..._. S.  PLANTINGS WITHIN 10 FEET OF AN UNDERGROUND UTILITY
Basis of Bearing: _ Bearings \ SERVICE SHALL BE REQUIRED TO UTRIZE A ROOT
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NORMAN PLANNING COMMISSION
REGULAR SESSION MINUTES

NOVEMBER 18, 2021

The Planning Commission of the City of Norman, Cleveland County, State of Oklahoma, met in
Regular Session in the Council Chambers of the Norman Municipal Building, 201 West Gray
Street, on the 18" day of November, 2021.

Notice and agenda of the meeting was posted at the Norman Municipal Building and online at
https://norman-ok.municodemeetings.com at least twenty-four hours prior to the beginning of

the meeting.

Chair Erica Bird called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.

RoLL CALL

MEMBERS PRESENT

MEMBERS ABSENT

A quorum was present.

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT

& & X

* ¥ %k

Erin Williford
Kevan Parker
Steven McDaniel
Erica Bird

Sandy Bahan
Michael Jablonski

Nouman Jan
Lark Zink
Dave Boeck

Jane Hudson, Director, Planning &
Community Development

Lora Hoggatt, Planning Services Manager

Logan Hubble, Planner |

Roné Tromble, Recording Secretary

Ken Danner, Subdivision Development
Manager

Todd McLellan, Development Engineer

Beth Muckala, Asst. City Attorney

Jami Short, Traffic Engineer

Bryce Holland, Multimedia Specialist

Item 4.
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NORMAN PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR SESSION MINUTES

November 18, 2021, Page 5

ltem No. 5, being:

0-2122-21 — CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION, REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF ORDINANCE
NO. 0-2122-21 FOR JOHNSON & ASSOCIATES, ON BEHALF OF UNIVERSITY NORTH PARK, REQUESTS AMENDMENT OF
THE EXISTING PUD, PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (O-1415-45), FOR PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED ON THE EAST SIDE
OF 24™ AVENUE N.W. SOUTH OF W, TECUMSEH ROAD.

ITEMS SUBMITTED FOR THE RECORD:

Location Map

Staff Report

Transportation Impacts

Amended and Restated University North Park PUD Development Plan, dated October
2021, with Exhibits A-M

AW =

PRESENTATION BY STAFF:
1. Ms. Jane Hudson presented the staff report.

PRESENTATION BY THE APPLICANT:
The applicant's representative was in attendance, but did not make a presentation.

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION:
None

DISCUSSION AND ACTION BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION:
Steven McDaniel moved to recommend adoption of Ordinance No. O-2122-21 to City Council.
Erin Williford seconded the motion.

There being no further discussion, a vote on the motion was taken with the following result:

YEAS Erin Williford, Kevan Parker, Steven McDaniel, Erica Bird,
Sandy Bahan, Michael Jablonski

NAYES None

MEMBERS ABSENT Nouman Jan, Dave Boeck, Lark Zink

The motion, to recommend adoption of Ordinance No. 0O-2122-21 to City Council, passed by a
vote of 6-0.

&* % *
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File Attachments for ltem:

5. CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION, REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR
POSTPONEMENT OF ORDINANCE 0O-2122-24 UPON FIRST READING BY TITLE:
AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA,
AMENDING SECTION 460 OF CHAPTER 22 OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF
NORMAN SO AS TO GRANT SPECIAL USE FOR A BAR, LOUNGE OR TAVERN IN
THE C-2, GENERAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT, FOR LOT THREE (3), OF

BLOCK ONE (1), OF JENNINGS ESTATES NO. 1 ADDITION, A REPLAT OF PART
OF BLOCK 1, OF JENNINGS ESTATES NO. 1 ADDITION, TO THE CITY OF
NORMAN, CLEVELAND COUNTY, OKLAHOMA; AND PROVIDING FOR THE
SEVERABILITY THEREOF. (2224 WEST MAIN STREET, SUITE 2262)

Item 5.
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Item 5.

CITY OF NORMAN, OK

STAFF REPORT

MEETING DATE: 12/14/2021

REQUESTER: WH Normandy Creek, L.P.

PRESENTER: Jane Hudson, Director of Planning & Community Development
CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION, REJECTION, AMENDMENT,

ITEM TITLE: AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF ORDINANCE 0O-2122-24 UPON FIRST

READING BY TITLE: AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA, AMENDING SECTION 460 OF
CHAPTER 22 OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF NORMAN SO AS TO
GRANT SPECIAL USE FOR A BAR, LOUNGE OR TAVERN IN THE C-2,
GENERAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT, FOR LOT THREE (3), OF
BLOCK ONE (1), OF JENNINGS ESTATES NO. 1 ADDITION, A REPLAT
OF PART OF BLOCK 1, OF JENNINGS ESTATES NO. 1 ADDITION, TO
THE CITY OF NORMAN, CLEVELAND COUNTY, OKLAHOMA; AND
PROVIDING FOR THE SEVERABILITY THEREOF. (2224 WEST MAIN
STREET, SUITE 2262)

SYNOPSIS: The applicant, WH Normandy Creek, L.P., is requesting Special Use for a Bar,
Lounge, or Tavern for an 11,000 sq. ft. suite in an existing shopping center at 2224 West Main
Street, Suite 2262. The property is zoned C-2, General Commercial District.

HISTORY: The property was rezoned from R-1, Single Family Dwelling District, to C-2,
General Commercial District, in October 1967, around the same time as the surrounding
properties. These collective properties were developed into Normandy Creek Shopping Center,
of which the suite in question is a part. Ordinance 0O-9192-18 defined “bar” as “an establishment
whose primary activity, measured by dollar volume of sales, involves the sale and the on-premise
consumption” of alcoholic beverages, and amended the C-2 zoning district to allow for a Bar,
Lounge, or Tavern as a Special Use.

ZONING ORDINANCE CITATION: A Special Use request shall be reviewed and evaluated on
the following criteria according to the Zoning Ordinance 22:434.1, Special Uses:

1. Conformance with applicable regulations and standards established by the Zoning
Regulations.

2. Compatibility with existing or permitted uses on abutting sites, in terms of building height,
bulk and scale, setbacks and open spaces, landscaping and site development, and
access and circulation features.

Page 1 of 3
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3. Potentially unfavorable effects or impacts on other existing or permitted uses on abutting
sites, to the extent such impacts exceed those which reasonably may result from use of
the site by a permitted use. (NOTE: Throughout this Section, “Permitted Use” means any
use authorized as a matter of right under the applicable zoning district.)

4. Modifications to the site plan which would result in increased compatibility, or would
mitigate potentially unfavorable impacts, or would be necessary to conform to applicable
regulations and standards and to protect the public health, safety, morals, and general
welfare.

5. Safety and convenience of vehicular and pedestrian circulation in the vicinity, including
traffic reasonably expected to be generated by the proposed “Special Use” and other
uses authorized and anticipated in the area, considering existing zoning and land uses in
the area.

6. That any conditions applicable to approval are the minimum necessary to minimize
potentially unfavorable impacts on nearby uses and to ensure compatibility of the
proposed “Special Use” with existing or permitted uses in the surrounding area.

EXISTING ZONING: The property is currently zoned C-2, General Commercial District. This
district is intended for the conduct of personal and business services and the general retall
business of the community. The C-2 District requires Special Use approval for a Bar, Lounge,
or Tavern.

SITE PLAN: The Normandy Creek Shopping Center area has 4 access points; 2 off West Main
Street and 2 off 24" Ave. SW. The applicant will not be changing the existing building or site.
Only interior remodels will be done to the suite for the sports bar.

As shown on the site plan, the location of the sports bar is in the southeast corner of the mall.
There is a public alley on the south and east side as well as a culvert on the east side of the
mall. There is approximately 136-foot separation/tree buffer between the east wall of the sports
bar to the neighboring apartments to the east. There is approximately 182-foot separation from
the southwest corner wall of the sports bar to the neighboring single-family use to the southwest.

IMPACTS: There have been restaurants located within this Shopping Center in the past and
the area has a large parking lot to serve all the uses. As stated there have been restaurants at
this site but never a bar, lounge or tavern. The hours of operation for this proposed sports bar
are 11 AM to 2 AM.

The applicant responded to staff's question as to the possibility of live music at the site. The
applicant stated there may be live music but only on special occasions. The Special Use for Bar,
Lounge or Tavern does not grant the applicant the permission to have live music. If the operation
is a restaurant, a restaurant may include live entertainment and/or a dance floor, (all such activity
fully with an enclosed building) provided the kitchen remains open with the full food service
whenever live entertainment is offered.

OTHER AGENCY COMMENTS:

Page 2 of 3
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PUBLIC WORKS: This property is platted. Project is within an existing building.

PREDEVELOPMENT: PD21-32, October 28, 2021
No neighbors attended this meeting.

CONCLUSION:

Staff forwards this request for Special Use and Ordinance 0-2122-24 for City Council’s
consideration.

At their meeting of November 18, 2021, Planning Commission unanimously recommended
adoption of Ordinance O-2122-24, by a vote of 6-0.

Page 3 of 3
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0-2122-24

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
NORMAN, OKLAHOMA, AMENDING SECTION 460 OF
CHAPTER 22 OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF NORMAN SO
AS TO GRANT SPECIAL USE FOR A BAR, LOUNGE OR
TAVERN IN THE C-2, GENERAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT
FOR LOT THREE (3), OF BLOCK ONE (1), OF JENNINGS
ESTATES NO. 1 ADDITION, A REPLAT OF PART OF BLOCK
1, OF JENNINGS ESTATES NO. 1 ADDITION, TO THE CITY
OF NORMAN, CLEVELAND COUNTY, OKLAHOMA; AND
PROVIDING FOR THE SEVERABILITY THEREOF. (2224
West Main Street, Suite 2262)

8 1. WHEREAS, WH Normandy Creek, L.P. has made application to have Special
Use for a Bar, Lounge, or Tavern on the property described below in the C-2,
General Commercial District; and

§ 2. WHEREAS, said application has been referred to the Planning Commission of
said City and said body has, after conducting a public hearing as required by law,
considered the same and recommended that the same should be granted and an
ordinance adopted to effect and accomplish such rezoning; and

§ 3. WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Norman, Oklahoma, has thereafter
considered said application and has determined that said application should be
granted and an ordinance adopted to effect and accomplish such rezoning.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORMAN,
OKLAHOMA:

8 4. That Section 460 of Chapter 22 of the Code of the City of Norman, Oklahoma, is
hereby amended so as to grant Special Use for a Bar, Lounge, or Tavern in the C-
2, General Commercial District, for the following described property, to wit:

Lot Three (3), of Block One (1), of JENNINGS ESTATES NO. 1
ADDITION, a Replat of Part of Block 1, of Jennings Estates No. 1
Addition, to the City of Norman, Cleveland County, Oklahoma, according
to the recorded plat thereof.

Item 5.

142




Ordinance No. O-2122-24

Item 5.

Page 2
§ 5} Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 22:434.1 of the Code of the
City of Norman, as amended, the following conditions are hereby attached
to the zoning of the tract:
a. The site shall be developed in accordance with the Site Plan, and
supporting documentation submitted by the applicant and approved
by the Planning Commission on November 18, 2021.
8 6 Severability. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or
portion of this ordinance is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional
by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a
separate, distinct, and independent provision, and such holding shall not
affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance.
ADOPTED this day of NOT ADOPTED this day of
, 2022. , 2022.
(Mayor) (Mayor)
ATTEST:

(City Clerk)

143




2001 0 DN ESTWQOD EST —
[7] B £ 16
g 0 ., Iltem 5.
& » " |, AN
g % | % 19 | ,
7273-32 o SN i
0 c-2 N :
4 1262 2
C-=2 1 E R-1
1157 o 9
5 H L ‘L OR
c-2 w :
he14 Q 2
| (@)
<ERNRBTH 1
P 1 B w
E c-2 =
=
1156 )
MAIN ST
h c-2 A\ ¢
c2 ns2 Ol 5
3A 1 {152 3 ; (ﬁm
c-2 = ) S1215 1
1154 . Z c2 |\—| C2
> e 7980-79* ;J 1215
> Subject O]
kE 2 MURDOCK VILLAGE s . ) ‘
P RV I e R Z Tract )
R =
1174 L ; o c- ]
iy 20 >| 1187 ]
Y ACRES FIPST | — W ‘ % 4
0 4
BUTEER-DRR T SF— foa
q LL 5 me
5 np ? T
R-1 > \ 1= ] 74 ]
174 = Pila's S5 hiq I g
7 6 15 14 13 2 D ) E I_I;PI 8 ]
I:I—: - cr)| : A 2 ‘
m’ 3 6 — > _d‘
< 2 0N m/VNINGS EST - E—
yACReEs closT | 1 Jd N E ©) S o i ) «
OSBORNE~DR- N o O3E-DR—
| Rl 5oL crOSS AT [+
1174 C’gEORGE”\_ N P
YACRESFIRST | ° . . v’ (D' 1 x
ANDY PARK = | + | "i\gg : . %
R-1 ¢ O 1196 3 ®
1188 ]
ENTWG Jov ; 4 =)
o OD D -€ /‘(D © % . \ m
R-1 1 1 Q‘}R‘\:‘] © Q\/&/,’ <
2 . - ® Y \ N 16 ” 2
g’i K ES N\ BUDWILKINSONYDR. =
__
({Location Map
.
N i/- Subject Tract
i October 6, 2021 2
) i w<$ A’>E I:l Zoning
“’,‘ G sograpne mormaton Systom. K"& 0 150 300 Ft.
t\ﬁ responsibity for erors or omissions s L 1 1 | 144
E e AE in the information presented.




Item 5.

Planning Commission Agenda
November 18, 2021

ORDINANCE NO. 0O-2122-24

ITEM NO. 6

GENERAL INFORMATION

APPLICANT
REQUESTED ACTION
EXISTING ZONING

SURROUNDING ZONING

LOCATION

SIZE

PURPOSE

EXISTING LAND USE

SURROUNDING LAND USE

LAND USE PLAN DESIGNATION

SYNOPSIS:

STAFF REPORT

WH Normandy Creek, L.P.

Special Use for a Bar, Lounge or Tavern

C-2, General Commercial District

North:
East:

South:
West:

C-2, General Commercial District
RM-6, Medium Density Apartment
District

C-2, General Commercial District
C-2, General Commercial District
and R-1, Single Family Dwelling
District

2224 West Main Street, Suite 2262

11,000 square feet (see site plan)

Sports Bar and Giill

Shopping Center with a vacant suite

North:
East:
South:
West:

Commercial

Multi-Family Residential
Vacant

Single-family and Commercial

Commercial

The applicant, WH Normandy Creek, L.P., is requesting Special Use for a Batr,

Lounge, or Tavern for an 11,000 sq. ft. suite in an existing shopping center at 2224 West Main
Street, Suite 2262. The property is zoned C-2, General Commercial District.

HISTORY:

The property was rezoned from R-1, Single Family Dwelling District, to C-2,

General Commercial District, in October 1967, around the same time as the surrounding
properties. These collective properties were developed into Normandy Creek Shopping
Center, of which the suite in question is a part. Ordinance No. 0-9192-18 defined “bar” as “an
establishment whose primary activity, measured by dollar volume of sales, involves the sale
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and the on-premise consumption” of alcoholic beverages, and amended the C-2 z

district to allow for a Bar, Lounge, or Tavern as a Special Use.

ZONING ORDINANCE CITATION: A Special Use request shall be reviewed and evaluated on
the following criteria according to the Zoning Ordinance 22:434.1, Special Uses:

1. Conformance with applicable regulations and standards established by the Zoning
Regulations.

2. Compatibility with existing or permitted uses on abutting sites, in terms of building
height, bulk and scale, setbacks and open spaces, landscaping and site development,
and access and circulation features.

3. Potentially unfavorable effects or impacts on other existing or permitted uses on
abutting sites, to the extent such impacts exceed those which reasonably may result
from use of the site by a permitted use. (NOTE: Throughout this Section, “Permitted Use”
means any use authorized as a matter of right under the applicable zoning district.)

4. Modifications to the site plan which would result in increased compatibility, or would
mitigate potentially unfavorable impacts, or would be necessary to conform to
applicable regulations and standards and to protect the public health, safety, morals,
and general welfare.

5. Safety and convenience of vehicular and pedestrian circulation in the vicinity,
including traffic reasonably expected to be generated by the proposed “Special Use”
and other uses authorized and anticipated in the area, considering existing zoning and
land uses in the area.

6. That any conditions applicable to approval are the minimum necessary to minimize
potentially unfavorable impacts on nearby uses and to ensure compatibility of the
proposed “Special Use” with existing or permitted uses in the surrounding area.

EXISTING ZONING: The property is currently zoned C-2, General Commercial District. This
district is intended for the conduct of personal and business services and the general retalil
business of the community. The C-2 District requires Special Use approval for a Bar, Lounge, or
Tavern.

ANALYSIS:

SITE PLAN:  The Normandy Creek Shopping Center area has 4 access points; 2 off West Main
Street and 2 off 24t Ave. SW. The applicant will not be changing the existing building or site.
Only interior remodels will be done to the suite for the sports bar.

As shown on the site plan, the location of the sports bar is in the southeast corner of the mall.
There is a public alley on the south and east side as well as a culvert on the east side of the
mall. There is approximately 136-foot separation/tree buffer between the east wall of the
sports bar to the neighboring apartments to the east. There is approximately 182-foot
separation from the southwest corner wall of the sports bar to the neighboring single-family
use to the southwest.
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IMPACTS: There have been restaurants located within this Shopping Center in the pag

the area has a large parking lot to serve all the uses. As stated there have been restaurants at
this site but never a bar, lounge or tavern. The hours of operation for this proposed sports bar
are 11 AMto 2 AM.

The applicant responded to staff’s question as to the possibility of live music at the site. The
applicant stated there may be live music but only on special occasions. The Special Use for
Bar, Lounge or Tavern does not grant the applicant the permission to have live music. If the
operation is a restaurant, a restaurant may include live entertainment and/or a dance floor,
(all such activity fully with an enclosed building) provided the kitchen remains open with the
full food service whenever live entertainment is offered.

OTHER AGENCY COMMENTS:

PUBLIC WORKS: This property is platted. Project is within an existing building.

PREDEVELOPMENT: PD21-32, October 28, 2021
No neighbors attended this meeting.

CONCLUSION: Staff forwards this request for Special Use and Ordinance No. O-2122-24
for Planning Commission’s consideration.
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City of Norman Predevelopment October 28, 2021

Applicant: WH Normandy Creek, L.P.

Project Location: 2224 W. Main Street

Case Number: PD21-32

Time: 5:30 p.m.

Applicant/Representative
David Hartnack, Representative

Attendees
No neighbors attended.

City Staff
Logan Hubble, Planner |

Beth Muckala, Assistant City Attorney

Application Summary
The applicant is requesting a special use for a bar, lounge, or tavern.

Neighbor’s Comments/Concerns/Responses
No neighbors attended this meeting.
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NORMAN PLANNING COMMISSION
REGULAR SESSION MINUTES

NOVEMBER 18, 2021

The Planning Commission of the City of Norman, Cleveland County, State of Oklahoma, met in
Regular Session in the Council Chambers of the Norman Municipal Building, 201 West Gray
Street, on the 18th day of November, 2021,

Notice and agenda of the meeting was posted at the Norman Municipal Building and online at
https://norman-ok.municodemeetings.com at least twenty-four hours prior to the beginning of

the meeting.

Chair Erica Bird called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.

RoLL CALL

MEMBERS PRESENT

MEMBERS ABSENT

A quorum was present.

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT

# % W

Erin Williford
Kevan Parker
Steven McDaniel
Erica Bird

Sandy Bahan
Michael Jablonski

Nouman Jan
Lark Zink
Dave Boeck

Jane Hudson, Director, Planning &
Community Development

Lora Hoggatt, Planning Services Manager

Logan Hubble, Planner |

Roné Tromble, Recording Secretary

Ken Danner, Subdivision Development
Manager

Todd McLellan, Development Engineer

Beth Muckala, Asst. City Attorney

Jami Short, Traffic Engineer

Bryce Holland, Multimedia Specialist

Item 5.
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Item 5.

NORMAN PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR SESSION MINUTES

November 18, 2021, Page 6

Item No. 6, being:

0-2122-24 — CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION, REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF ORDINANCE
No. 0-2122-24 roR WH NORMANDY CREEK, L.P. REQUESTS SPECIAL USE FOR A BAR, LOUNGE OR TAVERN FOR
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2224 W, MAIN STREET, SUITE 2262.

ITEMS SUBMITTED FOR THE RECORD:
1. Location Map

2. Staff Report

3. Site Plan

4, Pre-Development Summary

PRESENTATION BY STAFF:
1. Mr. Logan Hubble presented the staff report.

PRESENTATION BY THE APPLICANT:

1. Mr. David Hartnack, representing the applicant, presented the project.
2. Commissioner Parker asked questions.

3. Commissioner Bird made comments.

4, Commissioner McDaniel asked questions.

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION:
None

DISCUSSION AND ACTION BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION:
Michael Jablonski moved to recommend adoption of Ordinance No. O-2122-24 to City Council.
Sandy Bahan seconded the motion.

There being no further discussion, a vote on the motion was taken with the following result:

YEAS Erin Williford, Kevan Parker, Steven McDaniel, Erica Bird,
Sandy Bahan, Michael Jablonski

NAYES None

MEMBERS ABSENT Nouman Jan, Dave Boeck, Lark Zink

The motion, to recommend adoption of Ordinance No. O-2122-24 to City Council, passed by a
vote of 6-0.

% % %
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File Attachments for ltem:

6. CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION, REJECTION, AMENDMENT. AND/OR
POSTPONEMENT OF ORDINANCE 0-2122-25 UPON FIRST READING BY TITLE:
AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA, FOR
THE REVISED FLOODPLAIN ORDINANCE ALLOWING FOR A REDUCTION IN
FLOOD INSURANCE PREMIUMS THROUGH AMENDMENT OF SECTION 22:429.1 4
(C) 1 AND 4(C)3.

Item 6.
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Item 6.

CITY OF NORMAN, OK

STAFF REPORT

MEETING DATE: December 14, 2021

REQUESTER: Todd McLellan, Development Engineer
PRESENTER: Shawn O’Leary, Director of Public Works
TITLE: CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION, REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR

POSTPONEMENT OF ORDINANCE 0O-2122-25 UPON FIRST READING
BY TITLE: AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
NORMAN, OKLAHOMA, FOR THE REVISED FLOODPLAIN ORDINANCE
ALLOWING FOR A REDUCTION IN FLOOD INSURANCE PREMIUMS
THROUGH AMENDMENT OF SECTION 22:429.1 4 (C) 1 AND 4(C)3

BACKGROUND:

The City’s Floodplain Ordinance which is included in Section 22:429.1 of the City of Norman
Code of Ordinances, was first adopted by the City of Norman on July 8, 1975. The ordinance
has been revised thirteen (13) times in 1978, 1981, 1986, 1987, 1989, 1997, 2003, 2004, 2007,
2008, 2012, 2017, and 2020. The floodplain ordinance was originally adopted as a requirement
of the City of Norman’s participation in the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP), which was
established by the U.S. Congress in 1968 and is administered by the Department of Homeland
Security’s Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).

DISCUSSION:

Residents and business owners in Norman are eligible for a reduction in flood insurance
premiums because of the city's active participation in FEMA'’s National Flood Insurance Program
(NFIP) Community Rating System (CRS). In addition to lower premiums, the CRS program
helps to reduce the threat of injury or death and property damage due to flooding in Norman.

The CRS is a voluntary program for NFIP participating communities. The intended goals of the
CRS program are to reduce flood losses, facilitate accurate insurance ratings and promote the
awareness of flood insurance. The CRS program rewards communities for implementing
activities that protect their residents from flooding. These programs include public outreach,
floodplain open space preservation and higher regulatory standards.

Communities are rewarded by having the individual flood insurance policyholder's premiums
reduced. Flood insurance premium reductions run in 5 percent increments, from 5 percent to
45 percent. Class ratings range from 10 to 1. The higher the flood protection activity, the lower
the Class rating. Norman became a Class 7 community effective October 1, 2021. Norman's
flood insurance policyholders who reside in Special Flood Hazard Areas receive a 15 percent

Page 1 of 3
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reduction on flood insurance premiums and policyholders located outside Special Flood Hazard
Areas enjoy a 10 percent discount. The reduction in flood insurance premiums represents an
annual savings in premium costs for Norman policyholders and will take effect at the time a new
policy is written or an effective policy is renewed.

The CRS Coordinator's Manual is the guidebook for the CRS program. The Coordinator’s
Manual spells out the credits and credit criteria for community activities and programs that go
above and beyond the minimum requirements for participation in FEMA’s National Flood
Insurance Program. The Coordinator’'s Manual explains how the CRS operates, how credits are
calculated, and what documentation is required, and also acts as guidance for communities in
enhancing their flood loss reduction and resource protection activities. From time to time, the
Coordinator’'s Manual is revised, to respond to improvements in floodplain management and
insurance practice, advances in technology, input from communities and other program
stakeholders, and other factors. These changes ensure that the CRS continues to encourage,
support, and recognize communities for ongoing efforts to minimize flood losses and protect
floodplain resources. Revisions normally take place every three years and are issued in the form
of a new edition of the Coordinator's Manual. An Addendum to the 2017 CRS Coordinator’s
Manual was issued by FEMA effective January 1, 2021, that became a part of the 2017 edition
of the Coordinator’'s Manual. With the issuance of this Addendum, FEMA incorporated into the
existing CRS guidance some material that officially changes, adds to, or clarifies the CRS
program.

Under this new addendum, FEMA now gives CRS credit for floodplain ordinances that add
electrical and mechanical equipment servicing new or substantially improved buildings in the
floodplain to the freeboard requirement. Freeboard is defined as a factor of safety usually
expressed in feet above a flood level for purposes of floodplain management. Freeboard
compensates for the many unknown factors that could contribute to flood heights greater than
the height calculated for a selected size flood and floodway conditions, such as wave action,
bridge openings, and the hydrological effect of urbanization of the watershed. Norman currently
has a 2 foot freeboard requirement for new or substantially improved buildings in the floodplain.
In other words, new or substantially improved buildings constructed in the floodplain are currently
required to have the lowest floor a minimum of 2 feet above the Base Flood Elevation (BFE).
This ordinance revision will now require that electrical and mechanical equipment servicing the
building, such as air conditioning units, also be elevated a minimum of 2 feet above the BFE.

By amending Section 429.1(4) of Chapter 22 of the Code to define the freeboard elevation
requirements of mechanical and electrical equipment servicing new or substantially improved
buildings in the floodplain, FEMA has agreed to modify the City of Norman’s CRS class from
7 to 6 which will increase the flood insurance premium discounts of those citizens receiving
15% to 20%. Staff proposes the following schedule for ordinance modification:

Page 2 of 3
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Norman Revised Floodplain Ordinance Schedule

Item

Completion Date

Proposed Ordinance Changes Approved by OWRB

October 19, 2021

Proposed Ordinance Changes to Floodplain Permit Committee

November 15, 2021

Proposed Ordinance Changes to Planning Commission

November 18, 2021

Proposed Ordinance Changes to City Council 1st Reading

December 14, 2021

Proposed Ordinance Changes to City Council 2nd Reading

January 18, 2022

Revised Floodplain Ordinance Becomes Effective

February 18, 2022

The proposed revisions are listed in the attached ordinance.

Both the Floodplain Permit Committee and Planning Commission voted unanimously to approve

the proposed revisions.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the City Council approve Ordinance 0-2122-25 which amends

Sections 22:429.1 4(c)1 and 4(c)3 of the current ordinance.

Reviewed by: Scott Sturtz, City Engineer
Shawn O’Leary, Director of Public Works

Jane Hudson, Director of Planning and Community Development

Beth Muckala, Assistant City Attorney Il
Darrel Pyle, City Manager

Page 3 of 3
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0-2122-25

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA AMENDING
SECTION 429.1, SUB-SECTION 4, OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE TITLED
FLOOD HAZARD DISTRICT LAND USES TO REQUIRE THAT CERTAIN
FEATURES OF AND EQUIPMENT SERVICING NEW OR SUBSTANTIALLY
IMPROVED STRUCTURES IN THE FLOODPLAIN, AS FURTHER SET
FORTH IN THE ORDINANCE, BE ELEVATED A MINIMUM OF 2 FEET
ABOVE THE BASE FLOOD ELEVATION; AND PROVIDING FOR THE
SEVERABILITY THEREOF.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA:

§1.

That, Section 429.1(4) of Chapter 22 of the Code of the City of Norman be amended as

follows:

4. Flood Hazard District Land Uses.

*

* * *

(c) Specific Standards that Require Flood Plain Permits (A, AE, AH, AO Zones).

*

%k %k %k

(1) Residential Structures — including both “site-built” and “manufactured homes,”

shall be constructed on fill so that the lowest floor (including basement,
ductwork, mechanical and electrical equipment including furnaces, water
heaters, and air conditioners, etc.) is at least two (2) feet above the base flood
elevation. The fill shall be at a level no lower than one (1) foot above the base
flood elevation for the particular area and shall extend at such elevation at least
fifteen feet (15°) beyond the limits of any structure or building erected including
any attendant utility and sanitary facilities.

All manufactured homes to be placed within Zone A shall be installed using
methods and practices which minimize flood damage. For the purpose of this
requirement, manufactured homes must be elevated and anchored to resist
flotation, collapse or lateral movement. Methods of anchoring may include, but
are not limited to use of over-the-top or frame ties to ground anchors.
Manufactured homes are to be placed or substantially improved on a permanent
foundation such that the lowest floor (including ductwork, mechanical and
electrical equipment including furnaces, water heaters, and air conditioners,
etc.) of the manufactured home is elevated at least two (2) feet above the base
flood elevation for the particular area in which the home is to be located. In the
A-2, Rural Agricultural District, each dwelling unit or manufactured home must
be located on a lot containing at least ten (10) acres, or a legal lot filed of record
prior to February 25, 1997. In the Ten Mile Flat Conservation Area as described
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0-2122-25

in Section 420.2, for property within the A-2, Rural Agricultural District, as
amended, each dwelling unit or manufactured home must be located on a lot
containing at least twenty (20) acres, or a legal lot filed of record prior to the
effective date of Ordinance O-0405-23, which is December 16, 2004.

* * *

Non-residential Construction — new construction and substantial
improvement of any commercial, industrial or other non-residential
structures shall be constructed on fill as above [Sec. 4(b)(1)] including any
attendant utility and sanitary facilities, shall be designed so that the lowest
floor (including basement, ductwork, mechanical and electrical equipment
including furnaces, water heaters, and air conditioners, etc.) is elevated at
least two feet above base flood elevation and the fill shall be at a level no
lower than 1 foot above the base flood elevation for the particular area and
shall extend at such elevation at least (15) fifteen feet beyond the limits of
any structure or building erected thereon. A registered professional
engineer shall submit a certification to the Director of Public Works that the
standards of this Ordinance, as proposed in Section 5(a)(1- 2), are satisfied.

%k %k %k

§ 2. SEVERABILITY. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this

Ordinance is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional, such portion shall be
deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision and such holding shall not affect
the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.

ADOPTED this day NOT ADOPTED this day
of ,2021. of ,2021.
(Mayor) (Mayor)

ATTEST:

(City Clerk)
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0-2122-25
Annotated

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA AMENDING
SECTION 429.1, SUB-SECTION 4, OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE TITLED
FLOOD HAZARD DISTRICT LAND USES TO REQUIRE THAT CERTAIN
FEATURES OF AND EQUIPMENT SERVICING NEW OR SUBSTANTIALLY
IMPROVED STRUCTURES IN THE FLOODPLAIN, AS FURTHER SET
FORTH IN THE ORDINANCE, BE ELEVATED A MINIMUM OF 2 FEET
ABOVE THE BASE FLOOD ELEVATION; AND PROVIDING FOR THE
SEVERABILITY THEREOF.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA:

§1.

That, Section 429.1(4) of Chapter 22 of the Code of the City of Norman be amended as

follows:

4. Flood Hazard District Land Uses.

*

* * *

(c) Specific Standards that Require Flood Plain Permits (A, AE, AH, AO Zones).

*

%k %k %k

(1) Residential Structures — including both “site-built” and “manufactured homes,”

shall be constructed on fill so that the lowest floor Gneladingbasement)
(including basement, ductwork, mechanical and electrical equipment including
furnaces, water heaters, and air conditioners, etc.) is at least two (2) feet above
the base flood elevation. The fill shall be at a level no lower than one (1) foot
above the base flood elevation for the particular area and shall extend at such
elevation at least fifteen feet (15”) beyond the limits of any structure or building
erected including any attendant utility and sanitary facilities.

All manufactured homes to be placed within Zone A shall be installed using
methods and practices which minimize flood damage. For the purpose of this
requirement, manufactured homes must be elevated and anchored to resist
flotation, collapse or lateral movement. Methods of anchoring may include, but
are not limited to use of over-the-top or frame ties to ground anchors.
Manufactured homes are to be placed or substantially improved on a permanent
foundation such that the lowest floor (including ductwork, mechanical and
electrical equipment including furnaces, water heaters, and air conditioners,
etc.) of the manufactured home is elevated at least two (2) feet above the base
flood elevation for the particular area in which the home is to be located. In the
A-2, Rural Agricultural District, each dwelling unit or manufactured home must
be located on a lot containing at least ten (10) acres, or a legal lot filed of record
prior to February 25, 1997. In the Ten Mile Flat Conservation Area as described
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0-2122-25
Annotated

in Section 420.2, for property within the A-2, Rural Agricultural District, as
amended, each dwelling unit or manufactured home must be located on a lot
containing at least twenty (20) acres, or a legal lot filed of record prior to the
effective date of Ordinance O-0405-23, which is December 16, 2004.

* * *

Non-residential Construction — new construction and substantial
improvement of any commercial, industrial or other non-residential
structures shall be constructed on fill as above [Sec. 4(b)(1)] including any
attendant utility and sanitary facilities, shall be designed so that the lowest
floor Grelading-basement) (including basement, ductwork, mechanical and
electrical equipment including furnaces, water heaters, and air conditioners,
etc.) is elevated at least two feet above base flood elevation and the fill shall
be at a level no lower than 1 foot above the base flood elevation for the
particular area and shall extend at such elevation at least (15) fifteen feet
beyond the limits of any structure or building erected thereon. A registered
professional engineer shall submit a certification to the Director of Public
Works that the standards of this Ordinance, as proposed in Section
5(a)(1- 2), are satisfied.

%k %k %k

§ 2. SEVERABILITY. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this

Ordinance is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional, such portion shall be
deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision and such holding shall not affect
the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.

ADOPTED this day NOT ADOPTED this day
of ,2021. of ,2021.
(Mayor) (Mayor)

ATTEST:

(City Clerk)

Item 6.

159




File Attachments for ltem:

7. CONSIDERATION OF ACKNOWLEDGEMENT, APPROVAL, REJECTION,
AMENDMENT, AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF THE MAYOR’S APPOINTMENT AS
FOLLOWS:

NORMAN FORWARD GRIFFIN PARK AD HOC ADVISORY GROUP
BRANDON HOPPER, WARD 3
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CITY OF NORMAN, OK

STAFF REPORT

Iltem 7.

MEETING DATE:

REQUESTER:
PRESENTER:

ITEM TITLE:

12/14/2021
Brenda Hall

Brenda Hall, City Clerk
CONSIDERATION OF ACKNOWLEDGEMENT,

MAYOR'’S APPOINTMENT AS FOLLOWS:

APPROVAL,
REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF THE

NORMAN FORWARD GRIFFIN PARK AD HOC ADVISORY GROUP

BRANDON HOPPER, WARD 3
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File Attachments for ltem:

8. CONSIDERATION OF ACKNOWLEDGEMENT, APPROVAL, ACCEPTANCE, REJECTION,
AMENDMENT, AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF RECEIPT OF THE FINANCE DIRECTOR'S
INVESTMENT REPORT AS OF NOVEMBER 30, 2021, AND DIRECTING THE FILING
THEREOF.
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CITY OF NORMAN, OK

STAFF REPORT

Item 8.

MEETING DATE:

REQUESTER:
PRESENTER:

ITEM TITLE:

12/14/2021
Anthony Francisco, Director of Finance

Anthony Francisco, Director of Finance

CONSIDERATION OF ACKNOWLEDGEMENT, APPROVAL, ACCEPTANCE,
REJECTION, AMENDMENT, AND/OR POSTPONEMENT OF RECEIPT OF THE
FINANCE DIRECTOR'S INVESTMENT REPORT AS OF NOVEMBER 30, 2021,

AND DIRECTING THE FILING THEREOF.
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DATE: Decamber &, 2021
TO: City Council -
FROM: Anthony Francisco, Oirecior of Finance “2-1 M
REVIEWED BY: Clint Mercer, Chisf Accountant
FREPARED BY: DCebbie Whitaker, Municipal Accountant Il
SUBJECT. Breakdown of Interest Eamings by Fund w(
MONTHLY COMPARISON ANNUAL COMPARISON
MONTHLY MONTHLY MONTHLY ANNUAL
BUDGETED INTEREST MONTHLY INTEREST MONTH-END MONTHLY BUDGETED INTEREST
INTEREST EARNINGS % % OF BALANCE % OF INTEREST EARNINGS ¥YTD % YD %
EARNINGS Novembar INCREASE  PORTFOLIO November PORTFOLID  EARNINGS YT INCREASE PORTFOLIO
EUND EYE22 2021 {RECBEASE} HOLDINGS 2021 HOLDINGS — EYE22:YTD EYE22 (QECREASE) HOLDINGS
GENERAL FUND $15478 $1,807 -88.32% 432% 8,115,264 2.20% $75.863 8,179 -89.22% 3.21%
NET REVENUE STABILIZATION $4,167 $1,061 -74.54% 2.54% 3,947,001 1.44% $20,833 $6,400 £9.28% 251%
PUBLIC SAFETY SALES TAX FUND $4,167 5350 -81,60% 0.84% 9,088,426 327T% $20,833 $807 -B5.65% 0.36%
HOUSING NIA $1 100.00% 0.00% 4,048 605 1.48% NZA $3 100.00% 0.00%
SPEGCIAL GRANTS FUND N/A $459 100.00% 1.10% 13,669,242 4.92% NIA $2,337 100.00% 0.82%
ROOM TAX FUND $208 §132 «3867% 0.32% 4,358 888 1.57% §$1,042 %815 -40.985% 0.24%
SEIZURES 542 $268 £44.38% 064% 1,148,702 041% $208 §1,556 B45.95% 0.681%
CLEET FUND N/A S0 100.00% 0.00% (3,085} 0.00% NIA $0 100.00% 0.00%
TRANSIT & PARKING FUND $0 $100 0.00% 0.24% 540,600 0.19% ¢} 5420 0.00% 0.16%
ART IN PUBLIC PLACES FUND N/A $0 100.00% 0.00% 1,852 0.00% NIA $3 100.00% 0.00%
WESTWOOD FUND $825 517 <72.28% 0.42% 1,162,082 042% $3,125 $754 75.87% 0.20%
WATER FUND $10.000 $8,359 B.41% 22 4% 40,199,153 14.46% $50,000 554,625 8.25% 21.43%
WASTEWATER FUND $4,167 $2,309 42.42% 575% 9,384,261 3.38% $20.822 315,464 25.77% 8.07%
SEWER MAINTENANCE FUND NiA $3.200 100.00% 7.69% 12,198,748 438% NIA §$18,854 100.00% 1.32%
DEVELOPMENT EXCISE $6,823 $1.724 -70.45% 4.13% 6,767,344 243% $29,167 $10,869 £263% 4268%
SANITATION FUND $25,000 $4,285 -82.66% 10.27% 16,041,620 577T% $125,000 526,469 -78.83% 10.38%
RISK MANAGEMENT FUND NIA $852 100.00% 1.57% 1,870,029 057% N/A $4,707 100.00% 1.85%
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND §58,202 $8,150 -88.46% 14.74% 86,762,657 24.02% $168,667 $423.917 -7365% 17.23%
NORMAN FORWARD SALES TAX $1,280 $8,181 §52.86% 19.56% 84,815,101 2332% 56,250 547,812 84.89% 18.75%
PARKLAND FUND 5833 5208 =74 89% 0.50% 777841 0.28% 34,167 $1,445 £5.31% 0.57%
UNP TAX INCREMENT DISTRICT $2.000 386 -85.60% 021% 10,735,449 3.86% $200,000 $438 100.00% 0.17%
CENTER CITY TAX INCREMENT DIST NIA $128 000% 0.30% 470,640 017% N/A $734 100.00% 0.28%
SINKING FUND $2,083 $767 £317% 1.04% 2,872,167 1.03% $10417 $7.070 32.13% 27T7%
SITE IMPROVEMENT FUND NIA $13 100.00% 0.03% 50,135 0.02% NIA $80 100.00% 0.03%
TRUST & AGENCY FUNDS NIA §3 100.00% 2.01% 9,659 0.00% N/A $16 100 00% 0.01%
ARTERIAL ROAD FUND NiA §238 100.00% 0.57% 887,714 0.32% WA $1,437 100.00% 0.56%
$134,184 $41733  B000% 10000% 27T.G7TA7  10000% 734404 | §254.941 “65.29% 100.00%

City funds ere Invested in interest bearing accounts and investment securities, as direcied by the City's investmant Policy. Rates of retum an these investmeants relats directly to currenl Treasury and Money
Markat rates. Total funds on deposit of $277.98 million as of 11/30/21 are reprasanted by working capital cash batances of all City funds of approximately $107.32 million, outstanding sncumbrances of
$55.35 million, Ganeral Obligation Bond procseds of $47.62 million, NUA revenus bond procaeds of $6.08 milion, NMA bond proceeds of $49.5 million. and UNP TIF resarve amounts of $12.04 million.
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LISTBY TYPE
ZChecking

BANK OF OKLAHOMA
BANK OF OKLAHOMA
BANK OF OKLAHOMA
BANK OF OKLAHOMA
BANK OF OKLAHOMA
BANK OF OKLAHOMA
BANK OF OKLAHOMA
BANK OF OKLAHOMA
BANK OF OKLAHOMA
BANK OF OKLAHOMA
*“Subtotat

ZMoney Market

BANCFIRST-NUA
BANCFIRST-NMA Room Tex
BANCFIRST-NUA Water
BANCFIRST-NUA Clean Water
BANCFIRST-NMA PSST
BANCFIRST-NMA Norman Forward
BANCFIRST-NMA ERF Financing
BANK OF OKLAHOMA UNP TIF
BANK OF QKLAHOMA ARPA
BANK OF OKLAHOMA-Westwood
BANK OF OKLAHOMA-CW

BANK OF OKLAHOMA

BANK OF OKLAHDOMA,

BANK OF GKLAHOMA-SW

BANK OF OKLAHOMA-Misty Lake
BANK OF OKLAHOMA-2015
BANK OF OKLAHOMA-2019A
BANK OF QKLAHOMA 20188
BANK OF OKLAHOMA-2020A
BANK OF OKLAHOMA-2021

=*Subtatal

TSweep/Qvemight

BANK OF OKLAHOMA
BANK OF OKLAHDMA PORTFOLIO

ZCertificale of Deposil

FIRST FIDELITY BANK
GREAT NATIONS BANK
VALLIANCE BANK
FIRST NATIONAL BANK
**Subtotal

™

US T-Note
FFC8
FFCB

US T-Note
FHLB
FHLMC
FFCB

US T-Note
FHLB
FNMA

US T-Nole
FHLE

**Subtotal

“*TOTAL™

GEN'L DEP
WARRANTS PAYABLE
PAYROLL

COURT BOND REFUNDS

INSURANCE CLAIMS
LOCK BOX

RETURN CHECKS
PARKS

FLEXIBLE SPENDING
CDBG-CV

MONEY MKT
MONEY MKT.
MONEY MKT.
MONEY MKT.
MONEY MKT.
MONEY MKT.
MONEY MKT
MONEY MKT
MONEY MKT
MONEY MKT
MONEY MKT
MONEY MKT
MONEY MKT
MONEY MKT
MONEY MKT
MONEY MKT.
MONEY MKT.
MONEY MKT.
MONEY MKT
MONEY MKT,

ICS ACCT
SHORT TERM

co 09r30/21

cD 1730120
co 121208/20

812828510
3133EH2TE
313I3EMNUZ
812828XR6
3123818RS
AMGXGA1
MMIIEMKUSE
9128284X5
II0AIVES
I1ISGOSTE
91282CEND
J130A8BHK2

0413018
1213119
Dwzern
05/3119
1273119
012921
012921
06129021
12R11%
1130021
06130721
nReA

INVESTMENT BY TYPE

November 30, 2021
EARNED
SEC.NO  RURCHASER MATURITY  YIELD INTEREST

0930122
0973022
130721
1228021

11521
121342
[ 2lrafr]
053122
12109/22
1215022
1214122
0821123
12/08/23
0818123
12128023
0614724

0.05%

0.05%

0.37%
0.06%
037%
0.08%
037%
0.37%
0.37%
0.01%
0.05%
0.05%
0.05%
0.05%
0.05%
0.05%
005%
0.05%
005%
0.05%
0.05%
0.05%

0.03%
0.01%

0.45%
0.45%
0.15%
0.25%

2.27%
1.58%
2.06%
204%
181%
0.06%
0.11%
275%
182%
0.48%
0.13%
0.70%

COST MARKET
$1,126.32 $30,165,228.38 $30,165,228.38
($1,429,897.68)  ($1,420,887.58)
($3.309,284.44)  ($3,390,264.44)
$115,252.88 $115,253.88
($248,820.39) ($248,890.39)
$1,865,076.57 $1,885,676.97
(53,772.01) ($3,772.81)
$0.00 $0.00
$2,046. 60 52,048.69
$056  _  $1,44178 $1.441.76
$1.126 68 $27.066.334.36 $27.068,34.26
$0.00 $375796.86 §375,798.86
$0.75 $3,875,052.76 $3,875,052.76
$95.08 $5,408 854 49 $5,400,854.49
$0.45 $204,205 38 $284,205.38
$144.02 $8,425,022.09 $8,425,022 09
$31166 $35,269,932.04 $35,269,332 94
$33.46 $1,961,702.05 $1,981,70205
$102.57 $12.042 62920 $12,042,820.20
$457.20 $11,125757.72 $11,125,757.72
$173.28 $0.00 $0.00
$0.52 $12.42251 $12,422.51
$1.35 $32,672.68 $32,973.88
3872 $183,533 27 $163,533.27
$0.00 3677 $8.77
§24.45 $595,040.75 $565,040.75
$80.07 $1,841,685.30 $1,41,685.30
$20136 $6,062,346.28 $8.062,348.28
$857 48 $15,069,136.04 $15,060,136.04
$357.12 $9,100,544,46 $9,100,544 48
$560.04 $13,650,089.15 $13,650,090.15
$3.31069 $127,206,41368  5127,206,413.80
$705.48 $32,322 444 16 $312,322,444.16
$244,23 $21,535,684 99 $21,535,684.99
$31.25 $250,000.00 $250,000.00
$114.58 $250,000.00 $250,000.00
$31.25 $250,000.00 $250,000.00
$52.08 $250,000 60 $250,000.00
$220.16 $1,000,000.00 $1,000,000.00

4,782.00

685.21 500,000.00 $500.355.00
§2522 7,500,000.00 $7.400.425.00
5.085.01 3,000,000.00 $3.024 480.00
10,895 38 8,100,000.00 $8.230.572.00
91166 8,000,000.00 $7.997.040.00
455.30 5,005 000 00 $5.000,945 95
2,07258 8,500,000.00 $8.834,730.00
8,932.98 8,500,000.00 $8.718,465.00
6320 8,500,000 00 $6,476,785.00
1,353.62 9,000,000.00 $8,676,670.00
302,34 8,240,000.00 $6,399.921.20
36,025.60 6884500000  $69,681,599.15
a1,73332 277.877.677.39  $246,472,032 38

The Govemmenital Accounting Standards Board requires the reporting of markel values of investment securities, These market valuas represant the emount of money
the security would sell for on the open market, if cash flow demands were such that tha security had ta be sold. The City of Norman purchases investmenl securities
with the intent of holding them 1o maturity, as stated In the Clty's Investment Policy. Only in exceptional circumstances would securities be sold before their maturity,
dus to cash flow demands or favorable market conditions.
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File Attachments for ltem:

9. CONSIDERATION OF SUBMISSION AND ACKNOWLEDGING RECEIPT OF
REPORTS ENTITLED “ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021,” AS PREPARED BY THE CITY OF NORMAN
FINANCE DEPARTMENT AND AUDITED BY THE FIRM OF BKD, LLP, FOR THE
CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA, NORMAN UTILITIES AUTHORITY, NORMAN
MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY, NORMAN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY AND
NORMAN TAX INCREMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY.
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Item 9.

CITY OF NORMAN, OK

STAFF REPORT

MEETING DATE: 12/14/2021

REQUESTER: Clint Mercer
PRESENTER: Clint Mercer, Chief Accountant

CONSIDERATION OF SUBMISSION AND ACKNOWLEDGING RECEIPT
ITEM TITLE: OF REPORTS ENTITLED “ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL

REPORT FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021,” AS PREPARED
BY THE CITY OF NORMAN FINANCE DEPARTMENT AND AUDITED BY
THE FIRM OF BKD, LLP, FOR THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA,
NORMAN UTILITIES AUTHORITY, NORMAN MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY,
NORMAN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY AND NORMAN
TAX INCREMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY.

BACKGROUND:

Oklahoma Statutes, Title 11, Section 17-105 require that an audit of the funds, assets, books,
and records of the clerk and treasurer of the City be prepared and reviewed by an independent,
gualified accountant. The City of Norman has, since fiscal year 1988-89, prepared an audit in
conformance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) promulgated by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). For the past twenty-four fiscal years, the
City has received the Government Finance Officers Association’s Award for Excellence in
Financial Reporting. The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2021 (FYE 2021) is included here. The ACFR includes financial statements for
the City of Norman, the Norman Utilities Authority, the Norman Municipal Authority, the Norman
Tax Increment Finance Authority (NTIFA) and Norman Economic Development Authority
(NEDA) as required by the Trust Indentures of various Trusts of which the City of Norman is the
beneficiary.

On May 8, 2018, the Council accepted the proposal of BKD, LLP, (RFP 1718-55), to provide
independent auditing services for the City of Norman, the Norman Municipal Authority, Norman
Utilities Authority, Norman Tax Increment Finance Authority and related entities for a period of
three fiscal years with an option to extend the services for an additional two fiscal years.

DISCUSSION:
The financial statements of both the City and its Trusts have received an unmodified (“clean”)
opinion from BKD, LLP that they fairly represent the financial position of the City and its related

Trusts as of June 30, 2021, in all material respects.

Under separate cover, the Council Audit/Finance Committee may receive a “management letter”

Page 1 of 2
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from the City’s external auditor. The management letter may discuss findings during the audit
review that are not considered material to the overall operations of the City, future audit and
accounting standards to be considered, or other items that would impact on the fair
representation of the City’s financial position. The Council will also receive a separate audit of
the federal and state grant awards (Statement of Expenditure of Federal Awards, or “Single
Audit”) upon disclosure of final guidelines for federal American Rescue Plan Act and other funds.

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report be
accepted. All documents are available for review in the City Clerk’s Office.
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The City
of
Norman, Oklahoma

Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report
Fiscal Year Ended

June 30, 2021

Prepared by:
City of Norman
Finance Departmegnt
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Item 9.

CITY MANAGER'S OFFICE
Phone: 405-366-5402

Citizens of the City of Norman, Oklahoma
Honorable Mayor and City Council

State law requires that every general-purpose local government publish, within six months of the
close of each fiscal year, a complete set of audited financial statements. Several disclosure
covenants related to the City’s beneficial Trusts and Authorities also require timely posting of
approved financial statements. This report is published to fulfill those requirements for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2021.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information
contained 1in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that it has
established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal control should not exceed the anticipated
benefits of providing the control, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute,
assurance that the financial statements are free of any material misstatements.

BKD, LLP has issued an unmodified (“clean”) opinion on the City of Norman (“City”) financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2021. The independent auditors’ report is located at the
front of the financial section of this report.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) immediately follows the independent
auditor’s report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial
statements. The MD&A complements this Letter of Transmittal and should be read in conjunction
with it. We are pleased to report that the financial position of the City of Norman and its
component units is strong.

Profile of the Government

An elected Mayor and eight-member Council govern the City of Norman. Daily operations of the
City are administered by a City Manager appointed by majority vote of the City Council.

The Basic Financial Statements of the City include all governmental and business-type activities,
organizations and functions, including those legally separate organizations for which the City 1s
financially accountable as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”).
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The City provides a full range of municipal government services to over 128,000 residents and
numerous visitors annually. Municipal services provided include: traffic control; water production
and distribution; public transportation and paratransit services; stormwater management and flood
control; wastewater collection and treatment (water reclamation); solid waste collection and
disposal; emergency response services; city code enforcement; crime prevention, enforcement and
adjudication; construction and maintenance of streets and bridges; maintenance of park land; and
public recreational facilities.

The City does not operate hospitals or schools. Special districts and governmental entities with
independent authority administer the public hospital, public schools and the university within the
city. The City provides School Resource Police Officers through a cost-sharing agreement with
the Norman Public Schools.

The Council is required to adopt a final budget by no later than ten days before the close of the
fiscal year. This annual budget serves as the foundation for the City’s financial planning and
control. The budget is prepared by fund, department and category (e.g., salary and benefits).
Department managers may transfer resources within their department as they see fit. Transfers
between departments, however, need special approval from the City Manager. City Council
approval is needed for transfers between funds or between capital projects.

Local Economy; Relevant Financial Policies

The City of Norman is located in the geographic center of Oklahoma and is within the Oklahoma
City metropolitan area. Norman’s high quality of life is sought by people of all ages and walks of
life, and 1s demonstrated by population growth in recent years. The University of Oklahoma,
National Severe Storms Laboratory and National Weather Service, Hitachi Computer Products,
U.S. Postal Service Technical Center, Immuno Mycologics Incorporated, SYSCO Food Services,
Avara Pharmaceutical Technologies, and Johnson Controls Unitary Products Group are some of
the leading institutions and businesses located in Norman. Several of these businesses have
recently expanded, helping to sustain the health of the local economy for years to come.

One of the best indicators of the economic condition of the City is the evaluation of trends in some
key factors. Sales and use taxes and franchise fees collectively represent 60% of the City’s total
General Fund revenue. Sales tax receipts increase in proportion to the level of retail sales and
therefore provide a good indication of the economic condition of the community. Use taxes are
collected at the same rate as sales tax on sales of goods outside of the state of Oklahoma for use
within Norman, such as on-line sales. Reflecting changes in consumer behavior to on-line
purchasing, use tax is an increasing source of revenue, but is relatively difficult to enforce.

Overall, sales tax collections increased by 7.2% from fiscal year 2019-2020 (FYE 2020) levels.
As an indicator of the local economy sales tax recovered strongly from the decline induced by the
Coronavirus pandemic of 2020, with increasing rates of growth through the fourth quarter of the
FYE 2021. Collections from the City’s franchise fees (charges to private electric, natural gas and
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Since sales and use taxes and building permit revenues are a primary source of the City’s general
governmental revenue, are by nature volatile, and because Norman is subject to extreme weather
conditions which can necessitate significant unexpected expenditures during the course of the
budget year, the City must budget conservatively and maintain sufficient fund balances to absorb
any shortfalls that may occur. As a result, prudent reserve policies have been codified in a Net
Revenue Stabilization (“Rainy Day””) Fund Ordinance. The Ordinance requires a budgetary (cash
basis) fund balance of at least three percent (3%) of budgeted expenditures in the General Fund; a
General Fund “Emergency Reserve” appropriation of 1%; and a minimum of 4% of General Fund
expenditures to be maintained in a separate “Rainy Day” Fund (a minimum total of 8 percent of
General Fund expenditures are mandated to be held in reserve fund balances or appropriations).
The Ordinance sets a Targeted Rainy Day Fund balance of 5% of General Fund expenditures (the
total Targeted Reserve Fund Balance is 9% of General Fund expenditures).

Fund balance in the Net Revenue Stabilization Fund can only be appropriated for expenditure in
case of federally-declared disasters or extraordinary capital expense requirements in the General
Fund, or if the General Fund balance falls below one percent. The Ordinance requires that the
Net Revenue Stabilization Fund balance be built or rebuilt to its minimum level within three years
of any expenditure of Rainy Day Fund balances. The City of Norman’s Rainy Day Fund is being
maintained at its Targeted level as of June 30, 2021.
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Item 9.

179




The City also targets a fund balance level in other operating funds of at least eight percent (8%) of
budgeted expenditures to protect citizen/customer service delivery from unexpected revenue
shortfalls or cost overruns. The City also seeks to set utility rates within utility enterprise funds at
a level to meet average net income and reserve requirements over a five-year period without the
need for interim adjustments. The City’s unique Charter requirement that utility rate increases
must be approved by a majority vote of the people of Norman makes this policy more difficult to
achieve. The voters of Norman have not approved a water rate increase since 2015; wastewater,
since 2013; and sanitation, since 2011. Norman is also one of the few cities of its size that does

Long-term Financial Planning

The City provides very competitive employee benefit packages, particularly for health insurance
and retirement (information on employee benefits is given in the Notes to Financial Statements
Section). Much of the City’s long-term financial planning efforts in the general governmental
service areas relate to controlling the rate of growth in these employee costs. The City continues
to provide adequate service levels, but the ability to maintain these service levels without new
revenue sources to support increased staffing will become doubtful. The Council continues to
consider alternative revenue sources.

v
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The financial status of the City’s utility enterprise funds is driven by major capital expenditures.
The Council, acting as Trustees of the Norman Utilities Authority, has approved major expansion
and improvements to the Norman Water Treatment Plant and expansion of the City’s groundwater
supplies. These major water facility improvements are the first major phase of the program laid
out in the NUA’s 2060 Strategic Water Supply Plan, which was approved in 2014. A second phase
1s proposed for FYE 2023, to provide for groundwater treatment and advanced meter
infrastructure, pending voter approval of adequate water rates.

Major Initiatives

The citizens of Norman approved an earmarked, temporary (15-year term) sales tax of one-half
percent (1/2%) to fund major quality of life improvements in October, 2015: the NORMAN
FORWARD initiative. The City’s Norman Municipal Authority issued Tax Revenue Notes to
finance the major facilities included in the Norman Forward program, and major facilities have
been completed or are under construction, including the new Westwood Family Aquatic Center;
the new Norman Public Library, East Branch; the expanded Westwood Tennis Center; the Griffin
Park Soccer Complex; the new Norman Public Library, Central Branch; the new Ruby Grant
Regional Park, and community and neighborhood park improvement city-wide. Ongoing projects
include the reconstructed Reaves Park Youth Softball/Baseball Complex; the construction and
extension of James Garner Boulevard in central Norman; and a new Senior Wellness Center.

NORMAN FORWARD is also funding the new Trae Young Family Athletic Center, which will
house 8 basketball courts, convertible to 12 volleyball courts or for other purposes; an indoor
competition-sized swimming pool and separate “warm-up” pool; a state of the art physical therapy
and training center in the Norman Regional Health System’s “N-Motion” Clinic; and outdoor
training facilities. The YFAC is illustrated in information and graphics on the cover and divider
pages throughout this document.

The City of Norman is scheduled to receive over $22,000,000 in American Rescue Plan Act
entitlement funds, of which approximately $11,000,000 was received in FYE 2021. The City
Council has appropriated $9,500,000 of these funds to complete funding necessary to construct
the City’s new Emergency Operations and Communications Center (EOCC). The EOCC will
house the City’s emergency dispatch functions, traffic control center, emergency operations center,
and other functions. With funding in place, construction of the facility will begin in FYE 2022.

The voters of Norman also approved a major general obligation bond package for road and
drainage improvements throughout Norman in 2019. Major projects funded by the 2019 G.O.
Bond program are ongoing, including widening and streetscape improvements along Porter
Avenue and Jenkins Avenue.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association (“GFOA”) awarded a Certificate of Achievement
for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its Annual Comprehensive Financial Report
(“ACFR”) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. In order to be awarded a Certificate of
Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized ACFR. This
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report must satisfy both accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
and applicable legal requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year
only. We believe our current report continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement
program requirements, and we will submit it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for
certification.

Preparation of an ACFR i1s a complex task and one that requires considerable expertise and
experience. More important, the ongoing maintenance and reporting of the City’s financial
condition at the level to which Norman has been accustomed requires professionalism and
dedication far beyond what could be expected from a paycheck. The City is fortunate to have a
very talented accounting staff willing to undertake these magnanimous efforts year after year. It
1s our pleasure to express sincere thanks to the accounting staff of the City. Chief Accountant
Clint Mercer, CPA, CPFO, and Municipal Accountant Debbie Whitaker deserve particular
recognition for their efforts in preparing representative financial statements. We would also like
to thank BKD, LLP, independent auditors of the City, for their guidance and technical assistance.

Finally, we would like to express our gratitude and appreciation to the members of the Norman
City Council and the Council’s Finance and Audit Committee for your policy guidance which i1s
contained in this document. As the governing body, your commitment to ensure accurate and
reliable financial accounting and reporting systems, and to provide adequate staffing levels to
ensure them, establishes an environment influencing all other decisions that are made. We are
proud to convey the City Council’s commitment to excellence to our citizens and all readers of the
FYE 2021 ACFR.
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BKD Two Leadership Square South Tower | 211 N. Robinson Avenue, Suite 600 | Oklahoma City, OK 73102-9421

CPAs & Advisors 405.606.2580 | Fax 405.600.9799 | bkd.com

Independent Auditor’s Report

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Norman, Oklahoma
Norman, Oklahoma

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Norman,
Oklahoma (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, as listed in the table of
contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.
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Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Norman, Oklahoma
Page 2

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City, as of June 30, 2021, and the respective changes
in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management’s
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison, and pension and other postemployment benefit
information, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The other supplementary information, consisting of
combining statements and budgetary comparison schedules and the introductory and statistical sections,
as listed in the table of contents, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part
of the basic financial statements.

The combining statements and budgetary comparison schedules are the responsibility of management and
were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the combining statements and budgetary comparison schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
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Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Norman, Oklahoma
Page 3

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.

BEDLP

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma
December 9, 2021
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Norman (the “City”), we offer readers of the City’s financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2021. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional
information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages i-x of this
report.

Financial Highlights

e The assets and deferred outflow of resources of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows at
the close of the most recent fiscal year by $750,869,345 (net position).

e The City’s total net position increased by $33,338,544.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $202,699.341, an increase of $39,415,299 in comparison with the prior year.
Approximately 94% or $190,926,0997 was nonspendable, restricted, committed or assigned for
specific purposes. Approximately 6% or $11,773,244 was unassigned at fiscal year end.

e At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was $11,773,244 or
14% of total general fund expenditures.

e The City’s total debt increased by $27,257,342 (11.4 percent) during the current fiscal year. Key
factors of this change were issuance of City of Norman General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020A and
Series 2021 in the amounts of $11,250,000 and 13,500,000, respectively. Issuance of the Norman
Municipal Authority Revenue Note, Taxable Series 2020 in the amount of $22,250,000. The City also
drew $2,995,607 on the Oklahoma Water Resources Board, Series 2017 loan. Also, the City made its
normally scheduled payments.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements.
The City’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements,
2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. A brief description of
the basic financial statements follows.

Government-wide financial statements - The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector
business.

The statement of net position presents information on all the City’s assets, deferred outflow of resources,
liabilities and deferred inflow of resources with the difference between the assets plus deferred outflows of
resources less liabilities and deferred inflows of resources reported as net position. Over time, increases or
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is
improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal
periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).
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Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are
intended.to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type
activities). The governmental activities of the City include general government, planning, city controller,
parks and recreation, public works, public service and public safety. The business-type activities of the
City include the Norman Municipal Authority (the “NMA™), the Norman Utilities Authority (the “NUA”)
and the Norman Economic Development Authority (the “NEDA”). The NMA operates Westwood Park
and the City’s sanitation services. Westwood Park includes golf, tennis and swimming facilities. The
NUA operates the City’s water and wastewater services. The NEDA includes financing and operating
economic development activities for the City.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 17-18 of this report.

Fund financial statements - A fund is a group of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements, All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds,
proprietary funds and fiduciary funds. A brief description of these funds follows.

Governmental funds - Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-
wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows
of spendable resources, as well as balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year.
Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions.
Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental
funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains thirteen individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balances for the general fund, public safety sales tax fund, special grants fund, capital
projects fund and NORMAN FORWARD fund, all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from
the other eight governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation, Individual fund
data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements
elsewhere in this report.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary comparison statement
has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with the budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 19-21 of this report.

Proprietary funds — The City maintains two different types of major proprietary funds. Enterprise funds
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements,
The City uses enterprise funds to account for NMA and NUA activities, which are both presented as major
proprietary funds. The components of these funds are presented in additional detail in the form of

combining statements elsewhere in this report. The City uses one other type of proprietary fund, an internal
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service fund to account for its retained risks. These services predominantly benefit governmental rather
than business-type functions and have been included within govermmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements,

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only
in more detail.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 22-24 of this report.

Fiduciary funds — Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the
resources of those funds are not available to support the City’s own programs. The accounting used for
fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 25-26 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements — The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financial statements can be found on pages 27-74 of this report.

Other information — In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain required supplementary information concerning the City’s progress in funding its
obligation to provide pension and other post-employment benefits to its employees and budgetary
comparison schedules for the general fund and public safety sales tax fund. Required supplementary
information can be found on pages 75-88 of this report. Also, this report presents certain other
supplementary information such as combining financial information for non-major governmental funds,
budgetary comparison schedules for non-major governmental funds and combining financial statements for
enterprise funds and fiduciary funds. Other supplementary information can be found on pages 89-111 of
this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position, In the case of the City, assets and deferred outflows exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows by
$750,869,345 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.
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Net Position
As of June 30
Govemnmental activities Business-type activities Total
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Current and other assets  § 233,837,198 $§ 179,093,564 $ 83,330,749 §  83,606492 $§ 317,167,947 $ 262,700,056

Capital assets, net 490,738,997 473,904,142 303,257,263 293,905,574 793,996,260 767,809,716

Noncurrent assets - 241,484 7,185,087 6,745,712 7,185,087 6,987,196
Total assets 724,576,195 653,239,190 393,773,099 384,257,778 1,118,349,294 1,037,496,968

Deferred outflows 20,920,486 15,251,348 510,492 603,901 21,430,978 15,855,249
Total assets & deferred

outflows 745,496,681 668,490,538 394,283,591 384,861,679 1,139,780,272 1,053,352,217

Long-term liabilities 243,029,838 198,293,813 73,386,902 78,291,136 316,416,740 276,584,949

Other liabilities 50,572,068 32,238,228 13,746,329 14,779,121 64,318,397 47,017,349
Total liabilities 293,601,906 230,532,041 87,133,231 93,070,257 380,735,137 323,602,298

Deferred inflows 8,175,790 12,219,118 - - 8,175,790 12,219,118
Total liabilities &

deferred-inflows 301,777,696 242,751,159 87,133,231 93,070,257 388,910,927 335,821,416

Net position:

Net investment in capital

assets 357,563,482 404,269,078 228,867,966 220,190,180 586,431,448 624,459,258

Restricted 126,260,638 55,892,634 14,690,548 7,349,204 140,951,186 63,241,838

Unrestricted (40,105,135) (34,422,332) 63,591,846 64,252,037 23,486,711 29,829,705
Total net position $ 443718985 § 425739380 $ 307,150,360 $ 291791421 § 750,869,345 $ 717,530,801

By far the largest portion of the City’s net position (78 percent) reflect its investment in capital assets (e.g.,
land, buildings, machinery and equipment and infrastructure), less any related debt used to acquire those
assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.
Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the City’s net position (19 percent) represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of net position is unrestricted.

There was an increase of $15.4 million in the net position reported in connection with the City’s business-
type activities. This increase was due to several factors. See below for more information.

The governmental net position increased by $18 million during the current fiscal year. This increase was
due to several factors. See below for more information.
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Program Revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants &

contributions
Capital grants &
contributions

General revenues:
Sales and excisc taxes
Franchise taxes
Property taxes
Use taxes
Other taxes
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenscs:
General government
Planning
City controller
Parks and recreation
Public works
Public service
Public safety
Interest on long-term debt
Westwood park
Water
Wastewater
Sanitation

Total expenses

Change in net position before
transfers
Transfers

Change in net position

Net position, beginning

Net position, ending

Change in Net Position
For the Year Ended June 30

Item 9.

Governmental activities Business-type activitics Total

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
9,447,778 $ 8,924,887 § 59,274,876 $§ 55077914 § 68,722,654 $§ 64,002,801
24,521,662 10,767,930 - - 24,521,662 10,767.930
12,643,765 6,333,788 10,796,491 2,786,305 23,440,256 9,120,093
84,638,068 75,811,863 2,307,102 1,283,126 86,945,170 77,094,989
6,358,546 6,531,339 - - 6,358,546 6,531,339
8,957,836 12,062,899 - - 8,957,836 12,062,899
12,719,530 9,017,696 - - 12,719,530 9,017,696
2,593,205 2,510,256 - - 2,593,205 2,510,256
469,832 2,489,875 47,842 1,974,631 517,674 4.464,506
1,816,052 2,450,934 32,621 52,054 1,848,673 2,502,988
164,166,274 136,901,467 72,458,932 61,174,030 236,625,206 198,075,497
18,819,315 17,378,592 - - 18,819,315 17,378,592
3,345,940 3,228,429 - - 3,345,940 3228429
2,227,636 2,207,900 - - 2,227,636 2,207,900
8,513,678 8,539,967 - - 8,513,678 8,539,967
41,734,848 39,467,992 - - 41,734,848 39,467,992
3,831,725 1,995,214 - - 3,831,725 1,995,214
64,595,623 53,536,220 - - 64,595,623 53,536,220
5,060,958 4,248,252 - - 5,060,958 4,248252
. . 2,031,852 2,124,443 2,031,852 2,124,443
- - 18,178,326 18,435,089 18,178,326 18,435,089
- - 20,239,517 18,627,217 20,239,517 18,627,217
- - 14,707,244 13,479,559 14,707,244 13,479,559
148,129,723 130,602,566 55,156,939 52,666,308 203,286,662 183,268,874
16,036,551 6,298,901 17,301,993 8,507,722 33,338,544 14,806,623
1,943,054 1,049,311 (1,943,054) (1,049,311) - -
17,979,605 7,348,212 15,358,939 7458411 33,338,544 14,806,623
425,739,380 418,391,168 291,791,421 284,333,010 717,530,801 702,724,178
443718985 $ 425,739,380 $ 307,150,360 $ 291,791421 § 750,869,345 § 717,530,801

Governmental activities —Governmental activities increased the City’s net position by $18 million. In the
prior year, governmental activities increased the City’s net position by $7.3 million. Key elements of this

change are as follows:

e Sales tax revenue within the governmental activities (the City’s primary fund source) increased by
$8,826,205 or 11.6% over the prior fiscal year. The City and State’s economy experienced a

significant increase in the last months of the fiscal year when City and State entities eliminated

restrictions related to the pandemic.
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$4.000,000
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Item 9.

Use tax revenue has increased $3,701,834 or 41% over the prior fiscal year. This increase is related to
post-pandemic increases in demand for products.

Property tax revenue has decreased $3,105,063 or 25.7% from the prior fiscal year. Property taxes are
collected to fund payment of general obligation bonds and judgements awarded against the City. These
amounts decreased in the current fiscal year.

Operating grants and contributions increased $13,753,732 or 128% from the prior fiscal year. Most of
this increase was due to Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security (CARES) Act funding
($8,882,797) and Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) reimbursement for the October
2020 ice storm that occurred within the City ($3,842,835).

Capital grants and contributions increased $6,309,977 or 99% from the prior fiscal year. Most of this
figure is donated infrastructure (i.e., roads) from both developers and joint projects with the State of
Oklahoma.

Public works expenses increased $2,266,856 or 5.7% from the prior year. Most of this increase was
due to street maintenance projects.

Public safety expenses increased $11,059,403 or 20.6% from the prior year. Most of this increase was
due to increases in pension expense related to the Police and Fire pension systems.

Expenses and Program Revenues — Governmental Activities

@program revenues Bexpenses

- I e | o

general government planning city controller parks & recreation public works public service public safety
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Item 9.

Although governmental expenses exceed program revenue, most governmental activities are financed
through general revenues such as taxes.

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities

sales taxes
51%

operating grants
and contributions
15%

investment
earnings
0%

capital grants and rr(l)lscellaneous
contributions 1%
8%

other taxes charges for service
19% 6%

Business-type activities — Business-type activities increased the City’s net position by $15.4 million. In the
prior year, business-type activities increased the City’s net position by $7.5 million. Key elements of this
change are as follows:

o Charges for services increased $4,196,962 or 7.6% from the prior fiscal year. Most of this increase was
due to increased water sales.

e Capital grants and contributions revenue increased $8,010,186 or 287% from the prior fiscal year. This
figure is made up of donated infrastructure (i.e., water and sewer pipe) from developers as they develop
housing additions across the City. Most of the increase was in water pipe.

e Wastewater expenses increased $1,612,300 or 8.7% from the prior fiscal year. Most of this increase
was due to several sewer maintenance projects in the current fiscal year.

e Sanitation expenses increased $1,227,685 or 9.1% from the prior fiscal year.

- 10 -
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Expenses and Program Revenues — Business-type Activities
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Item 9.
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Item 9.

Revenues by Source — Business-type Activities

charges for service
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements.

Governmental funds — The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s
financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a
government’s net resources available for spending at the end of a fiscal year.

As of end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances
of $202,699,341 an increase of $39,415,299 from the prior year. Approximately 6 percent of this total
amount ($11,773,244) constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the
government’s discretion. The remainder of fund balance is either nonspendable, restricted, committed or
assigned to indicate that it is not available for new spending.
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Item 9.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned
fund balance of the General Fund was $11,773,244 while total fund balance reached $18,713,132. As a
measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and
total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 14 percent of total
General Fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 22 percent of that same amount.

The fund balance of the City’s General Fund increased by $1,123,814 during the current fiscal year
compared to a decrease of $2,002,417 in the previous year. Key factors in the current year change are as
follows:

e Sales tax revenues within the General Fund increased $5,968,420 or 14.5% from the prior fiscal year.
Use tax revenues within the General Fund increased $2,548,281 or 38% from the prior fiscal year.

o Intergovernmental revenues within the General Fund increased $11,995,903 or 369.6% from the prior
fiscal year. Most of this increase was due to CARES Act funds ($8,882,797) and FEMA
reimbursement for the October 2020 ice storm ($3,842,835). Most of these revenues were offset by
expenditures or transfers in the current fiscal year.

The Public Safety Sales Tax Fund has a total fund balance of $10,709,750 all of which is restricted for
public safety activities. The net decrease in fund balance during the current year was $204,973. A portion
of this decrease was due to spending of note proceeds for the Emergency Communications System Project
($1,853,311) received in prior years.

The Special Grants Fund has a total fund balance of $2,155,689 all of which is restricted for by grant
agreements. The net decrease in the fund balance during the current year was $68,977 due to expenditure
of grant related uses.

The Capital Projects Fund has a total fund balance of $89,797,503. The net increase in fund balance during
the current year was $10,960,742. This net increase was due to the sale of two new general obligations
bonds totaling $25,219,275 and the spending down of general obligation bond monies received in previous
years.

The NORMAN FORWARD Fund has a total fund balance of $67,991,784. The net increase in fund
balance during the current year was $27,486,849. This net increase was due to the sale of a new revenue
note in the amount of $22,250,000 and the spending down of previous note monies received in the previous
year.

Proprietary funds — The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net position of the NMA and NUA funds were $16,426,267 and $47,165,579 respectively.
The total growth in net position for these funds was $1,649,717 and $13,709,222, respectively. Other
factors concerning the finances of these two funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the
City’s business-type activities.

-13-
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Item 9.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

During the year there was a $7,893,115 increase in appropriations between the original and final amended
budget. Following are the main components of the increase:

o $4,987,848 in increases to the street maintenance budget. Transfers totaling $5,146,825 were made to
cover debris removal associated with the October 2020 ice storm.

e $2,851,717 in increases to the community relations budget. Transfers totaling $2,907,124 were made
to fund CARES Act payments.

The City has an adopted reserve policy established by ordinance. The ordinance establishes that the
General Fund will have an unappropriated reserve of at least three percent (3%) of annually budgeted
expenditures, in addition to an appropriated emergency reserve of one percent (1%) of annually budgeted
expenditures. In addition, the ordinance establishes the Net Revenue Stabilization Fund (i.e., “Rainy Day
Fund”) which has a targeted balance of not less than four percent (4%) but not more than seven percent
(7%) of annually budgeted General Fund expenditures. As of June 30, 2021 the Rainy Day Fund had a
balance of $4,027,066 which represents 4.6% of General Fund expenditures.

The net difference between the General Fund amended budget and actual amounts received/expended can
be briefly summarized as follows:

e General Fund revenues were above expectations by $13,354,573.
o Sales taxes were above expectations by $1,111,921. See explanation above.
o Use taxes were above expectations by $2,455,061. See explanation above.
o Franchise fees were below expectations by $950,591, mainly within the electric, telephone and
basic cable franchises.
o Charges for services were below expectations by $830,942, the most significant being within the
recreation fees category.
o Other revenue was above expectations by $12,174,835, mainly within the miscellaneous category
due to the CARES Act funding.
e General Fund expenditures and encumbrances were below expectations by $4,134,762.
o City Managers expenditures were $417,107 below expectation due to lack of expense of all the
CARES Act funds allocated to the General Fund.
o Information Technology expenditures were $203,519 below expectation due to savings within the
contract data processing category.
o Traffic Control expenditures were $492,036 below expectation due to savings from electricity costs
associated with street lights.
o Fire Suppression expenditures were $289,630 below expectation due to savings within salary and
benefits.
e Net General Fund transfers were $482,501 less than expected.

The City closed the year with a fund balance that was higher than what was budgeted by $17,971,836.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets — The City’s gross investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type
activities as of June 30, 2021, amounted to $793,996,260 (net of accumulated depreciation). This
investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment, roads,
highways and bridges. The total increase in the City’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal
year was 3.4% (3.6% increase for governmental activities and a 3.1% increase for business-type activities).

-14 -
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Item 9.

As of June 30

Governmental activities Business-type activities Total

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Land $ 69,550,542 § 68,360,714 § 10,489,037 § 10,417,288 § 80,039,579 § 78,778,002
Buildings and
improvements 118,446,193 117,297,148 232,531,858 208,177,070 350,978,051 325,474,218
Machinery and
equipment 86,390,845 69,165,189 237,291,824 213,300,245 323,682,669 282,465,434
Infrastructure 648,708,658 630,844,129 - - 648,708,658 630,844,129
Construction in
progress 47,895,914 46,139,237 34,755,638 59,244,491 82,651,552 105,383,728
Less: Accumulated
depreciation (480,253,155) (457,902,275) (211,811,094) (197,233,520) (692,064,249) (655,135,795)
Total $ 490,738,997 § 473,904,142 § 303,257,263 $ 293,905,574 $§ 793,996,260 $ 767,809,716

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

o The new Emergency Communication Systems project was completed at a cost of $13,993,695.
The Water Treatment Plant, Phase II project was completed at a cost of $31,298,365.

e A variety of Norman Forward construction projects were underway; construction in progress related to
Norman Forward projects as of the end of the current fiscal year had reached $20,217,990.

e A variety of street and roadway construction projects were underway; governmental construction in
progress related to public works as of the end of the current fiscal year had reached $18,949,565.

e A variety of water and sewer projects were underway; NUA construction in progress as of the end of
the current fiscal year was $32,932,774.

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in note 4 on pages 42-43 of this report.

Long-term debt — At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total bonded debt outstanding of
$83,881,286. Of this amount, $83,689,389 comprises debt backed by the full faith and credit of the
government. The remainder of the City’s bonded debt represents bonds secured solely by specified
revenue sources (i.e., revenue bonds) of $191,897. The City also had notes payable outstanding of
$182,019,552 at the end of the current fiscal year which were secured by capital assets and specified
revenue sources.
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Item 9.

QOutstanding Debt
As of June 30

Governmental activities Business-type activities Total

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
General obligation bonds $ 83689380 $ 67,812,055 $ -3 - $ 83,689,389 $ 67,812,055
Revenue bonds - - 191,897 368,793 191,897 368,793
Capital leases - - - - - -
Notes payable 102,655,000 86,675,000 79,364,552 83,787,648 182,019,552 170,462,648
Total § 186,344,389 § 154,487,055 $ 79,556,449 $ 84,156,441 $ 265,900,838 $ 238,643,496

The City’s total debt increased by $27,257,342 (11.4 percent) during the current fiscal year. Key factors of
this change were issuance of City of Norman General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020A and Series 2021 in
the amounts of $11,250,000 and 13,500,000, respectively. Issuance of the Norman Municipal Authority
Revenue Note, Taxable Series 2020 in the amount of $22,250,000. The City also drew $2,995,607 on the
Oklahoma Water Resources Board, Series 2017 loan. Also, the City made its normally scheduled
payments.

The City maintained an “Aa2” rating from Moody’s for those general obligation debt issues that are rated
by the service. The NUA maintained an “Aa3” rating from Moody’s for those debt issues that they rate.

Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in note 4 on pages 59-66 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

e The unemployment rate for the Oklahoma City metropolitan area which includes Norman is currently
3.2 percent. The state’s average unemployment rate was 3.7 percent and the national average rate was
5.9 percent.

¢ Inflationary trends in the region have been on the rise in conjunction with national averages.

e The City’s major source of revenue is sales and use tax revenue. Sales tax and use tax revenue
increased 11.6% and 41.1%, respectively, over the prior year total.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the City’s budget for the 2022 fiscal year.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all those with an
interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report
or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Office of the Finance Director,
201 West Gray, Building C, Norman, Oklahoma, 73069.
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Item 9.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

During the year there was a $7,893,115 increase in appropriations between the original and final amended
budget. Following are the main components of the increase:

. $4,987,848 in increases to the street maintenance budget. Transfers totaling $5,146,825 were made to
cover debris removal associated with the October 2020 ice storm.

e $2,851,717 in increases to the community relations budget. Transfers totaling $2,907,124 were made
to fund CARES Act payments.

The City has an adopted reserve policy established by ordinance. The ordinance establishes that the
General Fund will have an unappropriated reserve of at least three percent (3%) of annually budgeted
expenditures, in addition to an appropriated emergency reserve of one percent (1%) of annually budgeted
expenditures. In addition, the ordinance establishes the Net Revenue Stabilization Fund (i.e., “Rainy Day
Fund”) which has a targeted balance of not less than four percent (4%) but not more than seven percent
(7%) of annually budgeted General Fund expenditures. As of June 30, 2021 the Rainy Day Fund had a
balance of $4,027,066 which represents 4.6% of General Fund expenditures.

The net difference between the General Fund amended budget and actual amounts received/expended can
be briefly summarized as follows:

¢ General Fund revenues were above expectations by $13,354,573.
o Sales taxes were above expectations by $1,111,921. See explanation above.
o Use taxes were above expectations by $2,455,061. See explanation above.
o Franchise fees were below expectations by $950,591, mainly within the electric, telephone and
basic cable franchises.
o Charges for services were below expectations by $830,942, the most significant being within the
recreation fees category.
o Other revenue was above expectations by $12,174,835, mainly within the miscellaneous category
due to the CARES Act funding.
e General Fund expenditures and encumbrances were below expectations by $4,134,762.
o City Managers expenditures were $417,107 below expectation due to lack of expense of all the
CARES Act funds allocated to the General Fund.
o Information Technology expenditures were $203,519 below expectation due to savings within the
contract data processing category.
o Traffic Control expenditures were $492,036 below expectation due to savings from electricity costs
associated with street lights.
o Fire Suppression expenditures were $289,630 below expectation due to savings within salary and
benefits.
e Net General Fund transfers were $482,501 less than expected.

The City closed the year with a fund balance that was higher than what was budgeted by $17,971,836.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets — The City’s gross investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type
activities as of June 30, 2021, amounted to $793,996,260 (net of accumulated depreciation). This
investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment, roads,
highways and bridges. The total increase in the City’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal
year was 3.4% (3.6% increase for governmental activities and a 3.1% increase for business-type activities).
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Item 9.

As of June 30

Governmental activities Business-type activities Total

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Land ¥ 69,550,542 § 68,360,714 §$ 10,489,037 § 10,417,288 $ 80,039,579 $ 78,778,002
Buildings and
improvements 118,446,193 117,297,148 232,531,858 208,177,070 350,978,051 325,474,218
Machinery and
equipment 86,390,845 69,165,189 237,291,824 213,300,245 323,682,669 282,465,434
Infrastructure 648,708,658 630,844,129 - - 648,708,658 630,844,129
Construction in
progress 47,895,914 46,139,237 34,755,638 59,244,491 82,651,552 105,383,728
Less: Accumulated
depreciation (480,253,155) (457,902,275) (211,811,094) (197,233,520) (692,064,249) (655,135,795)
Total $ 490,738,997 § 473,904,142 $ 303,257,263 § 293,905,574 $ 793,996,260 $§ 767,809,716

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

e The new Emergency Communication Systems project was completed at a cost of $13,993,695.

e The Water Treatment Plant, Phase 1I project was completed at a cost of $31,298,365.

e A variety of Norman Forward construction projects were underway; construction in progress related to
Norman Forward projects as of the end of the current fiscal year had reached $20,217,990.

e A variety of street and roadway construction projects were underway; governmental construction in
progress related to public works as of the end of the current fiscal year had reached $18,949,565.

e A variety of water and sewer projects were underway; NUA construction in progress as of the end of
the current fiscal year was $32,932,774.

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in note 4 on pages 42-43 of this report.

Long-term debt — At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total bonded debt outstanding of
$83,881,286. Of this amount, $83,689,389 comprises debt backed by the full faith and credit of the
government. The remainder of the City’s bonded debt represents bonds secured solely by specified
revenue sources (i.e., revenue bonds) of $191,897. The City also had notes payable outstanding of
$182,019,552 at the end of the current fiscal year which were secured by capital assets and specified
revenue sources.
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Item 9.

Outstanding Debt
As of June 30

Governmental activities Business-type activities Total

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
General obligation bonds $ 83689389 § 67812055 § -8 - §  83,68,38 §% 67,812,055
Revenue bonds - - 191,897 368,793 191,897 368,793
Capital leases - - - - - -
Notes payable 102,655,000 86,675,000 79,364,552 83,787,648 182,019,552 170,462,648
Total $ 186,344,389 § 154487055 § 79556449 § 84156441 § 265900838 § 238,643,496

The City’s total debt increased by $27,257,342 (11.4 percent) during the current fiscal year. Key factors of
this change were issuance of City of Norman General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020A and Series 2021 in
the amounts of $11,250,000 and 13,500,000, respectively. Issuance of the Norman Municipal Authority
Revenue Note, Taxable Series 2020 in the amount of $22,250,000. The City also drew $2,995,607 on the
Oklahoma Water Resources Board, Series 2017 loan, Also, the City made its normally scheduled

payments.

The City maintained an “Aa2” rating from Moody’s for those general obligation debt issues that are rated
by the service. The NUA maintained an “Aa3” rating from Moody’s for those debt issues that they rate.

Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in note 4 on pages 59-66 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

o The unemployment rate for the Oklahoma City metropolitan area which includes Norman is currently
3.2 percent. The state’s average unemployment rate was 3.7 percent and the national average rate was
5.9 percent.

» Inflationary trends in the region have been on the rise in conjunction with national averages.

s The City’s major source of revenue is sales and use tax revenue. Sales tax and use tax revenue
increased 11.6% and 41.1%, respectively, over the prior year total.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the City’s budget for the 2022 fiscal year.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all those with an
interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report
or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Office of the Finance Director,
201 West Gray, Building C, Norman, Oklahoma, 73069.
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2021

Item 9.

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 45,196,446 $ 25,637,764 $ 70,834,210

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 117,450,151 8,704,302 126,154 453

Investments 41,314,209 42,348,100 83,662,309

Restricted investments 3,000,429 - 3,000,429

Receivables:

Taxes 19,485,169 - 19,485,169
Accounts, net of allowance for estimated

uncollectible Business-Type accounts of $1,735,143 1,680,108 5,779,895 7,460,003
Interest 111,142 114,319 225,461
Other 69,493 - 69,493

Due from Federal Government 6,257,096 - 6,257,096

Internal balances (746,369) 746,369 -

Inventory 19,324 - 19,324

Total current assets 233,837,198 83,330,749 317,167,947
Non-current assets:

Restricted cash and cash equivalents - 7,185,087 7,185,087

Capital assets not subject to depreciation 117,446,455 45,244,676 162,691,131

Capital assets, net 373,292,542 258,012,587 631,305,129

Total non-current assets 490,738,997 310,442,350 801,181,347
Total assets 724,576,195 393,773,099 1,118,349,294
DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred resources related to pensions 19,968,502 - 19,968,502
Deferred resources related to OPEB 869,368 - 869,368
Deferred charge on refunding 82,616 510,492 593,108
Total deferred outflows of resources 20,920,486 510,492 21,430,978
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities 7,734,234 2,814,231 10,548,465

Payroll payable ) 2,539,785 469,972 3,009,757

Accrued interest payable 1,618,535 502,931 2,121,466

Unearned revenue 11,122,771 - 11,122,771

Retainage payable 644,443 699,425 1,343,868

Guaranty deposits 7,133,965 1,791,742 8,925,707

Current portion of long-term debt 19,778,335 7,464,925 27,243,260
Total current liabilities 50,572,068 13,743,226 64,315,294

Non-current liabilities:

Long-term debt and other liabilities 243,029,838 73,390,005 316,419,843
Total non-current liabilities 243,029,838 73,390,005 316,419,843
Total liabilities 293,601,906 87,133,231 380,735,137

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES

Deferred resources related to pensions 5,252,414 - 5,252,414

Deferred resources related to OPEB 2,923,376 - 2,923,376
Total deferred inflows of resources 8,175,790 - 8,175,790

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 357,563,482 228,867,966 586,431,448

Restricted for:

Debt service 4,878,612 7,714,918 12,593,530

Capital improvements 100,691,395 6,975,630 107,667,025

Public safety 12,090,114 - 12,090,114

Public parks and recreation 1,529,706 - 1,529,706

Public service 3,127,671 - 3,127,671

Public works 3,943,140 - 3,943,140

Unrestricted (deficit) (40,105,135) 63,591,846 23,486,711
Total net position $ 443,718,985 § 307,150,360 $ 750,869,345

See notes to financial statements.
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

Item 9.

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2021
Other Total
Public Safety Special Capital Norman Governmental Governmental
General Sales Tax Grants Fund Projects Forward Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents § - $ - $13,123,702 $ 11,424,078 $ 15,619,473 $ 4,663,999 $ 44,831,252
Investments 6,993,550 - - 13,143,041 13,818,721 5,750,594 39,705,906
Receivables:
Taxes 11,539,903 2,228,488 - 2,747,470 2,228,487 740,821 19,485,169
Accounts 1,583,551 - - 90,722 - 504 1,674,777
Interest 15,591 81 - 38,198 37,424 15,510 106,804
Other - - - 69,493 - - 69,493
Due from Federal Govnmt 3,885,479 - 117,657 - - 2,253,960 6,257,096
Due from other funds 2,489 8,121 54,566 315,874 428,924 131,567 941,541
Inventory 19,324 - - - - - 19,324
Restricted Assets:
Cash and cash equivalent: 2,333,810 10,056,381 - 67,625,604 37,103,094 331,262 117,450,151
Investments 3,000,429 - - - - - 3,000,429
Total assets $ 26,374,126 $ 12,293,071 $13,295,925 $ 95,454,480 $ 69,236,123 $ 13,888,217 $233,541,942
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and
other accrued liabilities § 1,556,874 $ 1,091,753 $ 14,741 $ 3,380,488 $ 1,153,924 $ 515,755 $ 7,713,535
Payroll payable 2,106,573 342,063 2,724 38,576 - 38,490 2,528,426
Due to other funds 1,696,972 - - - - 2,439 1,699,461
Unearned revenue - - 11,122,771 - - - 11,122,771
Retainage payable - 149,505 - 404,523 90,415 - 644,443
Guaranty deposits 5,300,575 - - 1,833,390 - - 7,133,965
Total liabilities 10,660,994 1,583,321 11,140,236 5,656,977 1,244,339 556,734 30,842,601
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable 19,324 - " - - - 19,324
Restricted - 10,709,750 1,723,969 87,345,875 65,984,901 13,195,553 178,960,048
Committed 4,027,066 - - - - - 4,027,066
Assigned 2,893,498 - 431,720 2,451,628 2,006,883 135,930 7,919,659
Unassigned 11,773,244 - - - - - 11,773,244
Total fund balances 18,713,132 10,709,750 2,155,689 89,797,503 67,991,784 13,331,483 202,699,341
Total liabilities and fund balances
balances $ 29,374,126 $ 12293071 $13,295,925 $ 95,454,480 $ 69,236,123 $ 13,888,217
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported
in the funds. 490,738,997
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of risk management activities to individual funds. The
assets, deferred outflow of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of the internal service funds are included in governmental
activities in the statement of net position. (1,097,768)
Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable and net pension liability (including related deferred outflows/inflows of resources) are
not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. (248,621,585)
Net position of governmental activities $443,718.985

See notes to financial statements.
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Item 9.

Revenues:
Taxes

Licenses and permits

Intergovernmental revenues

Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment earntngs
Other
Total revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Planning
City controller
Parks and recreation
Public works
Public service
Public safety
Capital outlay
Debt service:

Principal retirement

Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in
Transfers out
Bond proceeds
Net other financing

sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, July 1, 2020

Fund balances, June 30,2021 $ 18,713,132

See notes to financial statements.

Other Total
Public Safety Special Capital Norman Governmental Governmental
General Sales Tax Grants Fund Projects Forward Funds Funds
% 62,781,208 3 11,796,564 3 - 3 14,264,081 % 11,796,564 b 13,299,972 $ 113,938,389
1,463,026 - - - - - 1,463,026
15,241,354 448,463 - - 6,799,616 22,489,433
10,719,243 - - - - 167,724 10,886,967
1,548,357 - - - - - 1,548,357
30,539 1,325 (1,567) 84,873 54,214 44,743 214,127
2,005,707 684,746 - 348,177 - 694,051 3,732,681
93,785,434 12,482 635 446,896 14,697,131 11,850,778 21,006,106 154,272,980
13,214,426 - - 3,362,905 11,036 - 16,588,367
3,380,597 - - 99,106 - - 3,479,703
3,690,009 - - 11,485 - - 3,701,494
4,902,139 - 233,780 517,698 519,213 54,289 6,227,119
20,060,617 85,870 84,296 5,796,782 - 4,716,830 30,744,395
- - 23,989 - - 3,803,240 3,827,229
38,606,277 10,204,340 117,491 297,423 - 62,393 49,287,924
2,909,623 2,869,447 56,317 13,871,680 10,267,073 53,595 30,027,735
- 2,015,000 - 1,255,000 3,000,000 9,080,000 15,350,000
- 346,281 - 255352 2,170,293 1,885,845 4,657,771
86,763,688 15,520,938 515,873 25,467,431 15,967,615 19,656,192 163,891,737
7,025,746 (3,038,303) (68,977) (10,770,300) (4,116,837 1,349,914 (9,618,757)
5,875,576 2,797,330 - 5,470,176 9,576,381 4,555,316 28,274,779
(11,777,508) - - (8,958,409) (222,695) (5,751,386) (26,709,998)
- - - 25,219,275 22,250,000 - 47,469,275
(5,901,932) 2,797,330 - 21,731,042 31,603,686 (1,196,070) 49,034,056
1,123,814 (240,973) (68,977) 10,960,742 27,486,849 153,844 39,415,209
17,589,318 10,950,723 2,224,666 78,836,761 40,504,935 13,177,639 163,28{1,042
$ 10,709,750 $ 2,155,689 $ 89,797,503 3 67,991,784 3 13,331,483 $ 202,699,341
-20 -
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Item 9.

THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 39,415,299

Governmental finds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays
exceeded depreciation in the current period. 6,849,222

Contributed capital assets (land, buildings and infrastructure) and other miscellaneous capital
asset transactions recorded in government-wide financial statements but not recorded
in fund level financial statements 9,985,633

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the
current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect
on the net position, Also, governmental funds report the effect of premiums, discounts,
and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and
amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences
in the treatment of long-term debt and related items. (31,650,000)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and, therefore are not reported as expenditures in the govenmental funds (490,460)

Decrease in liability for incurred claims and compensated absences and miscellaneous
expenses in government-wide financial statements 200,635

The cost of pension benefits earned, net of contributions made, are reported as an element
of pension expense in government-wide financial statements. In the fund-level
financial statements only the contributions made are reported as expenditures (6,287,092)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of insurance services to
individual funds. The net loss of the internal service fund is reported

with governmental activities. (43,632)
Change in net position of governmental activities $ 17,979,605

See notes to financial statements
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Item 9.

JUNE 30, 2021
Governmental
Business-type Activities Activities
Norman Norman
Municipal Utilities Internal
Authority Authority Total Service Fund
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 6,989,363 §$ 18,648,401 §$ 25,637,764 $ 420,225
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 470,305 8,233,997 8,704,302 -
Investments 9,338,969 33,009,131 42,348,100 1,608,303
Receivables:
Accounts, net of allowance for
estimated uncollectible accounts 1,831,527 3,948,368 5,779,895 5,331
Interest- 25,188 89,131 114,319 4,338
Due from other funds 187,731 558,638 746,369 11,551
Total current assets 18,843,083 64,487,666 83,330,749 2,049,748
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 209,457 6,975,630 7,185,087 -
Capital assets, net 18,038,129 285,219,134 303,257,263 -
Total noncurrent assets 18,247,586 292,194,764 310,442,350 -
Total assets 37,090,669 356,682,430 393,773,099 2,049,748
DEFERRED QUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred charge on refunding - 510,492 510,492 -
Total deferred outflows of resources - 510,492 510,492 -
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,224,314 1,589,917 2,814,231 75,852
Payroll payable 256,203 213,769 469,972 11,359
Liability for incurred claims - - - 1,200,000
Accrued interest payable 995 501,936 502,931 -
Retainage payable - 699,425 699,425 -
Guaranty deposits 469,310 1,322,432 1,791,742 -
Revenue bonds payable 191,897 - 191,897 -
Notes payable - 7,143,251 7,143,251 -
Compensated absences 46,884 82,893 129,777 6,024
Total current liabilities 2,189,603 11,553,623 13,743,226 1,293,235
Noncurrent liabilities:
Notes payable, net - 72,221,301 72,221,301 -
Compensated absences 422,213 746,491 1,168,704 54,281
Liability for incurred claims - - - 1,800,000
Revenuc bonds payable, net - - - -
Total noncurrent liabilities 422213 72,967,792 73,390,005 1,854,281
Total liabilities 2,611,816 84,521,415 87,133,231 3,147,516
NET POSITION
Nect investment in capital assets 17,843,129 211,024,837 228,867,966 -
Restricted for debt service 209,457 7,505,461 7,714,918 -
Restricted for capital projects - 6,975,630 6,975,630 -
Unrestricted 16,426,267 47,165,579 63,591,846 (1,097,768)
Total net position 34,478,853 § 272,671,507 § 307,150,360 § (1,097,768)

See notes to financial statements.
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION -

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Item 9.

Operating revenues:

Golf and pool fees

Water service, net

Wastewater service, net

Sanitation services, net

Self-insurance charges;
Charges for services
Risk management administration
Workers' compensation
Unemployment compensation

Other

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Salaries and benefits
Supplies and materials
Services, maintenance and claims
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Excise tax revenue
Investment earnings
Interest and fiscal charges
Miscellaneous income (expense)

Net nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Income (loss) before capital contributions and transfers

Capital contributions - donated water and

sewer distribution systems
Transfers in
Transfers out

Net capital contributions and transfers

Net income (loss)

Net position - beginning

Net position - ending

See notes to financial statements

Governmental

Business-type Activities Activities

Norman Norman

Municipal Utilities Internal
Authority Authority Total Service Fund
$ 1,942,080 $ - $ 1,942,080 $ -
- 25,498,386 25,498,386 -
- 16,615,270 16,615,270 -
16,188,306 - 16,188,306 -
. - - 14,474,277
- - - 325,000
- - - 520,000
. - - 22,220
98,681 396,693 495,374 105,138
18,229,067 42,510,349 60,739,416 15,446,635
5,905,836 7,724,049 13,629,885 567,522
1,234,017 3,429,248 4,663,265 -
7,522,171 12,635,628 20,157,799 15,308,553
2,113,816 14,170,624 16,284,440 -
16,775,840 37,959,549 54,735,389 15,876,075
1,453,227 4,550,800 6,004,027 (429,440)
- 2,307,102 2,307,102 -
20,220 27,622 47,842 7,534
(26,404) (2,226,790) (2,253,194) -
89,494 310,231 399,725 -
83,310 418,165 501,475 7,534
1,536,537 4,968,965 6,505,502 (421,906)
- 10,796,491 10,796,491 -
264,012 - 264,012 447,167
{150,832) (2,056,234) (2,207,066) (68,893)
113,180 8,740,257 8,853,437 378,274
1,649,717 13,709,222 15,358,939 (43,632)
32,829,136 258,962,285 291,791,421 (1,054,136)
$ 34478853 $ 272,671,507 $ 307,150,360 $  (1,097,768)

-3 -
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Item 9.

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash received from interfund charges for health insurance
Cash paid to employees for services
Cash paid to suppliers
Other receipts (payments)
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers in
Transfers out
Net cash provided by (used for) noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds from disposal of capital assets
Payments for the acquisition of capital assets
Proceeds from taxes
Principal payments on revenue bonds
Proceeds from notes payable
Principal payments on notes payable
Interest and fiscal charges paid

Net cash used for capital
and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities;
Proceeds from maturity of investments
Payments for purchases of investments
Investment earnings received

Net cash used for investing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents -~ beginning

Cash and cash equivalents - ending

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (1oss) to net
cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Miscellaneous revenue
Bad debt expense
Depreciation and amortization
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable, net
Increase in due from other funds
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Increase (decrease) in payroll payable
Decrease in retainage payable
Increase in guaranty deposits
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activitics
NONCASH ACTIVITIES:
Donated water and sewer distribution systems
Changg in unrealized loss on investments

See notes to financial statements.

Governmental
Business-type Activities Activities
Norman Norman
Munigipal Utilities Interal

Authority Authority Total Service Fund
$ 17,404,851 § 41,807,543 $§ 59212394 § -
- - - 15,529,341

(5,934,481) (7,775927)  (13,710,408) (549,696)
(8,237,605) (17,850,697)  (26,088,302) (15,403,455)
45,718 208,554 254,272 (1,713)
3,278,483 16,389,473 19,667,956 (425,523)
264,012 - 264,012 447,167
(150,832) (2,056.234) (2,207,066) (68,893)
113,180 (2,056,234) (1,943,054) 378,274

84,728 16,368 101,096 -
(2,790,259)  (12,392,778)  (15,183,037) -

- 2,307,102 2,307,102 -

(180,000) - (180,000) -

- 2,995,607 2,995,607

- (7,408,584) (7,408,584) -

(24,219) (2,238,728) (2,262.947) -
(2,909,750) (16,721,013 _ (19,630,763) -
2,931,340 11,948,954 14,880,254 337,164
(6,302,935) (22,278,091) (28,581,026) (1,085,455)
123,816 441,647 565,463 20,322
(3,247,779) (9,887,490) (13,135,269 (727,969)
(2,765,866) (12,275,264) (15,041,130) (775,218)
10,434,991 46,133,292 56,568,283 1,195,443

$ 7,669,125 § 33,858,028 $ 41,527,153 § 420,225
$ 1,453,227 $ 4,550,800 % 6,004,027 § (429,440)
89,494 310,231 399,725 -

129,217 215,705 344,922 -
2,113,816 14,170,624 16,284,440 -
63,148 179,155 242,303 -
(1,001,802) (976,901) (1,978,703) 82,706
(106,924) (280,832) (387,756) (1,713)
518,583 (1,423,906) (905,323) (94,902)

12,536 (8,423) 4,113 1,489

- (361,915) (361,915) -

48,369 58,390 106,759 -

(41,181) (43,455) (84,636) 16,337
$ 3,278,483 § 16,389,473 § 19,667,956 $ (425,523)
$ - $ 10,796491 $ 10,796,491 § -
$ 102,495 § 403,081 § 505,576 § -

.24 -
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION -
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2021

Item 9.

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Mutual funds
U.S. Agencies
Interest receivable
Due from other funds

Loans to 401(a) Plan participants

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND
NET POSITION

Funds held for others

Net position restricted for defined benefit pensions
Net position restricted for defined contribution pensions

Total liabilities and net position

See notes to financial statements.

118,759,230

121,939,624

121,724,522

$ 121,939,624

Custodial
Fund

§ 4133

5,471

14

114

§ 9,732

$ 9,732

$ 9,732
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THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION -

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Item 9.

ADDITIONS:

Contributions:
Employer
Employee
Total contributions
Investment income

Total additions

DEDUCTIONS:

Pension benefits paid
Administration costs

Total deductions
NET INCREASE IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

Net position:
Beginning of year

End of year

See notes to financial statements.

-26 -

Pension

Trust Custodial

Fund Fund

) 2,751,223 ) -

2,069,080 -

4,820,303 -
29,063,637 6
33,883,940 6

13,949,224 -

626 -

13,949,850 -
19,934,090 6
102,005,534 9,726
$ 121,939,624 $ 9,732
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Item 9.

THE CITY OF NORMAN, OKLAHOMA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting and reporting policies of the City of Norman, Oklahoma (the “City”) conform to
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for state and local
governments. Generally accepted accounting principles for municipalities are defined as those
principles promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”). The following
represent the more significant accounting and reporting policies and practices of the City.

Reporting Entity - The City is a municipal corporation governed by an elected mayor and eight-member
council. The accompanying financial statements present the government and its component units,
entities for which the City is considered to be financially accountable. Blended component units,
although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the City’s operations and therefore data from
these units are combined with data of the City. Each blended component unit has a June 30 year end.

Blended Component Units - The Norman Municipal Authority (“NMA”) was established in April 19635.
Activities of the NMA include financing and operating the Westwood Park recreational facilities and
sanitation services for the City, The governing body of the NMA is the same as the City’s governing
body. The City is the sole beneficiary of the NMA and receives all trust properties and resulting
revenues upon retirement of all trust indebtedness. The City maintains all accounting records. The
NMA is reported as an enterprise fund and does not issue separate financial statements.

The Norman Utilities Authority (“NUA”) was established February 2, 1970. Activities of the NUA
include financing and operating certain utility systems for the City. The governing body of the NUA is
the same as the City’s governing body. The City is the sole beneficiary of the NUA and receives all trust
properties upon termination. The City maintains all accounting records, The NUA is presented as an
enterprise fund and does not issue separate financial statements.

The Norman Tax Increment Finance Authority (“NTIF”) was established July 11, 2006. Activities of the
NTIF include financing Tax Increment Financing District #2 — University North Park. The governing
body of the NTIF is the same as the City’s governing body. The City is the sole beneficiary of the NTIF
and receives all trust properties upon termination. The City maintains all accounting records. The NTIF
is presented within the Capital Project Fund in the governmental funds balance sheet and does not issue
separate financial statements.

The Norman Economic Development Authority (“NEDA™) was established June 12, 2012. Activities of
the NEDA include financing and operating ecomonic development activities for the City. The governing
body of the NEDA is the same as the City’s governing body. The City is the sole beneficiary of the
NEDA and receives all trust properties upon termination. The City maintains all accounting records. As
of June 30, 2019, NEDA had no transcations,

Basis of presentation ~The City follows Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”)
statements in the preparation of its financial statements. Additional information regarding the basis of
accounting and the differences in presentation are contained in the Management’s Discussion and
Analysis, which preceded the financial statements.
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In 2021, the City adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 84, Fiduciary
Activities, and Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit
Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred
Compensation Plans, an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a supersession of
GASB No. 32. These standards provided for greater consistency and comparability by establishing
specific criteria for identifying activities that should be reported as fiduciary activities and clarifying
whether and how business-type activities should report their fiduciary activities. The adoption of these
standards did not have a material impact on the City’s financial statements.

Government-wide and fund financial statements — The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the
statement of net position and the statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary
activities of the primary government and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund
activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are
supported by taxes, intergovernmental revenues and other nonexchange transactions are reported
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges to external
customers for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in
the fund financial statements. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and
reported as non-major funds.

Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation — The government-wide
financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis
of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows, Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.
Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
Jfocus and the modified accrual basis of accounting., Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the
government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the
current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated
absences and claims and judgments are recorded only when payment is due.

Sales taxes, excise taxes, franchise taxes, property taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the
current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as revenues
of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable due within the current
fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. Expenditure
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driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all
other eligibility requirements have been met. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable
and available only when cash is received by the City.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the principal fund of the City which accounts for the general
operations of the City and all other financial transactions not reported in other funds,

Public Safety Sales Tax Fund — A special revenue fund established to receive revenues from a special
half-cent sales tax dedicated to public safety activities.

Special Grants Fund — Established to account for revenues and expenditures of other miscellaneous
grants received from various sources.

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for all major capital
improvements which have been financed by designated resources, except those accounted for in the
Norman Forward Fund or proprietary funds. Activities of the NTIF are included in this fund.

NORMAN FORWARD Fund — A capital projects fund established to receive revenues from a special
half-cent sales tax dedicated to quality-of-life projects including multiple recreation facilities,
libraries, parks, athletic venues, public art, trails, and swim complexes.

The City reports the following non-major governmental funds:

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of financial resources that
are restricted or assigned for the payment of interest and principal on the general long-term debt of the
City, other than debt service payments made by enterprise funds. Ad valorem taxes and interest
earned on investments of the Debt Service Fund are used for the payment of principal, interest and
commission to fiscal agents on the City’s general obligation bonds and judgments.

Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of government
grants or specific revenue sources (other than grants applicable to enterprise fund activities,
expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted, commiteed or assigned to
expenditures for specified purposes. The City has seven nonmajor special revenue funds including:

e Norman Room Tax Fund - Established by City ordinance to receive revenues from the City
hotel/motel occupancy tax. Tax receipts are required to be used for promoting and fostering
convention and tourism development in the City.

o Community Development Fund - Established to account for the City’s Community Development
Block Grants, Home Ownership Made Easy (“HOME”) Grants, Rental Rehabilitation and
Emergency Shelter Grants received from the US Department of Housing and Urban Development
(“HUD”).

e Park Land Fund - Established by City ordinance to receive revenues from developer fees
dedicated to the acquisition of park land around the City.

o Seizures and Restitutions Fund - Established to account for the revenue available as a result of
property seizures resulting from criminal investigations.
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e Cleet Fund - Established to account for revenue derived by provision of State law to be utilized
for law enforcement education and training,.

e Transit and Parking Fund - Established to account for revenues and expenditures from transit and
parking services.

» Artin Public Places Fund - Established to account for donations made to provide public art
displays throughout the City.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

Norman Municipal Authority — A blended component unit established to account for the construction
and operation of Westwood Park recreational facilities and the City’s sanitation services.

Norman Utilities Authority — A blended component unit established to account for the water and
wastewater utility systems for the City.

Risk Management Internal Service Fund — Established to account for the resources utilized by
departments to provide for the self-insurance of Workers’ Compensation and Unemployment
Insurance and to pay claims and receive premiums on insurance for employee health and property loss
on a long-term cost-reimbursement basis.

The City reports the following fiduciary funds:

Pension Trust Funds - The Pension Trust Funds are used to account for the receipt, investment and
distribution of retirement contributions to the Annuity Pool portion of the Employee Retirement
System of the City. The Employee Retirement System Annuity Pool is a contributory defined benefit
plan. The Pension Trust Funds are also used to account for the receipt, investment and distribution of
retirement contributions from the City and employees to the Section 401(a) portion of the Employee
Retirement System of the City. The Section 401(a) plan is a defined contribution plan for qualifying
City employees.

Custodial Funds - Custodial Funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. These
funds are used to account for assets that the City holds for others in an agency capacity and are not
required to be reported in pension trust funds, investment trust funds, or private purpose trust funds.
The City has one agency fund, the Centennial Fund, which was created to account for assets held for
the City’s firefighters to develop a yearbook celebrating the centennial anniversary of the City of
Norman Firefighters.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to the general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other charges
between the government’s enterprise funds. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs
and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
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connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of
the City’s enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for the
enterprise funds and the internal service fund include the cost of sales and services, administrative
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Accounting Policies — The City’s significant accounting policies related to the following financial
statement categories are summarized below:

Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity

a.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - The City considers all highly liquid investments with an original
maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash and cash equivalents.

Pooled Cash and Investments - The City Charter requires all cash belonging to the City to be
placed in the custody of the Financial Services Department of the City. A “Pooled Cash” concept
is used in maintaining the cash and investment accounts in the accounting records. Under this
method, all cash is pooled for investment purposes and each fund has equity in the pooled amounts.
Investments are allocated to the individual participating funds based upon a percentage determined
by the Financial Services Department of the City. An interfund receivable/payable is recognized if
the allocation of investments to a particular fund exceeds the fund’s pooled cash amount before the
allocation of the pooled investments.

Purchases and maturities of the pooled investments, as reported in the fund’s statement of cash
flows, are allocated to the participating proprietary funds based on their portion of total pooled
investments.

Investments — Investments are stated at fair value. Fair value is the amount at which a financial

. instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties. The City considers

quoted market price at June 30, 2021, to be the fair value of its investments.

Oklahoma Statutes authorize the City to invest in obligations of the United States government, its
agencies and instrumentalities; collateralized or insured certificates of deposit and other evidences
of deposit at banks, savings banks, savings and loan associations and credit unions located in this
state, or fully insured certificates of deposit at banks, savings banks, savings and loan associations
and credit unions located out of state; negotiable certificates of deposit issued by a nationally or
state-chartered bank, a savings bank, a savings and loan association or a state-licensed branch of a
foreign bank; prime banker’s acceptances which are eligible for purchase by the Federal Reserve
System and which do not exceed 270 days’ maturity; prime commercial paper which shall not have
a maturity that exceeds 180 days nor represent more than 10% of the outstanding paper of an
issuing corporation; repurchase agreements that have underlying collateral consisting of those items
specified above; and money market funds regulated by the Securities and Exchange Commission
and which investments consist of those items noted above.

The Pension Trust Fund is invested based on guidelines established by its separate Board of
Trustees.

Receivables and payables — In the government-wide financial statements, receivables consist of all
revenues earned at year-end and not yet received. Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable
are based upon historical trends and the periodic aging of accounts receivable.
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Interfund Receivables and Payables — Activity between funds that are representative of
lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either
“due to / due from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to / from
other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances
between funds are reported as “due to / from other funds.” Any residual balances outstanding
between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-

- wide financial statements as “internal balances.”

Restricted Assets — Restricted assets include cash and investments of both governmental activities
and business-type activities that are legally restricted as to their use. The restricted assets are
primarily related to debt trustee accounts and guaranty deposits.

Capital Assets — Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment and infrastructure
assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.
Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than
$2,500 (amount not rounded) and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital
assets, the majority of which generally consist of donated land and infrastructure which are
recorded in the governmental funds and donated water and sewer distribution systems which are
recorded in the proprietary funds, are recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
~ extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Land and construction in progress are not depreciated. The other property, plant, equipment and
infrastructure are depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful
lives:

Buildings 40 — 65 years
Infrastructure 25 — 50 years
Improvements other than buildings & infrastructure 10 - 20 vyears
Machinery and equipment 3 — 20 years
Vehicles 3 -7 years

Inventory — The City records parts and fuel inventory within the General fund. Parts inventory is
valued at actual cost using the first-in/first out method. Fuel inventory is recorded using average
cost. The cost of such inventories is recorded as expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than
when purchased.

Long-term Debt - In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the
fund financial statements, long-term debt is reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond
premiums and discounts, and losses on refunding are deferred and amortized over the life of the
bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond
premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are expensed during the current period.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts,
as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is
reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other
financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance
costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.
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Liability for Incurred Claims - The liability for incurred claims represents estimated claims
(including future claim adjustment expenses) incurred but unpaid for workers compensation, group
medical and dental, and unemployment claims as of the fiscal year end. The estimate includes
claims reported as of June 30, 2021, as well as an estimated amount representing claims incurred
but not reported. The City utilizes the services of an actuary in computation of the incurred but
unpaid workers compensation portion of the liability.

Claims and Judgments Payable - Under state law, judgments against the City can be paid over
three years or can be paid immediately. The General Fund pays all claims and judgments. A
liability has been recorded within the government-wide statements for claims and judgments
payable. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds when they become due
and payable.

Compensated Absences - Under the terms of union contracts and City personnel policies, City
employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts. In the event of termination, an
employee is paid for vacation leave accumulated and vested accumulated sick leave. Vesting of
sick leave by employees and the maximum number of hours that can be accumulated for vacation
and sick leave are dependent upon an employee’s years of service. Upon retirement, one-half of
accumulated sick leave is converted to vacation time, subject to the above limitation for maximum
compensation for unused compensated absences.

A liability has been recorded within the government-wide and proprietary financial statements for
accrued vacation and sick leave and certain salary related payments associated with the payment of
compensated absences. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if
they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.

Unearned Revenues — The City received federal Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery
Funds (CSLFR) as part of the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA). The funding was received in
advance of meeting certain eligibility requirements that must be met prior to being recognized as
revenues. The City records these funds as an unearned revenue liability until the funds are
expended in accordance with the required grant terms.

Fund Equity — In the government-wide financial statements, equity is classified as net position and
displayed in three components:

1.  Net investment in capital assets — Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
and reduced by the outstanding balances of any notes or other borrowings attributable to those
assets.

2. Restricted net position — Consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either by
external groups, such as grantors or laws and regulations of other governments, or law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

3. Unrestricted net position — All other assets that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or
“net investment in capital assets.”

When both restricted and unrestricted net positions are available for use, generally it is the City’s
policy to use restricted resources first. For projects funded with tax-exempt debt proceeds and
other sources, the debt proceeds are used first,
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Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance is further classified as
follows and based on the nature of any limitations requiring the use of resources for specific
purposes.

a) Nonspendable —Includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because it is not in
spendable form or because of legal or contractual requirements.

b) Restricted — Includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes which are
externally imposed by providers, such as creditors or amounts constrained due to constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation,

¢) Committed — Includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes that are
internally imposed by the City through formal action of the highest level of decision making
authority. The City Council is the highest level of decision making authority that can, by
adoption of an Ordinance prior to the end of the fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once
adopted, the limitation imposed by the ordinance remains in place until a similar action by City
Council is taken (the adoption of another ordinance) to remove or revise the limitation.

d) Assigned — Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the
government for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as committed.
The City Council may assign fund balance as it does when appropriating fund balance to cover
a gap between estimated revenue and appropriations in the subsequent year’s appropriated
budget. Unlike commitments, assignments generally only exist temporarily. In other words, an
additional action does not normally have to be taken for the removal of an assignment.
Conversely, as discussed above, an additional action is essential to either remove or revise a
commitment.

e) Unassigned — Includes the residual balance of the General Fund that has not been assigned to
other funds and that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes with
the General Fund.

When both restricted and unrestricted sources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned
fund balance) are available for use, generally it is the City’s policy to use restricted resources first.
Further, when the components of unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose,
committed fund balance is depleted first, followed by assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund
balance is applied last.

Cost Sharing Defined Benefit Pension Plans

The City participates in two cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans, the
Oklahoma Firefighters Pension & Retirement System (OFPRS) and the Oklahoma Police Pension
and Retirement System (OPPRS) (the Plans). For purposes of measuring the net pension asset,
liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the pensions,
and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Plan and additions
to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as
they are reported by the Plan. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value.

Defined Benefit Other Postemployment Benefit Plan
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The City has a single-employer defined benefit other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plan, (the
OPEB Plan). For purposes of measuring the total OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, these line items have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the OPEB Plan. For this purpose, benefit
payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.

Deferred outflows/inflows of resources

Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until then. The City
has a deferred outflow for a bond refunding, which is the difference in the carrying value of
refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred or amortized to interest expense
over the shorter of the life of the refunded or new debt. In addition, the City has deferred outflows
related to pensions or other post employment benefits (OPEB), See Note 4(b) and 4(c) for
additional information.

Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until then, The City has a
deferred inflow related to pensions and OPEB plans. See Note 4(b) and 4(c) for additional
information.

Revenues, Expenditures and Expenses

a.

Property Tax Revenue - Property taxes attach an enforceable lien on property as of January 1.
Taxes are levied annually on November 1 and are due one-half by December 31 and one-half by
March 31. The Tax Assessor’s office bills and collects the property taxes and remits to the City its

© portion. Property taxes not paid prior to April are considered delinquent. Such delinquent tax

payments have not historically been material. Delinquent tax payments are received throughout the
year and are recognized as revenue in the year received, except for those received within 60 days of
year end, which are recognized as revenues as of June 30, 2021 in both the government-wide and
fund financial statements.

Sales Taxes - Sales taxes are collected by vendors and required to be remitted to the State of
Oklahoma by the 20th of the month following collection. The tax is then paid to the City by the
10th of the next month. ‘A two month lag exists between collection by the vendor and payment to
the City by the State. Revenue received in July and August from sales made in May and June,
respectively, is available for prior year expenses and is accrued in both the government-wide and
fund financial statements.

Charges for Service — Charges for services consist primarily of charges made by the General Fund
for services such as motor pool usage, printing, accounting, data processing, facilities usage and
other benefits provided to the other funds of the City.

Intergovernmental Revenues/Capital Grants Earned - Revenues from Federal and State operating
grants are recognized when expenditures are made. Similarly, capital grants are considered earned
when the expenditures are made. The earned portion of capital grants in Proprietary Funds is
treated as a capital contribution within the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net
position,

Investment Earnings - Investment earnings on pooled cash and investments are allocated on a pro-
rata basis to the City’s funds based on the percentage of each fund’s average month-end pooled
cash balance.
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Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the government-
wide statement of net position — The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between
Jund balance — total governmental funds and net position — governmental activities as reported in the
government-wide statement of net position. One element of that reconciliation explains that “long-term
liabilities, including bonds payable and net pension and OPEB liabilities (including related deferred
outflows/inflows of resources), are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not
reported in the funds.” The details of this $248,621,585 difference are as follows:

General obligation bonds payable $ 83,689,389
Sales tax revenue notes payable 100,715,000
Notes payable 1,940,000
Compensated absences 8,706,694
Net OPEB obligation 9,154,430
Net pension liability 55,542,233
Deferred outflows of resources (20,920,486)
Deferred inflow of resources 8,175,790
Accrued interest payable 1,618,535

Net adjustment to reduce fund balance - total governmental funds to arrive at

net position - governmental activities $ 248,621,585

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities — The
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances — total governmental funds and changes in net
position of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One
element of that reconciliation explains that “Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful
lives and reported as depreciation expense.” The details of this $6,849,222 difference are as follows:

Capital outlay $30,027,735
Depreciation expense (23,178,513)
Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds

to arrive at changes in net position of governmental activities $ 6,849,222

Another element of that reconciliation states that “Contributed capital assets (land, buildings, and
infrastructure) and other miscellaneous capital asset transactions recorded in government-wide financial
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statements but not recorded in fund level financial statements.” The details of this $9,985,633 difference
are as follows:

Donations of capital assets increase net position in the statement of activities, but
do not appear in the governmental funds because they are not financial resouces. $ 9,985,633

In the statement of activities, only the gain on the sale of capital assets is reported.
However, in the governmental funds, the proceeds from the sale increase financial
resources. Thus, the change in net position differs from the change in fund balance
by the cost of the capital asset sold. 79,508

The statement of activities reports gains arising from the trade-in of existing capital
assets to acquire new capital assets. Conversely, governmental funds do not report
any gain or loss on a trade-in of capital assets. (79,508)

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds
to arrive at changes in net position of governmental activities $ 9,985,633

Another element of that reconciliation states that “Some expenses reported in the statement of activities
do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore are not reported as expenditures in the
governmental funds.” The details of this $490,460 difference are as follows:

Change in accrued interest payable $ (403,187)
Change in net pension and OPEB obligations 133,831
Change in debt issuance premium or discount (221,104)
Net adjustment to increase net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

to arrive at changes in net position of governmental activities $ _ (490,460)

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting - The City Manager is required by City Charter and the Oklahoma
Municipal Budget Act to prepare and submit an annual budget to the City Council. A budget is prepared
and legally adopted for the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Fund, and Capital
Projects Fund. These budgets are prepared on a cash basis for revenues, except for accrued interest
receivable and other receivables. For budget purposes, expenditures include amounts paid and
encumbered, as well as amounts in accounts payable at the end of the fiscal year. Purchase orders,
contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of funds are recorded as encumbrances to reserve a
portion of the applicable appropriation,

Budgeted expenditures and encumbrances for the budgeted funds cannot exceed the estimated revenues
and fund balance, and it is unlawful for the City to create or authorize creation of a deficit in any of these
funds. Budgetary control is exercised by function at the fund level. These functional categories include
salaries and benefits; supplies and materials; services and maintenance; debt service; and capital outlay.
Amendments must be approved by the City Council. The City Manager is authorized to transfer
budgeted appropriations within individual funds, but cannot alter the appropriations on a fund level
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without City Council approval. Supplemental appropriations within all funds by the City Council during
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 amounted to $23,382,776. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at
year end while encumbered appropriations are carried over to the ensuing fiscal year until utilized or
canceled and are classified within the restricted, committed or assigned fund balance category, as
appropriate, based on the criteria of the fund balance classifications.

Oklahoma Statutes also require the City Council each year to make an ad valorem tax levy for a sinking
fund (Debt Service Fund) which shall, with cash and investments in the fund, be sufficient to pay all the
bonded indebtedness, interest and one-third of all outstanding judgments coming due in the following
year.

DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

Deposits and Investments

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits — Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the
City’s deposits may not be returned to it. The City’s policy for collateralization is that pledged securities
will have a market value of at least 102% of the value of funds on deposit and that collateral be limited to
either 1) U.S. Treasury, agency and instrumentality securities or 2) direct debt obligations of
municipalities, counties, and school districts in Oklahoma. As of June 30, 2021, none of the City’s bank
balance of $144,085,664 was exposed to custodial credit risk. Approximately $15,134,000 in uninvested
cash was in trustee accounts and not considered to be uncollateralized. Also, approximately $32,318,000
is made available to banking institutions to cover cash availability requirements and is covered by FDIC
insurance. As of June 30, 2021, the City’s carrying balance of these deposits was $143,736,540.

Interest Rate Risk — As of June 30, 2021, the City had the following investments subject to interest rate
risk:

Weighted
Average
Maturity
Investment Type Fair Value (Years)
Money Market Mutual Funds $ 64,437,639 0.11
U.S. Treasury Notes 36,047,478 1.11
Federal Home Loan Bank 24,616,038 1.20
Federal Farm Credit Bank 14,002,953 0.98
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 7,995 840 1.46
Total fair value $ 147,099,948
Portfolio weighted average maturity 0.69

In accordance with its investment policy, the City manages its exposure to declines in fair values by
limiting investment maturities to not more than ten years from the date of purchase.

The following schedules reconcile the carrying amounts of deposits and investments above to the
government-wide statement of net position:
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Primary Government:

Carrying value of deposits -
Pooled and nonpooled funds
Money market mutual funds
Less: Certificates of deposits classified as investments

Cash as reported on the government-wide
statement of net position -
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - current
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - long-term

Carrying value of investments -
Pooled and nonpooled funds
Site development certificate of deposits

Less: Money market mutual funds classified as cash equivalent

As reported on the government-wide
statement of net position -
Investments
Restricted investments - current

Item 9.

143,736,540
64,437,639
(4,000,429)

204,173,750

70,834,210
126,154,453
7,185,087

204,173,750

147,099,948
4,000,429
(64,437.,639)

86,662,738

83,662,309
3,000,429

86,662,738

Credit Risk —The City’s investment policy does not cover credit risk. The City’s investments as of June
30, 2021 were rated by Moody’s Investor Service and Standard & Poor’s as follows:

Federal Farm Credit Bank

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation
Federal Home Loan Bank

U.S. Treasury Notes

Money Market Mutual Funds

S&P

AA+
AA+
AA+

Unrated Unrated
Unrated Unrated

Concentration of Credit Risk — The City’s investment policy places no limit on the amount the City may
invest in any one issuer. More than 5% of the City’s investments are in United States Treasury Notes,
Federal Home Loan Bank and Federal Farm Credit Bank. These investments are 25%, 17% and 10%,
respectively, of the City’s total investments. Additionally, the City is invested in three money market
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mutual funds; the Federated Hermes Government Obligations Tax Managed Fund, the Federated
Treasury Obligations Service Fund and the Cavanal Hill Government Securities Fund, which represents
22%, 16% and 6%, respectively of the City’s total investments.

Fiduciary Funds — The City’s fiduciary funds are not included in the risks and amounts identified above
and are invested in mutual funds traded on public exchanges and have substantially the same risks as the
primary government.

Custodial Credit Risk —Investments — For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of
the counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities
that are in the possession of an outside party. It is the City’s policy to maintain investment securities that
are insured or registered in the City’s name and held by the City or its agent in the City’s name whenever
possible. As of June 30, 2021, the City’s investment were not exposed to custodial credit risk as all of
the City’s investments were registered in the name of the City and held by a counterparty.

Investments Measured at Fair Value

The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally
accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair

value of the asset. Level | inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs
are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

The City has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2021:
e US Treasury securities of $36,047,478 are valued using quoted market prices (Level 1 inputs).

e Federal government agencies securities of $46,614,831 are valued using quoted market prices of
similar assets in an active market (Level 2 inputs).

e Money market mutual funds of $64,437,639 are valued using quoted market prices (Level 1
inputs).

e Mutual funds of $118,759,230 reported in the Statement of Fiduciary Net Position are valued
using quoted market prices (Level 1 inputs).

Amount Due From Federal Government - The amount shown in both the government-wide and fund
financial statements as due from the Federal government represents $6,257,096 of allowable
expenditures under various direct and pass through grants for which the City has requested
reimbursement.
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Interfund receivables and payables — Interfund receivables and payables for the year ended June 30,
2021:

Public Nonmajor Total
Safety Norman Special Govern-
General Sales Tax Capital Forward Grants mental Enterprise Internal Due
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Fund Fund From
General Fund 3 - 8121 § 315874 § 428924 § 54566 $§ 131,567 $ 746255 $ 11,551 $ 1,696,858
Nonmajor 2,489 - - - - - - - 2,489
Governmental
Funds

Total Due To $ 2480 § 8121 § 315874 $ 428024 $ 54566 § 131567 § 746255 § 11,551 $_ 1.699.347

Transfers - Transfers for the year ended June 30, 2021 consisted of the following:

Transfers In

Public
Safety Capital Norman Nonmajor Internal Total
Transfers General Sales Tax Projects Forward Governmental Enterprise Service Transfers
Out Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Fund Out

General Fund $ - % 2422192 § - $ 4800000 % 4,555,316 $ - § - % 11,777,508
Nonmajor - - 5,100,000 - - 204,219 447,167 5,751,386
Governmental Funds
Capital Projects 3,782,098 375,138 - 4,776,381 - 24,793 - 8.958.410
Fund
Norman Forward 187,695 35,000 222,695
Fund
Internal Service 68,893 - - - - - - 68,893
Fund
Enterprise Funds 1,836,890 - 370,176 - - - - 2.207,066
Total Transfers In $ 5875576 § 2797330 % 5470176 $ 9,576,381 % 4555316 % 264012 § 447,167 8 28985958

Transfers are used for varying reasons including but not limited to moving unrestricted general fund
revenues to finance various programs that the City must account for in other funds in accordance with
budgetary authorizations, including amounts provided as subsidies or matching funds for various grant
programs.

The most significant transfers were initiated by the City for the following reasons:

e The Capital Projects Fund transferred $3,712,098 to the General Fund to pay for the purchase of
vehicles and equipment and fund street maintenance projects.

e The Transportation and Parking Fund transferred $5,100,000 to the Capital Fund to construct a
maintenance facility.

e The Debt Services Fund transferred $447,167 to the Risk Management Internal Service Fund to
pay for judgments awarded against the City and funded via the property tax rolls over a three year
period.

e The Enterprise Funds transferred $1,686,058 to the General Fund as a fee in lieu of franchise fees.
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e The General Fund transferred $1,174,377 to the Transportation and Parking Fund to cover

operating costs.

» The General Fund transferred $2,327,776 to the Public Safety Sales Tax Fund to cover operating

COsts.

Capital Assets — Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 was as follows:

Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Infrastructure
Totals at historical cost
Less accumulated depreciation
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Infrastructure
Total accumulated depreciation
Governmental activities capital assets, net
Business-type activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Totals at historical cost
Less accumulated depreciation
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

Business-type activities capital assets, net

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance
$ 68,360,714 § 1,189,828 § - § 69,550,542
46,139,237 26,526,728 (24,770,051) 47,895,914
78,518,652 197,462 (3,743) 78,712,371
38,778,496 955,326 - 39,733,822
44,123,488 16,184,361 (311,025) 59,996,824
25,041,700 1,865,215 (512,894) 26,394,021
630,844,129 17.864,329 - . 648.708.658
931,806,416 64.,783.449 (25.597,713) ___ 970,992,152
(19,953,437) (2,413,284) 3,743 (22,362,978)
(17,074,288) (1,693,319) - (18,767,607)
(30,826,110) (3,707,793) 310,995 (34,222,908)
(16,178,558) (1,937,853) 512,894 (17,603,517)
(373.869.881) __ (13.426.264) - _ (387.296.145)
(457.902.274) _ (23.178.513) 827,632 __(480,253.155)

$ 473,904,142 § 41,604,936 § (24,770,081) § 490,738,997

$ 10,417,288 % 71,749 $ - § 10,489,037
59,244,490 14,045,365 (38,534,217) 34,755,638
208,119,409 25,392,370 (979,921) 232,531,858
213.376.331 25.076.009 (1.160,516) __ 237.291.824
491,157,518 64.585.493 (40.674.654) __515.068.357
(113,360,010) (3,300,536) 743,272 (117,917,274)
(83.891,934) (10,983,904) 982,018 (93.893,820)
(197.251.944) (16,284.440) 1,725.290 _ (211.811,094)

3 293,905,574 § 48301053 § (38949.364) § 303.257,263
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government $1,994,496
Planning 60,543
City controller 256,387
Parks and recreation 2,387,164
Public works 14,992,829
Public service 202
Public safety 3.486.892

Total depreciation expense — governmental activities $23,178,513

Business-type activities:

Westwood park $147,477
Utilities authority 14,170,624
Sanitation services 1.966.339

Total depreciation expense — business-type activities $16.284.440

Pension Plan Obligations - Each qualified employee participates in one of the three retirement plans in

which the City participates. These are The Employee Retirement System of the City of Norman, The
Oklahoma Firefighters Pension and Retirement System, and The Oklahoma Police Pension and
Retirement System. The City does not maintain the accounting records, hold the investments nor
administer the firefighters” or police retirement funds. The police officers’ and firefighters’ plans are
statewide systems administered by the State of Oklahoma. The municipal employees’ plan is managed
by a separate board of trustees, and the assets are held in custody and administered by two asset
managers.

Pension Plan
The City participates in three pension retirement plans:

¢ Employee Retirement System of the City of Norman — A single-employer employee retirement
system.

e Oklahoma Firefighters Pension & Retirement System (OFPRS) — A statewide cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan.

e Oklahoma Police Pension & Retirement System (OPPRS) — A statewide cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan.

The aggregate total for all pension-related items for all defined benefit plans is as follows:
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Pension expense
Employee Retirement System
OFPRS
OPPRS

Net pension liability (asset)
Employee Retirement System
OFPRS
OPPRS

Deferred outflows of resources
Employee Retirement System
OFPRS
OPPRS

Deferred inflows of resources
Employee Retirement System
OFPRS
OPPRS

A summary of significant data for each of the retirement plans follows:

Governmental

Activities

$53,075
10,220,553
5,746,092

$16,019,720

$0
50,653,960
4,888,273

$55,542,233

$0
11,681,630
8,286,872

$19,968.502

$0
3,618,121
1,634,293

85,252,414

Item 9.

a. Employee Retirement System of the City of Norman - Plan Description - The Employee Retirement

System (“ERS™) of the City of Norman is a single-employer public employee retirement system

which was established on November 1, 1967 by a City ordinance and amended on January 29, 1985

and July 1, 1991. The ERS was originally established as a defined benefit plan. On July 1, 1991,
the City converted that portion of the ERS which related to unretired participants to a money

purchase plan under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code (the “401(a) Plan™). An amount
equal to the greater of the participants vested benefits under the ERS or their account balance in the
ERS was transferred to a participant account in the 401(a) Plan. The portion of the ERS that relates

to retired participants at July 1, 1991 (“the Annuity Pool”) remains in existence to pay benefits to
those retired employees receiving benefits at July 1, 1991. The activities of the Annuity Pool and

the 401(a) Plan are recorded in separate Pension Trust Funds which are included within the City’s

financial statements.

The ERS does not issue a stand-alone financial report. Overall the defined benefit portion of the
ERS plan is not entrical to the City’s financial statement as a whole. Therefore the information
provided is for informational purposes only and is not intended to comply with the provisions of

GASB Statement 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — An Amendment of GASB

Statement 27.
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The ERS is managed by a Board of Trustees, composed of six members, meeting once a quarter.
Members by position include the City Manager, Finance Director and Personnel Director. One

. additional member is elected by the City Council and the final two members are elected by the
American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees Union membership.

Basis of Accounting — The ERS’s financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting. Employer and plan member contributions are recognized in the period that the
contributions are due. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance
with the terms of each plan.

Method Used to Value Investments — ERS plan investments are reported at fair value. Short-term
" investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair value. Securities traded on national
exchanges are valued at the last reported sales price. Investments that do not have an established
market are reported at estimated fair value.

As of June 30, 2021, and for the year ended, the ERS held no securities issued by the City or other
related parties.

1.

Annuity Pool - As of July 1, 2020, the date of the last actuarial study, the Annuity Pool
participants included eight retirees and other beneficiaries who are entitled retirement benefits
including a death benefit equal to a lump sum amount equal to the normal retirement as
projected for a ten year period of time.

At July 1, 2020 the Actuarial Accrued Liability for the Annuity Pool was $227,079 and the
market value of assets in the Annuity Pool was $162,162. The City’s actuary has suggested
an annual contribution for a period of ten years commencing July 1, 2021, The actuarial
assumptions included (a) 7.25% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), (b)
no projected salary increases, and (¢) no cost of living increases. The actuarial value of assets
was determined using techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the market
value of investments over a five-year period. The City contributed $64,917 to the plan in
2021. The City will make future contributions as needed to make benefit payments should
present plan assets be insufficient to do so.

The 401(a) Plan - The 401(a) Plan is a money purchase defined contribution plan under
section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. All non-voluntary contributions have been
designated by the City as “picked up contributions” pursuant to Internal Revenue Code
section 414(h)(2) and are treated as employer contributions for federal income tax purposes.

The City’s payroll for employees covered by the 401(a) Plan for the year ended June 30, 2021
was $31,604,611, and total City payroll was $62,039,385.

Substantially all full-time, non-uniformed employees of the City are required to participate in
the 401(a) Plan. AtJune 30, 2021, there were 611 plan participants. Participants are required
to contribute 6.5% of their compensation to the 401(a) Plan cach pay period. This
contribution is matched by the City at a rate of 8.5% of payroll. Administrative costs are
financed through investment earnings. Participants become vested in the City’s contribution
as follows:
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Years of Service Vesting Percentage
Less than 2 0%
2 25%
3 50%
4 75%
5 100%

The amount forfeited for the year ended June 30, 2021 was $118,864. Contributions to the
401(a) Plan for 2021 were $4,455,386. The contributions expressed in dollars and percent of
covered payroll were: City - $2,751,223, 8.5%, participants - $2,069,080, 6.5%. The
contribution requirements are in accordance with the City ordinance. Plan provisions and
contribution requirements are established and may be amended by the City Council.

Trend Information
401(a) Plan

City's City's
Fiscal Required Percentage
Year Contribution Contributed
2019 2,566,797 100%
2020 2,625,655 100%
2021 2,751,223 100%

Financial Reports — Neither the Annuity Pool nor the 401(a) Plan issues stand-alone financial
reports and are not included in the report of a public employee retirement system or a report of
another entity. Their financial statements are as follows:

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2021

Annuity 401(a) Plan

Assets Pool Fund Fund Total
Investments - mutual funds $ 215,102 $ 118,544,128 $ 118,759,230
Loans to 401{a) Plan participants - 3,180,394 3,180,394

Total assets $ 215,102 $ 121,724,522 $ 121,939,624

Liabilities and Net Position

Net position restricted for pension benefits $ 215,102 $ 121,724,522 § 121,939,624
Total liabilities and net position $ 215102 §$ 121,724,522 $ 121,939,624
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Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Additions:
Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee
Investment income (loss)
Total additions
Deductions:
Pension benefits paid
Administration costs
Total deductions

Net increase (decrease)

Item 9.

Net position restricted for pension and retirement benefits:

Beginning of year
End of year

Annuity  401(a) Plan

Pool Fund Fund Total
$ 64917 $ 2,686,306 $§ 2,751,223
- 2,069,080 2,069,080
39,070 29,024,567 29,063,637
103,987 33,779,953 33,883,940
50,286 13,898,938 13,949,224
626 - 626
50,912 13,898,938 13,949,850
53,075 19,881,015 19,934,090
162,027 101,843,507 102,005,534
$ 215,102 $121,724,522 § 121,939,624

Oklahoma Firefighters Pension and Retirement System (OFPRS)

Plan Description - Members of the City’s Fire Department are covered by the Oklahoma
Firefighters Pension and Retirement System (OFPRS), which is a statewide cost sharing multiple-
employer public employee retirement system (the OFPRS Plan). The plan is administered by a
board of trustees (the Board) appointed under state statute. Benefit provisions are contained in the
Plan document and were established and can be amended by action of the OFPRS’ board of

trustees. The plan issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at

www.ok.gov/fprs/.

Benefits Provided — In general, the OFPRS Plan provides defined retirement benefits based on
members’ final average compensation, age, and term of service. In addition, the retirement

program provides for benefits upon disability and to survivors upon death of eligible members.
The Plan’s benefits are established and amended by state statute. Retirement provisions are as

follows:

Hired Prior to November I, 2013 — Normal retirement is attained upon completing 20 years
of service. The normal retirement benefit is equal to 50% of the member’s final average

compensation. Final average compensation is defined as the monthly average of the highest
30 consecutive months of the last 60 months of participating service.

Hired After November 1, 2013 - Normal retirement is attained upon completing 22 years of
service. The normal retirement benefit is equal to 55% of the member's final average
compensation. Final average compensation is defined as the monthly average of the highest
30 consecutive months of the last 60 months of participating service. Also must be age 50 to

begin receiving benefits.
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All firefighters are eligible for immediate disability benefits. For paid firefighters, the
disability in-the-line-of-duty benefit for firefighters with less than 20 years of service is equal
to 50% of final average monthly compensation, based on the most recent 30 months of
service. For firefighters with over 20 years of service, a disability in-the-line-of-duty is
calculated based on 2.5% of final average monthly compensation, based on the most recent 30
months, per year of service, with a maximum of 30 years of service. For disabilities not-in-
the-line-of-duty, the benefit is limited to only those with less than 20 years of service and is
50% of final average monthly compensation, based on the most recent 60-month salary as
opposed to 30 months.

A $5,000 lump sum death benefit is payable to the qualified spouse or designated recipient
upon the participant's death. The $5,000 death benefit does not apply to members electing the
vested benefit.

Firefighters hired prior to November 1, 2013, with 20 or more years of service may elect to
participate in the Oklahoma Firefighters Deferred Retirement Option Plan (the "Deferred
Option Plan"), Firefighters hired after November 1, 2013, with 22 or more years of service
may elect to participate in the Deferred Option Plan. Active participation (having benefit
payments credited to the account) in the Deferred Option Plan shall not exceed 5 years. Under
the Deferred Option Plan, retirement benefits are calculated based on compensation and
service at the time of election. The retirement benefits plus half of the municipal contributions
on behalf of the participant are deposited into a deferred retirement account. The Deferred
Option Plan accounts are credited with interest at a rate of 2% below the rate of return on the
investment portfolio of the Plan, with a guaranteed minimum interest rate equal to the
assumed actuarial interest rate of 7.5%, as approved by the Board. The participant is no
longer required to make contributions. Upon retirement, the firefighter receives his/her
monthly retirement benefit as calculated at the time of election. The member can elect to
either leave the account balance accumulated in the Deferred Option Plan account or they can
elect to have the balance paid to them either as a lump sum or in specified monthly payments.
If the member elects to leave their account balance in the Deferred Option Plan account, they
will continue to earn interest on their balance at the rate described above; however, no more
benefit payments will be credited to their account. The member can leave their account
balance in the Deferred Option Plan account until the age of 70'%2. When the member reaches
70% years of age, they must either begin receiving regular monthly payments, based on the
annuity method, or a lump sum distribution.

The Deferred Option Plan was modified effective November 1, 2013, to limit post-retirement
interest for new members to a rate of return on the portfolio, less a 1% administrative fee. In
addition, the members participating must withdraw all money by the age of 70% .

In the 2003 Legislative Session, Senate Bill 286 and House Bill 1464 created a "Back" DROP
for members of the System effective July 1, 2003. The "Back™ DROP is a modified deferred
retirement option plan. The "Back” DROP allows the member flexibility by not having to
commit to terminate employment within 5 years. Once a member has met their normal
retirement period of 20 years for those hired prior to November 1, 2013, and 22 years for
those hired after November 1, 2013, the member can choose, upon retirement, to be treated as
if the member had entered into the Deferred Option Plan. A member, however, cannot receive
credit to the Deferred Option Plan account based upon any years prior to when the member
reached their normal retirement date. Once a member is ready to retire, the member can make
the election to participate in the "Back" DROP and can receive a Deferred Option Plan benefit
based upon up to 5 years of participation. The member's regular retirement benefit will not
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take into account any years of service credited to the "Back” DROP. Firefighters with 20
years of service or who were receiving pension benefits as of May 26, 1983, are entitled to
post-retirement adjustments equal to one-half the increase or decrease for top-step
firefighters. Pensions will not be adjusted below the level at which the firefighter retired.

Contributions — The Board has the authority to establish and amend the contribution requirements
of the City and active employees. Members of the OFPRS are required to pay 9% of their base pay
to the pension plan until they reach 20 years of service, after which no contributions are required.
The City is contractually required to pay 14% of base salary. For the year ended June 30, 2021, the
total contribution to the system amounted to $2,946,387 of which $1,793,453 was made by the City
and $1,152,934 was made by the employees. These contributions represent 14% (City) and 9%
(member) of covered payroll, actuarially determined as an amount that is expected to finance the
costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with any additional amount to finance any
unfunded accrued liability. The total amount contributed to the system by the State of Oklahoma
on behalf of the City was approximately $4,259,000 and does not meet the criteria of a special
funding situation.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions — At June 30, 2021, the City reported a liability of $50,653,960, for
its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of
June 30, 2020, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2020. The City’s proportion of the net pension
liability was based on a projection of the City’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan
relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. At
June 30, 2020, the City’s proportion was 4.111812%

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the City recognized pension expense of $10,220,553. At June 30,
2021, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Deferred
Outflows of  Deferred Inflows
Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 6,455,866 $ 679,652
Changes of assumptions or other inputs - 858,384
Employer change in proportion and differences between
contributions recognized and proportionate share of
contributions 2,687,756 2,080,085
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments 744,555 -
City's contributions subsequent to the measurement date 1,793,453 -
Total $ 11,681,630 $ 3,618,121
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At June 30, 2021, the City reported $1,793,453 as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
resulting from City’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date that will be recognized as a
reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2022. Other amounts reported as
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources totaling $6,270,056 related to
pensions will be recognized as a (reduction) or increase in pension expense as follows:

2022 $ 1,236,671
2023 2,160,937
2024 1,653,002
2025 1,219,446

$__ 6,270,056

Actuarial Assumptions — The total pension liability in the July 1, 2020, actuarial valuations was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:

Inflation 2.75%, compounded annually
Salary increases 2.75% to 10.5%, average, including inflation
Ad hoc cost of living adjustments Half of the dollar amount of a 2.75%

Assumed increase in base pay for retirees with 20
years of service as of May 26, 1983, no increase
afterwards

Investment rate of return 7.5%, net of pension plan investment expense

Mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Public Safety Table with generational mortality
improvement using MP-2018 (RP-2000 Blue Collar Healthy Combined with generational mortality
improvement using Scale AA for healthy lives and no mortality improvement for disabled lives in
2018).

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2020 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2018.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by
adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return
for each major asset class are summaried in the following table:
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Long-Term
Expected
Target Real Rate of
Asset Class Allocation Return
Fixed Income 20% 4.38%
Domestic Equity 42% 7.41%
International Equity 20% 9.82%
Real Estate 10% 7.70%
Other Assets 8% 5.67%

100%

Discount Rate — The single discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5% for
the measurement period ended June 30, 2020. The projection of cash flows used to determine the
discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the current contribution rate
and that participating employer contributions will be made at contractually required rates,
actuarially determined. Based on these assumptions, the penion plan’s fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and
inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments
was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the

Discount Rate — The City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability has been calculated
using a discount rate of 7.5%. The following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability calculated using a discount rate 1% higher and 1% lower than the current rate.

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.5%) (7.5%) (8.5%)
City's proportionate share of the net
pension liability $ 65783495 § 50,653,960 $ 37,995,695

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position — Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued OFPRS Plan financial report, which can be located at
www.ok.gov/fprs/.

Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System (OPPRS)

Plan Description - Members of the City’s Police Department are covered by the Oklahoma Police
Pension and Retirement System (OPPRS), which is a statewide cost sharing multiple-employer
public employee retirement system (the OPPRS Plan). The plan is administered by a board of
trustees (the Board) appointed under state statute. Benefit provisions are contained in the Plan
document and were established and can be amended by action of the OPPRS’ board of trustees.
The plan issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at www.ok.gov/OPPRS/.

Benefits Provided — In general, the OPPRS Plan provides defined retirement benefits based on
members’ final average compensation, age, and term of service. In addition, the retirement
program provides for benefits upon disability and to survivors upon death of eligible members.
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The Plan’s benefits are established and amended by state statute. Retirement provisions are as
follows:

e  The normal retirement date under the Plan is the date upon which the participant completes
20 years of credited service, regardless of age. Participants become vested upon completing
10 years of credited service as a contributing participant of the Plan. No vesting occurs prior
to completing 10 years of credited service. Participants’ contributions are refundable, without
interest, upon termination prior to normal retirement. Participants who have completed 10
years of credited service may elect a vested benefit in licu of having their accumulated
contributions refunded. If the vested benefit is elected, the participant is entitled to a monthly
retirement benefit commencing on the date the participant reaches 50 years of age or the date
the participant would have had 20 years of credited service had employment continued
uninterrupted, whichever is later.

e Monthly retirement benefits are calculated at 2.5% of the final average salary (defined as the
average paid base salary of the officer over the highest 30 consecutive months of the last 60
months of credited service) multiplied by the years of credited service, with a maximum of 30
years of credited service considered.

e  Monthly benefits for participants due to permanent disability incurred in the line of duty are
2.5% of the participants’ final average salary multiplied by 20 years. This disability benefit is
reduced by stated percentages for partial disability based on the percentage of impairment.
After 10 years of credited service, participants who retire due to disability incurred from any
cause are eligible for a monthly benefit based on 2.5% of their final average salary multiplied
by the years of service. This disability benefit is also reduced by stated percentages for partial
disability based on the percentage of impairment. Effective July 1, 1998, once a disability
benefit is granted to a participant, that participant is no longer allowed to apply for an
increase in the dollar amount of the benefit at a subsequent date.

e  Survivor’s benefits are payable in full to the participant’s beneficiary upon the death of a
retired participant. The beneficiary of any active participant killed in the line of duty is
entitled to a pension benefit. Effective July 1, 1999, a $5,000 death benefit is also paid, in
addition to any survivor’s pension benefits under the Plan, to the participant’s beneficiary or
estate for active or retired members.

o  The Deferred Option allows participants otherwise eligible for a normal retirement benefit to
defer terminating employment and drawing retirement benefits for a period not to exceed 5
years. Under the Deferred Option, retirement benefits are calculated based on compensation
and service at the time of election and a separate account is established for each participant.
During the participation period, the employee’s retirement benefit is credited to the
participant’s account along with a portion of the employer’s contribution and interest. Interest
is credited at a rate of 2% below the rate of return on the investment portfolio of the Plan,
with a guaranteed minimum interest equal to the assumed actuarial interest of 7.5%.
Employee contributions cease once participation in the Deferred Option is elected. At the
conclusion of participation in the Deferred Option, the participant will receive the balance in
the separate account under payment terms allowed by the Deferred Option and will then begin
receiving retirement benefit payments as calculated at the time of election.

e Inthe 2003 Legislative Session, Senate Bill 688 and House Bill 1464 created a “Back” DROP
for members of the System. The “Back” DROP is a modified deferred retirement option plan.
The “Back” DROP allows the member flexibility by not having to commit to terminate

-52- 242




Item 9.

employment within 5 years. Once a member has met their normal retirement period of 20
years, the member can choose, upon retirement, to be treated as if the member had entered
into the “Back” DROP. A member, however, cannot receive credit to the “Back™ DROP
account based upon any years prior to when the member reached their normal retirement date.
Once a member is ready to retire, the member can make the election to participate in the
“Back” DROP and can receive a “Back” DROP benefit based upon up to 5 years of
participation. The member’s regular retirement benefit will not take into account any years of
service credited to the *“Back” DROP.

¢ In 2006, the Board approved a method of payment called the Deferred Option Payout
Provision (the “Payout Provision”). The Payout Provision allows a retired member who has
completed participation in the Deferred Option or the “Back” DROP the ability to leave their
account balance in the Plan. The retired member’s account balance will be commingled and
reinvested with the total assets, and therefore the member will not be able to direct their
personal investments. Written election must be made to the Board no more than 30 days
following the termination of employment.

¢  Upon participating in the Payout Provision, a retired member shall not be guaranteed a
minimum rate of return on their investment. A retired member shall earn interest on their
account as follows:

a) The retired member shall earn two percentage points below the net annual rate of return of
the investment portfolio of the System.

b) If the portfolio earns less than a 2% rate of return, but more than zero, the retired member
shall earn zero percentage points.

¢) If the portfolio earns less than zero percentage points, there shall be a deduction from the
retired member’s balance equal to the net annual rate of return of the investment portfolio of
the System.

Interest as earned above shall be credited to the retired member’s account.

The Oklahoma Legislature has the authority to grant percentage increases or special one-time
payments to persons receiving benefits from the Plan. Additionally, certain retirees are entitled to
receive a cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) when a COLA is granted to active police officers in the
retiree’s city. Participants eligible to receive both types of benefit increases are to receive the
greater of the legislative increase or the benefit increase the participant would receive pursuant to
the COLA provision.

Contributions — The Board has the authority to establish and amend the contribution requirements
of the City and active employees. Members of the OPPRS are required to pay 8% of their base pay
to the pension plan. The City is contractually required to pay 13% of base salary. For the year
ended June 30, 2021, the total contribution to t